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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited (the
"Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there is no other matter the omission of
which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

MACRO SITUATION REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”), the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group"”) faced very severe
macro situation. This situation is very detrimental to the business
development of the Group.

The China-USA trade war

The China-USA trade war broke out in 2018 and it has became
more intense during the Year. US Government imposed the
tariffs on the goods imported from China. Moreover, the trade
frictions brought many uncertainties to the development of
the world economy, and slowing the growth of global trade.
This situation had negative impact on major business of the
Group's trading and import and export of electronic products,
petrochemical products and various other products.

The changes in the value added tax (“VAT”) in the
PRC

The Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation
and the General Customs Administration of the PRC jointly
announced that the VAT rate would be lowered from 1 April
2019. In case of import and export of goods by general VAT
taxpayers, if the original 16% tax rate was applied, the tax
rate should be adjusted to 13%; if the original 10% tax rate
was applied, the tax rate should be adjusted to 9%. The VAT
rate was reduced, and the export tax rebate was reduced
correspondingly. After the reduction of the VAT rate, the
corresponding impact on price advantage of import and export
market compared with the domestic market could not be shown
immediately. As a result, many enterprises took a wait-and-see
attitude and needed a transitional period to adjust the direction
of business development accordingly.

The changes in the chemical industry policies in
Jiangsu Province

On 21 March 2019, a major explosion accident occurred at
a chemical plant in Chenjiagang Chemical Industry Park,
Chenjiagang, Xiangshui County, Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. The event spurred a significant emergency
response at the national and local levels. The local government
immediately close almost the entire industrial park and the State
Council of the PRC ordered immediate safety inspections of
chemical parks across the country, instructing regulators to shut
down plants if necessary. The Jiangsu provincial government has
decided to slash the number of chemical production enterprises
as part of an ambitious plan to overhaul the local chemical
manufacturing industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 1 April 2019, the Jiangsu Province Government General
Office ("Jiangsu General Office”) promulgated the Jiangsu
Province Chemical Industry Improvement and Modernization
Plan (Draft) (OI# & IITEBAREAFTRBERKERRD),
which aims to reduce the Jiangsu Province chemical plants
to 1,000 before the end of 2022. This draft was not adopted
ultimately, but it implies the expected scope of the Jiangsu
Provincial Government’s regulatory changes on the chemical
industry.

On 27 April 2019, the Jiangsu General Office officially
promulgated the Jiangsu Province Chemical Industry Safety and
Environment Improvement and Modernization Plan (“Jiangsu
Chemical Industry Plan”), (L& TEX L RRERRAS
) (EHH2019]1965%) ), but the Jiangsu Chemical Industry Plan
did not list detailed figures of required chemical plants closings.
Instead, it lays out closing standards whereby if the chemical
plants cannot meet the technological and environmental
requirements, they will be closed or modernized.

On 20 September 2019, the Department of Implementation and
Modernization of Environment and Security of the Provincial
Government of Jiangsu ((I# &t T EXxLZ 2 RRE AR
FH4EE /\4H) also published the Notice on Jiangsu Province
Chemical Industry Safety and Environment Improvement
and Modernization 2019 Working Goals (“Jiangsu Chemical
Working Goals”, (BIR TE2019F 24t IEXZLRIRRE
JRIRTTIIEB BRI HE M) (FR L I8[2019]35%) ) in order to
close or upgrade the plants that have outdated technology,
disastrous environmental impacts and harmful production.
According to the Jiangsu Chemical Working Goals, a total of
1,431 companies would be “phased out”, 267 will have to cease
production completely for the modernization and 1,302 will
have to be completely overhauled within a limited period of
time. Furthermore, 77 companies must be relocated and 945
modernized. The goal of the Jiangsu Chemical Working Goals
is to close 579 chemical companies.

The operations of the Group’s terminal handling and berthing
business and petrochemical storage business located at
Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province and most of the major
customers are chemical companies in Jiangsu Province. The
above mentioned proposed measures by the Jiangsu Province
Government had significant adverse impact on the up stream
of the Group's terminal handling and berthing business and
petrochemical storage business located in Jiangsu Province
during the Year and on future operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in trading

business, the provision of integrated logistics handling and the

relevant supporting services business as well as petrochemical

products storage business.

Our major business activities can be divided into below

segments during the Year:

1.

08

Trading Business

The Group is engaged in the trading and import and
export businesses of electronic products, petrochemical
products and various other products. During the Year,
the Group's trading business recorded revenue of
approximately HK$1,502.1 (2018: approximately
HK$4,160.0 million). The decrease in in this

segment was mainly attributable to (i) the termination of

million
revenue

some products trading business which had high operating
risks or recorded gross losses in the last financial year,
(i) many customers took a wait-and-see attitude as the
change of the vale added tax in the PRC has affected the
export rebate, and (iii) the impact of the China-USA trade

war.

Integrated Logistics Handling and The Relevant
Supporting Services Business

During the Year, the Group's integrated logistics handling
and the relevant supporting services business (“Integrated
Logistics
provision of terminal handling and berthing services and
was solely engaged by L& /& & A2 E Hmt TIHBRAR
A7) (Jiangsu Hairong Dafeng Port Petrochemical Product

Handling Business”) mainly involves the

Terminal Company Limited*) (“Jiangsu Hairong”) and
recorded revenue of approximately HK$7.1 million (2018:
approximately HK$201.1 million, of which approximately
HK$0.7 million was generated from Jiangsu Hairong,
and approximately HK$200.4 million was generated from
Gamma Logistics (B.V.l.) Corporation (“Gamma Logistics”)
and its subsidiaries (“Gamma Logistics Group")).

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The decrease in revenue in this segment was mainly
attributable to (i) the Group has just completed the
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Jiangsu Hairong
on 21 December 2018; and (ii) the disposal of Gamma
Logistics on 10 January 2019; and (iii) the explosion
accident in the chemical industry park on 21 March 2019
has caused a large number of chemical industry companies
to be shut down or rectified, resulting in a decline in
business volume of Jiangsu Hairong.

On 28 December 2018, the Company and Great Panorama
International Limited entered into an agreement to
dispose of all its remaining 51% equity interests in Gamma
Logistics (“Gamma Logistics Disposal Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed
to sell, and Great Panorama International Limited
conditionally agreed to purchase 51% equity interests in
Gamma Logistics at the consideration of HK$4.15 million
(the “"Gamma Disposal”). The Gamma Disposal was
completed on 10 January 2019. Following the completion
of the Gamma Disposal, Gamma Logistics ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company.

Petrochemical Products Storage Business

The Group is engaged in petrochemical products
storage business through JI# FEE AL EFEABR AR
(Jiangsu Zhongnanhui Petrochemical Storage Company
Limited*) (“Zhongnanhui”). During the Year, the Group's
petrochemical products storage business recorded
decrease in revenue of 10.2% to approximately HK$7.9
million (2018: approximately HK$8.8 million). The decrease
in revenue was mainly attributable to (i) the prolonged
suspension of operation of the majority of storage tanks
that are affected by the construction of new petrochemical
storage tanks; (i) the repairing and upgrading of the
existing fire services in accordance with the safety
regulations and environment protection authorities during
the Year; and (iii) the explosion accident in the chemical
industry park has resulted in a decline in petrochemical
products storage business volume.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

OUTLOOKS

The Group expects that global economic activities will be greatly
hindered as (i) the conflict and trade war between China and USA
is likely to continue and it undermines the global economy and
logistics services; and (ii) the outbreak of COVID-19 caused the
blockade of borders by all countries around the world and had
materially affected the global productivity and the associated
logistics services. In the face of adverse external operating
environment and the Group's total equity was negative, the
Company will prudently monitor the operating environment
of its business segments, reasonably optimize the Company's
resources, and to streamline and restructure its operation to
maintain the interests of shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately 63.6% to
approximately HK$1,517.1 million for the Year (2018: generated
from continuing operations approximately HK$4,169.5 million).
The decrease in revenue, please refer to the above paragraph
headed “Business Review” for details.

The Group's cost of revenue decreased by approximately 64.0%
to approximately HK$1,516.2 million for the Year (2018: incurred
from continuing operations approximately HK$4,205.9 million).
The decrease in cost was mainly driven by the effect of decrease
in revenue of the Group's trading business.

With the combined effects of revenue and cost of revenue, the
Group recorded a gross profit margin of approximately 0.1%
for the Year (2018: gross loss margin incurred from continuing
operations of approximately 0.9%). The gross profit was mainly
due to the termination of some products trading business which
had recorded gross losses in the last financial year.

The Group's finance costs amounted to approximately HK$58.7
million for the Year (2018: incurred from continuing operations
approximately HK$31.4 million). The finance costs consist of
the interests on bank loans, overdrafts, other borrowings and
the amounts due representing the outstanding consideration
payable in relation to acquisition of Jiangsu Hairong. The
increase in finance cost was mainly attributable to the placing
of the unlisted secured bonds of US$50 million, for details,
please refer to paragraph headed "Unlisted secured bonds and
account charge by controlling shareholder”, and increase in the
amounts due representing the consideration payable in relation
to acquisition of the entire equity interest in Jiangsu Hairong,
which were denominated in Renminbi with interest rate of 4.35%
per annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded net impairment loss on goodwill and other
assets of approximately HK848.6 million for the Year (2018:
incurred from continuing operations approximately HK$45.6
million). There was an unfortunate explosion accident in the
chemical industry park in Yancheng Jiangsu on 21 March 2019,
which caused numerous chemical plants to suspend their
operations for a long term and some even shut down the
chemical business. This has a significant and marked negative
impact on the Group’'s operating activities. The recoverable
amounts of the Group's cash-generating unit (“CGUs") of
Integrated Logistics Handling Business was determined to
be lower than their respective carrying amount. For details
of impairment loss are set out in note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Group recorded loss for the Year of approximately HK$945.0
million (2018: loss of approximately HK$174.0 million). The
increase in loss for the Year was also mainly driven by the net
impairment losses of approximately HK$837.2 million made on
the carrying amounts of goodwill and other assets under the
Integrated Logistics Handling Business segment, approximately
HK$3.5 million made on the carrying amounts of other assets
under the Petrochemical Products Storage Business segment,
and approximately HK$7.9 million made on the carrying amounts
of other assets under the Trading Business segment respectively.
The loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$946.6 million (2018: loss of approximately
HK$155.6 million) and the basic loss per share was HK cents
73.49 (2018: basic loss per share of HK cents 12.08).

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$788.5 million (2018: approximately HK$591.2
million), including net amounts due to connected companies of
approximately HK$845.7 million (2018: approximately HK$796.4
million).

The Group's equity capital and bank and other borrowings have
been applied to fund its working capital and other operational
needs. The Group's current ratio as at 31 December 2019 was
approximately 0.57 (2018: approximately 0.72).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's gearing ratio (defined as
the ratio of total interest-bearing borrowings to total equity) was
approximately negative 60.6% (2018: approximately 4,443.3%).

EEENWR DN

REAFE AEESSHEREMEERESD
1B F RE#1848,600,000/8 T (T — )\ F  #HE LK
BB R B 445,600,000 7T) c RZE— N E
ZA-t+—R ISR REtEIXERERT
FHEBRFEW BRFRZLCLIREBEEE
MEPEEZBEETER - WHASBZ X5
EBEKNEAMEZZAAFE - REBEKE
WREEESReELEVU(REELEMN])
ZAIRE ¢ EETABRNEEETE - BER
BEBEZFHE  SREATBEREMES -

A& B AR F R 8115 B 18 49945,000,000% 7T (=
T — \4F : 518 #9174,000,00058 7T) ° K E F &
BN REANEEREEADREEERD
HremEBrhEtEEFREREBBFEY
837,200,000 T - At EREREB DA H
b & FE B T (B R (B E5 18 JF B8 493,500,000 7T
MESGEKESBZEMEERMAREESIE
SR EAX7900,000 70 c AR RIEZ A A &L
BT 18 49 5946,600,0008 L (ZZE—N\F  FEL
155,600,000/ 7T) + M & I& & AN &5 48 Al £73.49
BN ZZE—N\F - BREAEIB12.085 1) -

R-E—AF+_A=+—8 KNEBZFiK
&) & (& 49 /788,500,000 T (ZE—N\F: 4
591,200,000/ 70) * BIEE BEE QR FIEF
#9845,700,0007 7T (= ZF — )\ : 49796,400,000
BIT) e

AEBZBEA - ROTEREMEEESAEREE
BEGMNEAMEERTERHRES - AKRER
E-NFT_A=T—HZRBLELELHR0S57
—E-N\F:4072) -

N—_E—HE+-_A=+—H XEFEBZEE
AELEER(TEANTEEELEHESATE Y
L R) 4 5B 60.6% (—F — )\4F : £)4,443.3%) °

BEMEMBEROBRAT 11
2019 3R



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

In order to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the next twelve months and improve the Group’s
current ratio, the directors of the Company will actively pursuing
a series of contingency financing plans, which includes but not
limited to the following measures:

(i)  the unutilised banking facilities readily available to the
Group amounted to approximately HK$29,576,000 at 31
December 2019,

(i) the Group is in negotiation with financial institutions for
the renewals of the Group’s short-term bank borrowings
upon expiry, new borrowings and application of additional
credit facilities;

(i)  the Group is expected to generate adequate cash flows
to maintain its operations; and

(iv) the proposed disposal of 60% equity interests in Jiangsu
Hairong.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's total deficit attributable
to equity holders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$967.5 million (2018: approximately HK$6.4 million). The
capital of the Company only comprised of the ordinary share.
There was no movement in the issued share capital of the
Company during the Year.

Unlisted secured bonds and account charge by
controlling shareholder

On 27 March 2018, the Company, as issuer, )L &k A 288 E R &

EER AR (Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Holdings Limited*, “Jiangsu
Dafeng”), as guarantor, and Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. Hong Kong
Branch (the “Placing Agent”), entered into a placing agreement
pursuant to which the Company agreed to appoint the Placing
Agent as a placing agent for the purpose of procuring, and to
use its best efforts, the subscription of the bonds of up to an
aggregate principal amount of US$50 million (the “Placing”).

EEBIMNEEERBR AT (Dafeng Port Overseas Investment
Holdings Limited*) (“Dafeng Port Overseas”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company, entered into a deed of account
charge (the "Account Charge”) with the security trustee on 29
March 2018, pursuant to which Dafeng Port Overseas assigned
and agreed to assign absolutely to the security trustee, as
trustee for the bondholders, all of Dafeng Port Overseas’ right,
title and interest from time to time in and to each secured
account, which is interested in 740,040,000 shares (the “Shares”)
of the Company, representing approximately 57.46% of the total
issued Shares as at 29 March 2018, as security for the payment
and discharge of the secured obligations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Placing was completed on 29 March 2018. Pursuant to the
results of a book building exercise, the bonds in the principal
amount of US$50 million has been placed to bondholders at a
coupon rate of 7.5% per annum, and terms of 3 years.

The proceeds has been used in construction and repairing of
petrochemical storage tanks and upgrading the supporting
facilities, acquisition of Jiangsu Hairong as well as satisfying the
Group's normal working capital requirement.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 27 March 2018 and 29 March 2018 in relation
to the Placing.

Dividend

The board of directors (the “Board”) did not recommend the
payment of any dividend in respect of the Year (2018: Nil).

Significant investment, material acquisitions and
disposals

On 28 December 2018, the Company and Great Panorama
International Limited entered into the Gamma Logistics Disposal
Agreement to dispose of all its remaining 51% equity interests in
Gamma Logistics, pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to sell, and Great Panorama International Limited
conditionally agreed to purchase 51% equity interests in Gamma
Logistics at the consideration of HK$4.15 million. The Gamma
Disposal was completed on 10 January 2019. Following the
completion of the Gamma Disposal, Gamma Logistics ceased
to be a subsidiary of the Company.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 30 December 2018, 3 January 2019 and 10
January 2019 in relation to the Gamma Disposal.

Save and except for the aforesaid completion of the disposal
of 51% of the issued share capital of Gamma Logistics, the
Group had no significant investment, no material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries and associates during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Pledge of assets

The Group used bank facilities and other borrowings to finance
the expansion of its business. Secured borrowings are secured
by the Group's property, plant and equipment, having carrying
amounts of approximately HK$61.7 million as at 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: approximately HK$66.5 million), sea
use right payments under right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$2.2 million (2018: HK$2.9 million), prepaid lease payments
under right-of-use assets of approximately HK$40.2 million
(31 December 2018: approximately HK$35.1 million), security
deposit for loan from a third party of approximately HK$3.3
million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$3.4 million) and
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$395.6 million as at
31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: approximately HK$307.4
million).

Unlisted secured bonds of US$50 million is secured and
guaranteed by Dafeng Port Overseas entering into Account
Charge with the security trustee on 29 March 2018, pursuant
to which Dafeng Port Overseas assigned and agreed to assign
absolutely all of Dafeng Port Overseas’ rights, titles and interests
from time to time in and to each secured account, Dafeng
Port Overseas is interested in 740,040,000 Shares, representing
approximately 57.46% of the total issued Shares as at 31
December 2019 and at the date of this report.

Foreign currency exposure

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly carried
in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. Exposures to
foreign currency risk arise from certain of the Group's trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables and cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi and US dollars. The Group
mainly adopts measures such as adjusting the time of foreign
exchange receipt and payment, matching the balance of foreign
exchange receipts and payments, and signing foreign exchange
lock agreements with banks to control foreign exchange risks.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its foreign currency risk. The management team of the
Group reviews the foreign currency exposures regularly and
does not expect significant exposure to foreign currency risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employees and emolument policy

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 195
employees (2018:
based in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. During the Year,
the total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted

128 employees for continuing operations)

to approximately HK$25.8 million (2018: approximately HK$29.1
million). The Group reviews the emoluments of its directors
and staff based on their respective qualification, experience,
performance and the market rates so as to maintain the
remunerations of its directors and staff at a competitive level.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2018: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) The outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19)
has caused disruptions to many industries worldwide.
Despite the challenges, governments and international
organizations have implemented a series of measures to
contain the epidemic. The Group will closely monitor the
development of the epidemic and assess its impact on its
operations.

The Company will closely monitor the situation, and assess
its impacts on the Group's financial position and operating
results. At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, such assessment is still ongoing.

(b) On 28 April 2020, B KR EMIEHNKEE S B R A A
(Yancheng Dafeng Heshun International Trading Company
Limited*, “Heshun Trading”),
subsidiary of the Company, and Jiangsu Dafeng entered a

an indirect wholly-owned

share transfer agreement to transfer 60% equity interests
in Jiangsu Hairong to Jiangsu Dafeng at the consideration
of RMB226,980,000 (equivalent to HK$252,947,000). Since
Jiangsu Dafeng was a connected party to the Group, the
completion of the disposal will be subject to the approval
from the shareholders and the regulatory bodies. The
details of the proposed disposal are summarised in the
Company's announcement dated 28 April 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Company attaches great importance to environmental,
social and governance ("ESG”") risks and has been improving
its ESG management. The Board retains overall responsibility
for our ESG governance and establishes an ESG working
group (“We") that reports to the Board to implement ESG
management. During the Year, the Company engaged a
professional third party institution to assist us to thoroughly
evaluate ESG risks and opportunities of the Company,
accordingly establish risk management and internal control
policies, and draft management approaches, strategies, and

objectives.

Meanwhile, We have been actively communicating with our
stakeholders through various channels, for fully understanding
their expectations, interests and information needs with the
help of the professional third party institution. The Company's
key stakeholders include shareholders and investors, customers,
employees, suppliers, the community, etc. We listen to
stakeholders’ feedback via questionnaires, visits, phone calls, to
understand their interests on ESG information. During the Year,
We screened ESG issues that are of importance to the Company
according to stakeholders’ opinions and drafted ESG report

based on such important issues.

A detailed ESG report is set out in pages 51 to 92 of this report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tao Ying (“Mr. Tao”), aged 58, has been appointed as
an executive Director and the chairman of the Board since
18 March 2019. Mr. Tao is also an executive director and the
chairman of the board of Jiangsu Dafeng, in which he has served
since June 2011. Mr. Tao is also currently an executive director
and the chairman of the board of Dafeng Port Overseas, which is
the Company's direct controlling shareholder. From November
2001 to December 2014, he worked in KREWMBKEER
(Dafeng Port Administration Authority*) and his last position
was as deputy secretary, deputy director and principal staff
member. From April 1993 to November 2001, he worked in K%
M A B (Dafeng Port Authority*) and his last position was as
deputy director. From October 1997 to June 2011, he served as
deputy general manager of K& &R 3 E R B MR A A (Dafeng
Port Development and Construction Co., Ltd.*).

Mr. Miao Zhibin (“Mr. Miao”), aged 50, has been re-designated
as an executive Director and the chief executive officer on
28 December 2018. He was a non-executive Director from 26
June 2018 to 27 December 2018. Mr. Miao has been working
as the general manager in EB{EEEERAEMR A (Shanghai
Xinzhi Energy Co., Limited*) since 2004. Mr. Miao is also the
legal representative, the chairman and the general manager of
TEANL B ERBERR AR (Jiangsu Dafeng Port Hairong
Shipping Co., Limited*), an associate of one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company, namely Jiangsu Dafeng. Mr.
Miao graduated from Tsinghua University School of Information
Management System with a bachelor degree in the PRC in 1992.
He later obtained a master degree in business administration
from the University of International Business and Economics in
the PRC in 1995.

Mr. Chen Wenxiang (“Mr. Chen”), aged 46, has been appointed
as an executive Director since 18 March 2019. Mr. Chen joined
the Group on 15 February 2017 and currently is the chief
financial officer of the Company and Heshun Trading, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and he has resigned
all the positions in the holding company and the connected
companies of the Company. He is also a director or/and the
general manager of certain other subsidiaries of the Company.
He holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy and a mid-level
accounting qualification. Mr. Chen has more than 20 years of
experience in the accounting and finance industry. Mr. Chen
worked at L& I # M BR A7 (Jiangsu Super Machinery
Company Limited*) from 1995 to 2010 and his last position was
a deputy general manager of the company. He then worked as
the chief financial officer at T&#HE R GEEXBER AR LA
(Jiangsu Hing Tung Harbour Property Development Company
Limited*) from 2010 to 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
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worked as a deputy general manager at JTEZ GBI EEGR
@] (Jiangsu Huanghai City Industrial Company Ltd.*), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Jiangsu Dafeng, a controlling shareholder
of the Company, from September 2013 to February 2017.

Ms. Leng Panpan (“Ms. Leng”), aged 31, has been appointed
as an executive Director since 27 February 2020. Ms. Leng
joined the Group on 13 May 2019, she currently is the vice chief
executive officer of the Company and is the executive director,
the general manager and the legal representative of Heshun
Trading, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
From August 2013 to May 2019, Ms. Leng consecutively served
as the office manager, head of human resources department and
assistant to general manager in JL# X LB MIER B R AT
(Jiangsu Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited*).
From August 2012 to March 2013, she worked in K &2 gt & 18
E(tR)BREM AT (Dafeng Port Financial Leasing Beijing
Company Limited*), as the assistant to general manager.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ji Longtao (“Mr. Ji"), aged 55, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director since 23 February 2015. He owns 55%
equity interest in each of Success Pacific Investment Group
Limited (“Success Pacific”) and Jiangsu Huahai, which in turn
own 18% and 10% equity interests in the Dafeng Port Overseas
respectively. Mr. Ji owns 50% equity interests of EA¥{ i 248 B %
BBRAA] (Yancheng Longgiao Property Development Limited*),
which is engaged in property development and investment
business. He is a director of Dafeng Port Overseas and an
executive director of Success Pacific and Jiangsu Huahai, both
of which are engaged in investment and asset management
businesses.

Mr. Yang Yue Xia ("Mr. Yang”), aged 47, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director since 12 March 2015. He was an
executive Director from 20 December 2013 to 11 March 2015.
He is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He has
many years of experience in corporate management. Mr. Yang
is currently a director of EYI T KK EHR R AT (Shenzhen
Rongcheng Investment Company Limited*). He gained working
experience across different industries such as trading and
property development.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang (“Dr. Bian"), aged 53, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director since 15 May 2015.
He had been educated in B = H 2 4 K2 (Nanjing University
of Traditional Chinese Medicine*), 1t X E % K2 (Beijing
University of Traditional Chinese Medicine and Pharmacology?*)
and E M B 2 K2 (Guangzhou University of Traditional
Chinese Medicine*) and was conferred the Ph.D. degree in
Integrated Chinese and Western Medicine. Currently, Dr. Bian
serves as a director of the clinical division of the School of
Chinese Medicine, and an associate vice-president of the Hong
Kong Baptist University. He has engaged in clinical and basic
research in digestive diseases and involved in publication
of many experimental and clinical researches. He has been
awarded a second prize of National Science and Technology
Award of China in 1999.

Mr. Lau Hon Kee (“Mr. Lau”), BComm, MPA, FCPA, CPA
(Aust.), aged 49, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 31 May 2016. He was the financial
controller and company secretary of IR Z#MEXEERKH
A BR A A (Shandong Luoxin Pharmaceutical Group Stock Co.
Ltd*) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code:
8058) until 31 December 2017 and a joint company secretary of
Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 1527) until 31
January 2018. Mr. Lau has been an independent non-executive
director of Astrum Financial Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 8333) since 23
June 2016. Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive director
of Strong Petrochemical Holdings Limited (@ company listed
on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 852) from November
2008 to January 2012. Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor’s degree in
commerce from the Australian National University in April 1994
and a master’s degree in professional accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009. Mr. Lau is a CPA of
CPA (Aust.) and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1999. He is also
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 2006.
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Mr. Yu Xugang (“Mr. Yu"), aged 51, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 31 May 2016.
He has been acted as an independent non-executive director
of Central China Securities Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code: 1375) since December 2015.
Mr. Yu was an independent director of Polaris Bay Group Co.,
Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with
stock code: 600155) since December 2016. He was a partner
at Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP from August 2001 to
December 2003 and has been promoted to a senior partner at
Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP since January 2004. Mr. Yu
was an independent director of Da Cheng Fund Management
Company Limited from August 2008 to August 2011. Mr. Yu was
an independent director of Inner Mongolia Baotou Steel Union
Co., Ltd (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with
stock code: 600010), from August 2009 to August 2015, and
an independent director of Hubei Shuangjian Blower Company
Limited (@ company listed on National Equities Exchange and
Quotations with stock code: 833468) from October 2012 to
October 2015. Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from
the China University of Political Science and Law in 1990, a
master’s degree in international economic law from the Peking
University in July 1998 and a doctorate degree in law from the
Peking University in July 2001.

Mr. Zhang Fangmao (“Mr. Zhang"), formerly named &5 X,
aged 55, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director since 1 June 2014. He has over 15 years of experience
in import and export businesses in the PRC. Mr. Zhang served
as a manager of the business department in F B ZR I 48 7 5 [&
#HINVE 5 (&£ B) AT (China Shenzhen Economic Special Zone
Foreign Trade (Group) Corporation*), a state-owned enterprise.
He is a director of FIJITREZEBEM AR QA (Shenzhen
AUDE Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.*). Mr. Zhang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in finance from the Shenzhen University.
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The Board herein presents the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in trading business, the
provision of integrated logistics handling and the relevant
supporting services business as well as petrochemical products
storage business.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in
the section headed” Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 6 to 16 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at the date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 231 of this
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2018: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the revenue attributable to the Group’s largest
and the five largest customers accounted for approximately
16.0% and 46.5% (2018: 21.8% and 54.9%) of the total value of
the Group's revenue, respectively.

During the Year, the purchases attributable to the Group's
largest and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 24.7% and 65.2% (2018: 10.8% and 20.2%) of the
total value of the Group's purchases, respectively.

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their close associates, or any shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the Year.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
There is no change in share of the Company during the Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2019 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

The Company and its subsidiaries did not redeem, purchase or
cancel any of their redeemable securities either.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company comprising
share premium account of HK$201.4 million and accumulated
losses amounted to approximately HK$561.7 million. Details of
the Company’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2019
are set out in note 38(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
Movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 107
of this report.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the Year.
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 232 of
this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tao Ying (Chairman) (appointed on 18 March 2019)
Mr. Ni Xiangrong (Chairman) (resigned on 18 March 2019)
Mr. Shum Kan Kim (resigned on 22 February 2020)

Mr. Pan Jian (resigned on 18 March 2019)

Mr. Miao Zhibin

Mr. Chen Wenxiang (appointed on 18 March 2019)

Ms. Leng Panpan (appointed on 27 February 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ji Longtao
Mr. Yang Yue Xia
Mr. Sun Lin (resigned on 20 February 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang
Mr. Lau Hon Kee
Mr. Yu Xugang

Mr. Zhang Fangmao

Biographical details of the Directors currently in service are set
out on pages 17 to 20 of this report.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles, Ms. Leng Panpan
as an executive Director will hold office until the AGM and, being
eligible, offer herself for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles, Mr. Yang Yue Xia
and Mr. Ji Longtao as non-executive Directors and Mr. Zhang
Fangmao as an independent non-executive Director will retire
from office by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received from each independent non-
executive director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Board
considers them independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company and is subject to termination by either party giving
not less than three months’ prior written notice to the other.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent

non-executive Directors) has entered into service contract
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance

with the Articles.
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ remuneration is subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Remuneration Committee with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

During the Year, Mr. Tao Ying, Mr. Ni Xiangrong and Mr. Pan
Jian have waived their emoluments, which was HK$754,000,
HK$206,000 and HK$129,000 respectively.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note
10(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees and their emoluments are set
out in note 10(iv) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME, CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives, recognising and
acknowledging the contributions that eligible persons had made
or may make to the Group. The Scheme was adopted pursuant
to the written resolution passed by the sole shareholder of the
Company on 3 August 2013. The expiry date of the Scheme is
2 August 2023. For further details of the Scheme, please refer
to note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. Since the
Scheme came into effect after the Company was listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange, no share options have been granted,
exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Scheme and
there were no outstanding share options under the Scheme as
at 31 December 2019 and as at the date of this report.

Up to 31 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries have
not issued or granted any convertible securities, warrants or
other similar rights.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

RZB-NF+_A=+—B #HMEEFHAE
NAIEBITRABRARFHERBEER (E
HERERBAMFNE)BHF ALK ([F
REEERDEXVE) Z B - HER D RE
BET  BETAREBEESLBEGMIEXVER
FTR87 B MG AN J B R P2 8 a8 8%
B (BREREES R EGRDIA B GRS F K
EFREREAZRDIRR) IRBEEHFK
HA & 16k P 58 35216 78 & R 10 5% 16 S FT at & &L iR
Mmook B HIRBEGEM LR A F5.46
ESHGEREFETESRIZIREANE
ARB RIS EIRE

BRESTE  THrREE  RRE
= B HE LR R

ARRRABBRESS((ZTH]) §EHE
EEEAREMALEHIKEAKEFLZE
Bl e ZAtBIIRBEARAE-BRRR-_F—=
FAAZABBZEEMAZREM - ZtEK
RZZE-=ZF/\A-HER - BEZXTE 2£&
— G F2HRAME WA E30 - B
P8I N AR R B A BT GEM _ETH & A BRUA K
BB T BRERE X ERD - TEKE
ARRFEHE  BERZE-hEF+ZA=+—HK
AHERAH  ZFFEBEBTIHERRITEZBK
1 e

BEZZ-NF+ZA=+—RH A7 R&EH
BARYEBTHRBEMAIRERES  BIK
RERE S H AR SR LUE R -

HRNERBERGERAR 25
2019 3R



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Capacity/

Name of shareholders Nature of interests

BRERE®

Dafeng Port Overseas (Note 3)

56 HEMEE

Beneficial owner and have

TERRESERAEMATRARAF
BoOREERDZEZR KR

RZE-NF+-_A=1+—RH BEZMHH A
TAL /BB (EEAARFEETHABRIN
RARBIRMABEBROTHERARBRERES
RIBEF M BEEROEXVEFE2NM37 BIEXA
FMARBRBEZEDIORE > KL ARRAR
BESNMBAERIEBGRARTFESCMZE
BIARRWT:

provided an interest in the shares
as security to a person other than

a qualified lender

REEFI(HE 3

EmEAN XER—RBRAER

BB ANAINZ AT 1R BB 1D

BafERER

Jiangsu Dafeng (Note 4)

L AR A & (B 5E4) SAEHE B R

ANEEARB (the People's
Government of Dafeng District®)
("PGDD") (Note 4)

REBARBF(KREBARBAFD
(Bt 5x4)

542 ) L 25

Mr. Jiang Wen (Note 5)

interest of spouse
2= X 5t A& (P 3E5)
(SRR

Ms. Li Qiu Hua (Note 6)
spouse

FE 2+ (K 5H6) EREBAREBED
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Interest of controlled corporation

Interest of controlled corporation

Beneficial owner, interest of
controlled corporation and

Beneficial owner and interest of

BEREBAN ZEHEEEZR R

% of the

Number of Company’s issued
Shares held share capital
(Note 1) (Approximate)
EARRT

Fris B8R EBRITRAE
(FiFEE1)  MBE D (BEA)
740,040,000 (L)/(S) 57.46%
740,040,000 (L)/(S) 57.46%
740,040,000 (L)/(S) 57.46%
78,650,000 (L) 6.11%
78,650,000 (L) 6.11%



Notes:

The letter “L" denotes a long position in the interest in the issued share

capital of the Company.

The letter “S” denotes a short position in the interest in the issued share

capital of the Company.

Dafeng Port Overseas entered into an account charge with the security
trustee on 29 March 2018, pursuant to which Dafeng Port Overseas
assigned and agreed to assign absolutely all of Dafeng Port Overseas’
rights, titles and interests from time to time in and to each secured
account, which had 740,040,000 Shares of approximately 57.46% of the
total issued Shares as 31 December 2019.

Dafeng Port Overseas is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, and is owned as to 40% by Jiangsu Dafeng, which in turn
is wholly owned by PGDD.

Jiangsu Dafeng and PGDD are deemed to be interested in the Shares of
the Company held by Dafeng Port Overseas under the SFO.

Mr. Jiang Wen, the director, the general manager and the legal
representative of AIEAXMERORI)BR AT (Qianhai Mingtian
Supply Chain (Shenzhen) Company Limited*) (“Qianhai Mingtian”) which
is an indirect subsidiary of the Company, directly and beneficially owns
54,530,000 Shares. Ms. Li Qiu Hua, the spouse of Mr. Jiang Wen, directly
and beneficially owns 10,520,000 Shares. Jing Ji (Holdings) Co., Limited, a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Jiang Wen, directly and beneficially owns
13,600,000 Shares. As such, under the SFO, Mr. Jiang Wen is deemed, or
taken to be, interested in 78,650,000 Shares.

Ms. Li Qiu Hua directly and beneficially owns 10,520,000 Shares. As Mr.
Jiang Wen's spouse, she is, under the SFO, deemed to be, or taken to
be, interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Jiang Wen is

interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors

were

not aware of any other persons or entities (other than

the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had

interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of

the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

As informed by Mr. Jiang Wen on 3 January 2020, Mr. Jiang

Wen

sold 1,800,000 Shares by his personal account after

31 December 2019. As a result, Mr. Jiang Wen directly and
beneficially owned 52,730,000 Shares, Jing Ji (Holding) Co.,
Limited directly and beneficially owned 13,600,000 Shares, and
Ms. Li Qiuhua directly and beneficially owned 10,520,000 Shares
by 2 January 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary
of such ultimate holding company a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or any other body corporate, neither the
Directors nor any of their spouses or children under the age of
18 had any right to subscribe for the securities or debt securities
of the Company or had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any of the Company’s directors or an entity connected with a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time

during the Year.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Exempted continuing connected transactions
Financial assistance received by the Group

The details of financial assistance received by the Group from
connected companies are set out in note 27(c) to the financial
statements.

Since the financial assistance received by the Company is
provided on normal commercial terms and is not secured by the
assets of the Group, according to Rule 20.88 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the financial assistance received by the Company was
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
and the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer Shares on a pro rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors on 7 May 2020, as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of the annual report,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float in the issued
share capital of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As B KRLEEEHHR AT (Yancheng Dafeng Bi Port
Trading Limited*) ("Dafeng Bi Port”) has ceased its business,
Jiangsu Dafeng, a controlling shareholder of the Company,
has two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely K28
BB E S HRAAF (Dafeng Hairong International Trade
Co., Ltd) ("Dafeng Hairong”) and EH M EHEEEEBR
‘A7) (Yancheng City Gangcheng Commercial Management
Co., Ltd) ("Yancheng Commercial”), and has an indirect non-
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely JT# & B O R ERBR
2\l (Jiangsu Yueda Harbour Logistics Development Company
Limited*) (“Yueda Logistics”) which are engaged in trading of
various goods including coals, metal ores, non-metallic ores,
non-ferrous metal, chemical products, non-metal construction
materials, scrap steel and wood. Whereas the Company has
also developed the business of trading of electronic products,
petrochemical products and various other products through
Heshun Trading, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and its subsidiaries, and Qianhai Mingtian and its
subsidiary. Accordingly, the businesses of Jiangsu Dafeng and
its subsidiaries (the “Jiangsu Dafeng Group”) may be construed
as businesses which compete with or are likely to compete with
one of the core principal activities of the Group. The Board
considered that the businesses of the Jiangsu Dafeng Group do
not pose material competitive threat to the Group because the
Group and Jiangsu Dafeng Group have different focuses on the
type of products offered which target at different customers in
the market.
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Other than Mr. Tao Ying (appointed as an executive Director
on 18 March 2019), Mr. Ni Xiangrong (resigned as an executive
Director on 18 March 2019) and Mr. Pan Jian (resigned as an
executive Director on 18 March 2019) who are the directors of
Jiangsu Dafeng, there is no overlap in the directorships among
the Company, Jiangsu Dafeng, Dafeng Hairong, Yancheng
Commercial and Yueda Logistics. The Directors consider that
the Board can operate independently from Jiangsu Dafeng,
because (i) pursuant to the Articles, a Director shall not vote on
any board resolutions approving any contract or arrangement
or any other proposal in which such Director or any of his
associates has a material interest nor shall he be counted in
the quorum present at the meeting; and (ii) the Directors are
fully aware of their fiduciary duties owing to the shareholders of
the respective companies and their duty to avoid conflicts with
the shareholders of the respective companies and their duty to
avoid conflicts of interests in carrying out their respective duties
as directors of the relevant companies.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, none of the Directors,
controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective
close associates had any interests in a business, which competes
or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly with the
business of the Group which would be required to be disclosed
under Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries
to all the Directors, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings and its code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

A detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 32
to 50 of this report.

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited acted as the auditor of the Group for the
Year.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019 were audited by Mazars CPA
Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-
appoint Mazars CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Tao Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 May 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules during the Year. The
Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices
standard, comply with regulatory requirements and meet the

in order to enhance its corporate governance

growing expectations of shareholders and investors.
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
Conduct on share dealings

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiries to all the Directors who have confirmed their
compliance with the required standard of dealings and the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
throughout the Year. No incident of non-compliance was noted
by the Company during the Year.

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

Board of directors

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is comprised of 10
members, including four executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tao

Miao Zhibin, Mr. Chen Wenxiang and
Ms. Leng Panpan, two non-executive Directors,

Ying (chairman), Mr.
namely, Mr.
Ji Longtao and Mr. Yang Yue Xia and four independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang, Mr. Lau Hon
Kee, Mr. Yu Xugang and Mr. Zhang Fangmao.

The Company has received annual written confirmations from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of their independence to the Company in accordance with the
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
believes that their independence is in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules as at the date of this report.
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Directors’ training

All Directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as
a Director, and of the conduct and business activities of the
Company. During the Year, the Company had organised a
professional seminar conducted by a professional firm which
provided the Directors with updates on the latest development
and changes in the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements. All Directors including newly
appointed Directors were provided with written training reading
materials.

The Directors were also provided with regular updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each of the Directors to discharge their
duties. The secretary of the Company from time to time updated
and provided written training materials to the Directors relating
to the roles, functions and duties of a director.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on directors’ training. During the
Year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by reading materials or attending seminars/
briefing sessions to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company.
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Board process

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days were
given to all Directors of a regular Board meeting. For all other
Board meetings, reasonable notice were given to all Directors.
The Board delegates necessary powers and authorities to
the executive Directors to facilitate the efficient day-to-day
management of the Group's business. During the Year, the Board
held 6 scheduled full Board meetings. In addition, executive
Board meetings were convened when necessary to deal with
day-to-day matters that required the Board’'s prompt decisions,
and therefore usually only executive Directors attended such
meetings. Individual attendance records of full Board meetings
and committees meetings are set out on page 35 of this report.
Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and
would abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions subject
to certain exceptions set out in the Articles and the matters to
be dealt with by the Board would be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors who have no material interest in the
transaction and their close associates would be entitled to
attend the Board meeting. The secretary of the Company
maintains minutes of the Board meetings and meetings of
Board committees for inspection by the Directors. All Directors
have access to the services of the secretary of the Company
who regularly updates the Board on corporate governance and
regulatory matters. Any Director, audit committee member,
remuneration committee member and nomination committee
member of the Company may seek independent professional
advice at the expense of the Company should they so wish.
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Board and board committee attendance

The following table indicates the number of Board meetings,
committee meetings and general meetings throughout the Year,
and the number of attendance by each of the Directors:

Board

Exg® ENZSR

Committee

TEERRSE

EFZSERESZETHER

Ti‘%f‘aﬁf\#$$fﬁqﬁi”25$ g3 %8

ERERBRRRGRE  UREESZHER
%{ :
Number of meetings attended/held
hE/BTzeEHE
Legal
Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ Compliance General
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
HBEER
¥MzEe REZEE ZE8 BRRAE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Ni Xiangrong (Note 1) {52 1m 5% 5% 4 (B 51) 171 - - 171 - -
Mr. Shum Kan Kim (Note 2) £ B {& % & (M 32) bl6 - - - 4/4 1/1
Mr. Pan Jian (Note 3) }ﬂ;ﬁi([‘ﬁéﬁ) 01 - 01 - - -
Mr. Miao Zhibin BEMEE b/ - - - - 1/1
Mr. Tao Ying (Note 4) M % 5 A (M Ea) 4/5 - 171 /1
Mr. Chen Wenxiang (Note 5) B 303 % 4 (i 325) 5/5 - 1" 4/4 n
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Ji Longtao BRELAE 6/6 - - - - 1
Mr. Yang Yue Xia BUERE 4/6 - - - - 17
Mr. Sun Lin (Note 6) B A (B 26 6/ - - - 3/4 0/1
Independent Non-executive BYFHTEE
Directors
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang ThEEL 6/6 5/6 22 - - 1
Mr. Lau Hon Kee HEREAE 6/ bl6 2/2 2/2 - 171
Mr. Yu Xugang Ta&pLsE 5/6 - - - - 1N
Mr. Zhang Fangmao RHREE 5/6 5/6 - 2/2 - 101
Notes: B 7 -
1. resigned on 18 March 2019 1. RZZE-—hAF=AT\BHEE
2. resigned on 22 February 2020 2. REZEZEFZA -+ ZHET
3. resigned on 18 March 2019 3. RZZE-—hAF=AT\BHEE
4. appointed on 18 March 2019 4. R-ZZE-NF=ZA+/\BEZEMT
5. appointed on 18 March 2019 5. RZZE-NF=ZAT+/\BEEZT
6. resigned on 20 February 2020 6. REZEZTF-A -+ HEE

Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors
should attend general meetings. During the Year, all of the
independent non-executive Directors and other non-executive
Directors attended the general meetings of the Company in
person or through telecommunication.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the Chairman
held a meeting with independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors on 22 March 2019.
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Directors’ duties

The Board in charge of leadership and supervision on the
Group's affairs and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group. Each Director has a duty to act in good
faith and in the best interests of the Company.

Matters that require decisions by the Board normally include
but not limited to overall Group strategies, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual and interim results, recommendation on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors, and other
significant operational and financial matters. The Directors are
kept up-to-date by monthly management information on a
timely basis as well as on major changes that may affect the
Group's businesses, including relevant rules and regulations.
The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
financial statements and have them audited on an annual basis.
The Company has adopted the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong in preparing financial statements.
Reasonable and prudent judgement and estimates have been
made. The Group announces its financial results on a timely
basis.

Senior management’s duties

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the senior management of the
Company which include evaluating business and operational
performances, ensuring effective implementation of the
Board's decisions, ensuring adequate funding and monitoring
performance of the management of the Group. The senior
management of the Company is being closely monitored by the
Board and is accountable for the performance of the Company
as measured against the business targets and management
directions set by the Board. The senior management of the
Company and the management of the relevant subsidiaries met
together on regular basis to review and discuss operational
and financial matters in order to enhance and strengthen
internal communications and cooperation within the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks were periodically reviewed.

Indemnification of directors and officers

The Company's Articles of Association provides that every
Director is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all losses or liabilities which they
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
their office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out directors liability insurance, which
provides appropriate cover for the Directors and directors the
subsidiaries of Group before 14 October 2019.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the role of
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

During the Year, Mr. Tao Ying is the chairman of the Board
and an executive Director (following the resignation of Mr.
Ni Xiangrong on 18 March 2019) and was responsible for
overall strategic planning, development, decision making and
management of senior executives of the Group. Mr. Tao Ying,
as chairman of the Board, was responsible for reviewing and
approving the agenda of each Board meeting prepared by
the company secretary of the Company. Mr. Tao Ying was also
responsible for taking the primary responsibility for ensuring
that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established.

Mr. Miao Zhibin is an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company and is responsible for the corporate
strategic planning, execution and day-to-day management and
administration of the Group's business and operation.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has received appropriate delegation of its functions
and powers and has established appropriate Board committees,
with specific written terms of reference in order to manage and
monitor specific aspects of the Group's affairs. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange and are available to
the shareholders of the Company upon request. The Board and
the Board committees are provided with all necessary resources
including the advice of external auditor, external legal advisers
and other independent professional advisors as needed.

In relation to the Board’'s corporate governance functions, the
Board has determined the policy of the corporate governance
of the Company and has performed its duties by firstly,
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance; secondly, reviewing and monitoring
the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; thirdly, developing and monitoring
the codes of conduct applicable to the Directors and employees
of the Company; fourthly, reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report, and lastly, receiving and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors.
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The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), (the
Committee”) and a legal compliance committee (the “Legal

a nomination committee “"Nomination

Compliance Committee”) with defined terms of reference. The

SIRABUNFNTES REZEQIER

Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee are chaired EEBZEF MERAMZETEREA—LH

by independent non-executive Directors, the Nomination fT&E%E °

Committee is chaired by the chairman of the Board and the

Legal Compliance Committee is chaired by an executive

Director.

(@) Audit Committee @) BRZEE®
The Audit Committee was established on 3 August 2013 EREEEN_E—=FNAA=ZBK L
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules HEMBESHERSGEM EMRAE5.28
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision 529 R EEATRISFAIG X EC3.3
C.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is currently BZHE BERLZEGEABH=%2B K
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors, MITEFZERELEE(ER)  FAEEL
namely Mr. Lau Hon Kee (chairman), Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang DR AR EHEK -  BERZETEE 2 EE
and Mr. Zhang Fangmao. The primary duties of the Audit BEARZERBERIBZEMAESTS
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board RHHEEBER  ERMEREXRIEBEE
on the appointment and removal of the external auditor, HJ«‘/\ K 5t B 7 Eﬁtﬁr—& HER WE
review the financial statements and related materials and EAEBE s APEZERRABRER RS ©
provide advice in respect of the financial reporting process
and oversee the internal control and risk management
system of the Group.
During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the RAFE BERZESEEHAEEZZE
quarterly, interim and annual results of the Group and B HHEEFEES THEHZHMEER
reviewed, with both the auditor and management, the EXREHMEANEZARARTE L
audit approach and methodology applies, and in particular HEFAFEZHMBRENBEREZE
to those key audit matters included in the annual auditor’s B BEZEZEENCEHNEAEE 2 NEE
report. The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal TRF(BRENE KERERETEUAR
control procedures of the Group, including financial, [ g % 2R B BB ) LA R AN B A B 2R Az 50 P
operational and compliance controls and risk management BHMWERRSE -
functions as well as the findings reports from the internal
audit department of the Company.

(b) Remuneration Committee b) FTHEES

38

The Remuneration Committee was established on
3 August 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee is currently comprised of
one executive Director, Mr. Chen Wenxiang, and two
independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang
(chairman) and Mr. Lau Hon Kee. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to our Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to the Directors and senior management
of our Group, review and evaluate their performance in
order to make recommendations on the remuneration
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package of each of the Directors and members of the
senior management as well as other employee benefit
arrangements.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee determined
the policy for the remuneration of the Directors, assessed
performance of the Directors and approved the terms
of the Directors’ service contracts. The Remuneration
Committee also reviewed, confirmed and recommended
to the Board the remuneration package of each of the

Directors and senior management of the Company.
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 3 August
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision A.5.2 of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is currently comprised of one executive
Director, Mr. Tao Ying (chairman) and two independent
Lau Hon Kee and Mr.
Zhang Fangmao. The primary duties of the Nomination

non-executive Directors, Mr.

Committee are to nominate potential candidates for
directorship, review the nomination of Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company had adopted the board diversity policy in
accordance with the requirements as set out in the CG
Code. The Board recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition
to educational background, professional experience, skill,
knowledge and length of service.

The Board currently has one female member. The Board
will take opportunity to increase the proportion of
female members over time when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for Board

appointments.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board diversity policy, to ensure the
effectiveness of the Board diversity policy and discuss any
revision that may be required and recommend any such
revision to the Board for consideration and approval.

TREL®RE

BBkt SEEeRERAER
B RE 2 H A AR EME TREF

THIRHEBER -
RAFE FHZESCH EEEZFH M

BER - HEEEZRARMLEEEZRE
BRGR - FHEZEENCEHANERS
EENARNRSRERABZHFMAES
TRtAEESRHEEETR -

REZBE

REZEBEER-_ZE—=F/\A=HK "
HEABESEFT AL EE AT
IESCEASEZHRT - RBZEECBATA
—RRTEEMERE(ER)ULRMEE
VIRTEZRRZEERAERTAELEE
Wk - REZEBEGZEEHREARRABLME
EEANE BHESTRBUREZEESTR
EETTRHEHEBER -

ESEZNBE

ARRBERE D EE A TR E R E K
MEZEREZTEEE BEFSRRAYL
RPEEZ TLETEURSAFARRE
BEZ# e ZTLEFTEARSE —RIZ
TEHEBEREE BEEES FEK
B - B MENMRBERIN - TEEE
TRRMER - Fie  XEERRERK -

EXCEMEA - RLIMEKE - EFEH
HUBERNRERAEZTGRHEERZA
BEEANEGAZEER  WNZEKED
He

REZBEEHENLREREZTSZ TR
RNER WEREFSZT/ILERRNEA
R A K 5w AE 7] 7 B AR BB AT L A
EFEeRLEBITER  HEFEEELE
Bt o

HRNERBERGERAR 39
2019 3R



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBE

40

Nomination Policy

When making

recommendations regarding the

appointment of any proposed candidate(s) to the Board
or re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board
based on the Board diversity policy, the Articles and
other appropriate rules and regulations, the Nomination
Committee shall consider a variety of factors including
without limitation the followings in assessing the suitability
of the proposed candidate:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

Reputation for integrity;

Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the
relevant industry and other relevant sectors;

Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest
and attention to the Company’s business;

Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience (professional or otherwise), skills and
knowledge;

The ability to assist and support management and
make significant contributions to the Company’s
success;

Compliance with the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules for the appointment of an independent non-
executive Director; and

Any other relevant factors as may be determined by
the Nomination Committee or the Board from time
to time.

Procedures for the appointment of any proposed
candidate(s) to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board are as follows:

(i)

The secretary of the Nomination Committee
shall invite nominations of candidate(s) from
Board members (if any), for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also nominate candidates for its consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed
candidate(s) to the Board,
Committee shall undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of such individual and make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and

the Nomination

approval.
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(i) In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election at a
general meeting.

(iv) The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during
the Year included:

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;

(i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed change to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;

(i)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships;

(iv) to review the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee; and

(v) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
Board's structure, number of members and composition
taking into account the Board diversity policy and formed
the view that the Board has maintained an appropriate mix
and balance of skills, knowledge, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business
requirements of the Company.
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(d)

42

ERERARSE

Legal Compliance Committee

The Legal Compliance Committee was established
on 30 April 2013, which is mainly responsible for the
Group's internal control matters and to ensure the proper
compliance of the laws and regulations relevant to the
Group's operations as well as the adequacy and the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control measures.

The members of the Legal Compliance Committee
Chen
Leng Panpan, one non-

currently comprises two executive Directors, Mr.
Wenxiang (chairman) and Ms.
executive Director Mr. Yang Yue Xia and the secretary of
the Company, Ms. Xu Jing.

The Legal Compliance Committee also assists the Board
in overseeing the Group's corporate governance functions
which include but not limited to the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Group's policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board on a quarterly basis;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(ili)  to review and monitor the Group's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors
and employees of the Group; and

(v)  to review the Group's compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the corporate governance report.
During the Year, the Legal Compliance Committee
held four meetings to review the internal control and
compliance matters and the findings of which were
reported to the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board is committed to providing a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the financial performance and
prospects of the Group in all the disclosures made to the
shareholders of the Company and the regulatory authorities.

Timely release of quarterly, interim and annual results
announcements reflects the Board's commitment to providing
transparent and up-to-date disclosures of the Group's
performance.

The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee, oversees the
financial reporting process and the quality of the financial
reporting of the Group. The Audit Committee reviews and
monitors the integrity of the Group's quarterly, interim and
annual financial statements. It also reviews the appropriateness
of the Group’s accounting policies and the changes to these
policies as well as ensuring these financial statements to comply
with accounting standards and regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the accounts of the Company and the external auditor
acknowledges its responsibilities in respect of financial
reporting which are set out in the independent auditor’s report
on page 93 of this report.

External Auditor

The Audit Committee recommends the re-appointments of
Mazars CPA Limited as the auditor of the Group and the Board
has adopted such recommendation.

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor,
Mazars CPA Limited, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services provided by the auditors of the Company are as follows:

Category of services

B %% & &

Audit services

ERRB

Audit fee for the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining
sound systems of risk management and internal control and
also reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests of the
shareholders, customers, employees, and the Group's assets.
However, such systems are designed to manage the Group's
risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the Group,
and can only provide reasonable assurance and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group and this process includes enhancing the systems of risk
management and internal control from time to time in response
to the changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

The Board always regards risk management and internal
control process as an important task and believes that effective
corporate risk management and internal control process is an
essential element of good corporate governance. The Legal
Compliance Committee and the Audit Committee have been
established by the Board, which are responsible for monitoring
and reviewing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.

During the Year, the Company established internal audit
department to carry out review on the internal control system
and risk management system of the Group. The review involves
all material monitoring aspects, including but not limited to
The
internal audit team has conducted analysis and assessment

finance, operation, compliance and risk management.
on the adequacy and the effectiveness of the internal control
system and risk management of the Group, and has submitted
the findings and rectification measures to the Audit Committee

and the Board.
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Risk Management
Control environment

The Group believes that risk management is the responsibility
of everyone within the Group. It aims to develop risk awareness
and control responsibility as our culture and the foundation of
our internal control system. The internal control system applies
to the Group's critical business processes including strategy
development, business planning, investment decisions, capital
allocation and day-to-day operations.

The Group also believes that corporate governance is often
associated with business ethics. In order to ensure the
Company's reputation be enhanced by the honest, loyal and
ethical behaviours of its staff, the Group has formulated a
formal staff code and whistleblowing policy. Furthermore, the
Group has from time to time arranged different levels of staff,
ranging from top management to front-line staff, to participate
in a series of business ethics seminars conducted by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption, reputed lecturers
or internal audit functions of the Company and the Group in
order to enhance the staff's recognition and commitment to the
staff code.

Management has also conducted annual self-check to see
whether the rules and guidelines specified in the staff code
have been properly adhered to, and the respective written
declarations have been documented and reported to the Audit
Committee.

Control activities

The Group's control activities have been built on regular top-

level reviews, segregation of duties and physical controls.

Currently, the key features of the internal control system include:

J the design of an organisational structure with defined lines
of responsibility and delegation of authority;

o the setup and adherence of authorisation and approval
limits of the Company and each business unit;

o the establishment of policies and procedures to support
deployment of management’s directives; and

o the systems and procedures to identify and mitigate risks
on an ongoing basis.
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Major operational risk factors and measures

The Group seeks to have risk management features embedded
in the day-to-day operations. At the beginning of each year, the
Group conducted a risk assessment on the existing or potential
risks that may impact the achievement of business objectives
over the course of business operation. The assessment includes
potential likelihood and impact of the identified risks. For the
risks identified, the Group determined the action plans and
management targets. The management of each business unit
of the Group is responsible for managing their respective day-
to-day operating risks, and implementing measures to mitigate
such risks.

Corporate affairs department monitors the implementation of
risk management, and continuously reviews and assesses the
efficiency and adequacy of action plans on a regular basis. Such
assessment results will be regularly communicated and reported
to the Legal Compliance Committee and the Board.

During the Year, the Legal Compliance Committee and the
Board were not aware of any unexpected adverse changes that
were significant to the risks related to the Group’s businesses.

Internal Control

The Board recognises the overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance, and review of an internal control
system that provides reasonable assurance of the reliability and
integrity of financial and operational information, effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, the safeguarding of assets and
the compliance with laws and regulations and reviews the
internal control system annually. This system of internal control
is designed to manage rather than eliminate all risks of failure
where its goal is to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
regarding the achievement of organisational objectives.

The Company has an internal audit function to perform the
review on the internal control system of the Group (including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk

management functions).

The Audit Committee comprising three independent non-
executive Directors, which will retain overall responsibility for the
internal control matters of the Group and assess the robustness
of our regulatory compliance procedures and system reviewed
by the Legal Compliance Committee to ensure, among other
things, that the Group fully complies with all applicable laws
and regulations relevant to our operations. In addition, the
Audit Committee will make recommendations to the Board for
the improvement of our regulatory compliance procedures and
system as is necessary.
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The Board conducted a review of the internal control system of
the Group for the Year. Having reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control system through the Audit Committee,
the Legal Compliance Committee and the external auditor,
which covers all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance control and risk management functions, the
Board is satisfied that such system is effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary plays an important role in supporting the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and the
Board committees. The company secretary advises the Board on
corporate governance matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of Directors. The company secretary
also attends and ensures that all Board and Board committees
meetings are properly convened, and that accurate and proper
record of the proceeding and resolutions passed are taken and
maintained. The Board approves the selection, appointment
or dismissal of the company secretary. The company secretary
reports to the chairman of the Board and/or chief executives of
the Company. All Directors have direct access to the advice and
services of the company secretary.

As at the end of 31 December 2019, Ms. Xu Jing is the company
secretary and employee of the Company. During the Year, Ms.
Xu Jing has confirmed that she has taken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Articles, shareholders are requested to follow
article 58 of the Articles to propose new resolutions at the
general meetings. Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, general
meetings shall be convened by any one or more members holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one
(21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Dividend Policy

The Company may consider the declaring and paying dividends
to the shareholders of the Company provided that the Group
records profits and that the declaration and payment of
dividends does not affect the normal operations of the Group.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia:

the general financial condition of the Group;
ii. capital and debt level of the Group;

iii.  future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

iv.  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

V. the general market conditions; and
vi.  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Detailed procedures for our shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company's
website.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board of the Company by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1009,
Exchange Tower, 33 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong by post for the attention of the secretary of the
Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with our
shareholders is essential for ensuring that they are provided
with timely access to important information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, governance and risk profile, in order to
enable them to exercise their rights in an informed manner.

General meetings of the Company provide the best opportunity
for exchange of views between the Board and our shareholders
by maintaining an on-going dialogue with our shareholders.

o Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote on their
behalf if they are unable to attend.

J The process of general meetings will be monitored and
reviewed by the Board on a continuous and regular basis
to ensure that shareholders’ needs are best served and, if
necessary, changes will be made to safeguard shareholders’
interests.

o The chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees will attend general
meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. The chairman
of the independent board committee or, in his absence,
other members of the independent board committee, will
also be available to answer shareholders’ questions at
general meetings convened for the approval of connected
transactions or any other transactions that are subject to
independent shareholders’ approval.

o The Board will ensure appropriate arrangement is in
place to encourage shareholders’ participation in general
meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREREE

In an effort to enhance communications with shareholders
and investors, the Company maintains a website (www.dfport.
com.hk) to disseminate information relating to the Company’s
information such as announcements, circulars, financial
statements and notices of general meetings. The Company
regards the AGM as an important event as it provides direct
communication between the Board and its shareholders. All
shareholders of the Company are given at least a minimum of 20
clear business days notice of the date and venue of the AGM at
which time the Directors and committee members are available

to answer questions on the business.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the Year, there had been no change in the Company’s
constitutional document.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report is the third annual environmental, social and
governance ("ESG") report issued by Dafeng Port Heshun
Technology Company Limited (“the Company”, "we”) for the
period covering 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. This
report comprehensively explains the Company’s environmental,
social and corporate governance performance and management
policy in 2019, focusing on matters of concern of stakeholders.

In the process of writing this report, we strive to cover the
information covered by the Stock Exchange’s four major
principles of importance, quantification, balance, and
consistency. We will continue to strengthen the collection of
information to enhance our performance and disclosure on

sustainable development issues.
SCOPE OF THE REPORT

The policy document, declaration and data set out in this report
cover the Company and our major subsidiaries.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This report is principally prepared by reference to the revised
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” ("ESG
Reporting Guide") issued by the Stock Exchange in December
2015. Those aspects and content of general disclosure defined
in the ESG Reporting Guide which are considered to be relevant
and material to the Group's businesses and operations will be
presented under the four subject areas, namely: Environmental,
Employment and Labour, Operational Practices and Community.

This report is determined according to a set of systematic
procedures which includes identifying and ranking major
stakeholders and ESG-related issues, defining the extent of
information covered in this ESG report, collecting relevant
materials and data, preparing data based on the collected
information, and examining the data in this report.

DATA AND RELIABILITY STATEMENT

The disclosures in this report are mainly extracted from the
Company's statistical reports and relevant documents and the
Company undertakes that this report does not contain any false
information or misleading statement, and takes charge of the
responsibility for the contents of this report as to its authenticity,
accuracy and completeness.
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R HERERRSE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and senior
management team of the Company have proceed with this
report to ensure that there are no false information, misleading
statements or major omissions in the contents of this report.

This report is approved and authorised for issue by the Board
on 7 May 2020.

CHAPTER ONE RESPONSIBILITY GOVERNANCE

The principal businesses of the Company include the trading
and import and export businesses of electronic products,
petrochemical products and other products, the terminal
handling and berthing services in the Yangtze River Delta
region and the storage services for petrochemical products.
In order to better identify and manage the ESG risks related
to the diversified businesses of the Company, the Company
established an ESG working group led by the general manager
office to jointly carry out the ESG management together
with the safety management committee and other relevant
key departments of the Company. The ESG working group
is responsible to communicate with the stakeholders of the
Company, identify and evaluate the ESG risks in relation to the
Company'’s operations, collect and analyze the Company’s ESG
information, and report important ESG matters to the Board on
a regular basis.

ApEmE= (BB e (EEEDNERER
ABEBRHARERNRTETES - UBERERA
A FEEMERLCHE  REERAKEKNE

K|WER=
B o

F—=

KRB TLEBBRE - ETER AILERK
ZRREMERZ2ESRELDER  RZAD
EHBEEELEARSE  URALLERERH
¥ - ARERRH S L EBHEBESGRR K
HBIEEIE  RNBEY AL AT ENESG
TENE  HRAGLZE2EEZESR EMtEA
BREP AR EESGE IR T/ - ESGT{E/NAE
BERARMNZHESBEE S ETEHERA
BEHBESGREM - ER K DT REIESGEE -
VT EHRNESSEREZESGEER °

E_EFRTALRREGESSHE

BEEaE

ESG Governance Structure of the Company
FATESGERRE

ESG Decision-makers
ESGIR %

matters

The Board is responsible for the review and decision-making of important ESG

HEEFEAESEESCEENERZIREK

ESG Management
ESGE &
MAagRTE -

The ESG working group led by the general manager office and formed by people
in charge of every department is responsible for the ESG management

REEFEBEAEKESGIENEARESGE R

ESG Executives
ESG# 178

The departments of the Company and relevant departments of its subsidiaries
perform the ESG work in accordance with the requirements of the Management

BEEPFIRM B AR HEMPFIKREEEREMRESGTIER I
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Company adheres to observe laws and regulations
under the stable, prudent and effective supervision
governance structure and strictly complies with various
laws and regulations including the Company Law of the
People’'s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on State-Owned Assets in
Enterprises and Law of the People’s Republic of China
Against Unfair Competition by establishing the Anti-
malpractice Management System, the Internal Control
System and other management systems on business ethics,
and continuously improves guidelines including the Staff
Code of Conduct, which clarify the staff’s responsibilities
and obligations in the Company’s operations, provide staff
with a clear code of professional conduct and strengthen
the clean-fingered atmosphere of the Company, with an
aim to create long-term stable returns for shareholders.

To implement the Internal Control System and various
effective internal control systems, the Company evaluates
and improves the internal control by formulating annual
internal audit plan to conduct relevant audit work. In
July 2019, the Company carried out inspection on the
internal control compliance. Through reviewing the
internal control deficiency, the Company enhanced the
Financial Management System and formulated the monthly
funding plan. Meanwhile, the Company strengthened the
implementation of its anti-corruption-related systems by
continuing to provide trainings on business ethics, so as
to ensure the operational compliance of the Company.

1.1
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54

Sustainable development practice: subsidiaries strengthened the internal control management

URERRER WELARAMBRAIEHEE

Qianhai Mingtian, a subsidiary, strengthened the execution of the seal management system by keeping
the financial seal and the legal person seal separately, and improved the Investment Management System
and the investment process and clarified the investment norms. Other subsidiaries have strengthened the
implementation of finance-related systems, increased the process and personnel of financial mutual audit
and comprehensively improved the internal control system.
MEARREBAXMBRTHNEEENENNT  UBERZAZEDRRE L xETKRETENE) =
ZRERE  PHRERD - HHEMBRARMETHEHEBAGENRT  ENTHBEENRERAE
HAERRETTRERE -

Sustainable development practice: assessment on Jiangsu Hairong'’s internal control risk

IREBRER IHSRAZERT G

In October 2019, the internal audit department of the Company made a risk assessment on Jiangsu
Hairong. This audit reviewed the internal control deficiencies, improved the tracking mechanism on wharf
contract performance through risk assessment, standardized the invoice approval process, expedited
relevant approval procedures on allocation, transfer and scrap of fixed assets, urged the comprehensive
management department of the wharf to establish the purchase, sale and storage ledger and hence
comprehensively improved the internal control management system.

“E-NAFTA - REIREEFEHFEREIIHERET T RBRITEIEE o ART B R R E S R E &
THEH BARRIMATETHERCRABORMES SRETHEFHRE HEETEENBEASR
BREBNREESTFE BERBTEGSERIRVEAHGTAER HARXEERAETZERE -
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In addition,
for reporting violations and a system for protecting

the Company has established a system

whistleblowers. Under the guideline of the basic principle
of “Implementing penalty and prevention simultaneously
and focusing on prevention (%[5 iz 2 - & £ 78 )"
and “Protecting whistleblowers and avoidance while
investigation (%8 #R{R#& - FH & [E16)",
audit department of the Company has set up channels

the internal control

of reporting through writing, telephone and e-mail, etc.
to encourage employees to report malpractice once
corruption is found. In order to protect the rights and
interests of the whistleblowers, the Company promises
to keep the whistleblowers’ information confidential
according to the relevant management systems, carry out
timely investigation and verification based on the reported
information, and strictly prohibit the alleged wrongdoers
from retaliating. If there is any retaliation, the Company
will punish the wrongdoers according to the Company'’s
relevant systems or transfer the case to the judicial

authority for handling.

During the reporting period, there was no settled or
pending legal proceeding against the Company and
our employees in relation to corruption and no breach
of relevant national and local anti-corruption laws were
found.

Communication with Stakeholders

The sustainable development of the Company is closely
related to various stakeholders. On the one hand, as a
member of the industry’s industrial chain and a member
of the society, stakeholders can directly influence the
enterprise through their decision-making and behavior.
We can effectively obtain the continuous driving force
for development by timely responding to the needs of
stakeholders. On the other hand, through the products
and services we provide, we have a direct and indirect
impact on various stakeholders. In the course of the
Company’s operations, the effective participation of
stakeholders can help the Company correctly assess the
impact of our decisions, adjust the direction of action
in a timely manner, and ultimately achieve sustainable

development for both the Company and its stakeholders.

1.2
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Stakeholders

Subject of Communication

Ways of Communication

REBEEIER

MEZAEES BEHFR BEAR
Safeguarding product and Official website Customer service hotline
service quality Sk PR 2
Customers RIEEMRRBLEE
P Customer interview Customer relationship
B # periodic maintenance
BEFBETHER
Guaranteeing employees’ legal | Company's intranet Staff meeting
rights and interests DA A B B AR A BET®=
RIEETAERER
Staff Providing vocational training and | Staff suggestion box Staff problem activity
a = o A = =N
=T development BTIE4 BETRHEEE

Creating a safe and healthy
environment

BERE2RERE

Staff training
8T

Government and

regulators

BUS R B EHE

Compliance operation
BEAREZ

Forum between Government
and Enterprises

B ERE

Supervision and inspection

EERE

Tax compliance

BB

Working report and research

TERE R

Shareholders and
investors

Generating return on capital

A& & AR

Shareholders’ meeting

e R

Periodic report
E RS

Information openness and
transparency

Official website
B 7Bk

Investor research

®EH T

Community communication

AR

R EREE ERNFHEHR
Corporate governance Online interactive platform
NERERIE BEEFHFAE
Maintaining sound cooperation | Direct communication and Regular review and
REFERITAE visit assessment
BEB®EDMHE EHIE R LA
Suppliers Jointly supporting industrial Suppliers’ meeting Tendering activity
HER upgrading HEEER BIEEED
HBEXETR
Online opinion survey
WEERAE
) Information openness and Telephone interview Special interview
Media o ap e i =5 5 47 &t
- transparency EEHIEN HREED
- ERRMES
Promoting community Regular communication Email
development BRI BB
Others R4t BB R
Hity
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1.3 Materiality Analysis

In order to understand stakeholders’ concern on and
expectation of the Company's ESG management in a
timely manner, the Company conducted stakeholder
research and materiality analysis in 2019, which will serve as
the basis for the ESG information disclosure for this year
and will also become the premise of the Company’'s ESG
working group on the management of related ESG issues
by the Company in the future.

R #HERERBRE
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Materiality Analysis of ESG Report 2019 of the Company
RAF2019FESGREERED

12
151113
v 14
18 16
20
19
21
22

Low important issues
REBEHE

4 2
10
9 b
7
8 5 3

Highly important issues

SEEZZE

Moderately important issues

REERHAE

v

HRNERBERGERAR 57
2019 3R



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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58

List of major ESG issues of the Company in 2019

APARZB—NFESGEEZEI R

No. Issues
5% BE
1 Compliance operation
ABREE
2 Potential environmental risks in managing warehouse operation
ERARRELTRTENRERR
3 Continuing growth in profits
MBEFELER
4 Internal integrity management
A B AR B R
5 Protecting employees’ health and safety
Highly important issues REBTREREZ S
SEEEHA 6 Discharging pollutant according to relevant emission standards
RPN EDRENIRE
7 Building of production safety system
REEERREER
8 Properly disposing of solid waste
XEREBRBERY
9 Protecting the marine ecological environment around the port
REBEOR BN GFERRE
10 Improving business information transparency
RAKEESERAE
M Providing training and growth opportunities for employees
REIRHFEINKEES
12 Guaranteeing and improving service quality
RERREARBEE
13 Standardising supply chain management
REft e IR
14 Legitimate recruitment and use of workforce
BEEHRAT
15 Investing resources to reduce pollution emissions
Moderately important %ﬁ]\ﬁ?uﬂﬁ»?ﬁé{éﬁﬁﬂi
issues 16 Advocating green supply chain
TREEZRHE RT3
17 Energy conservation
1A LR
18 Water conservation
B 49 A 7K
19 Creating job opportunity
RlETERE
20 Investing resources to support the development of surrounding
communities
BRAERIFABEENER
21 Potential risks of climate change to the Company’s operations
Low important issues AR E QR K EHEE R R
BEEEZEE 22 Greenhouse gas emissions
=R
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CHAPTER TWO GREEN DEVELOPMENT

Good ecological environment is the foundation of human
survival and health. The Company actively responds to policy
guidance, values ecological environmental protection and
emphasises green and low-carbon development. With sticking
to an accountability system for environmental goals, the
Company has established an environmental protection leading
group led by the safety and environmental management
department in major production business units, implemented
approaches, policies and regulations on environmental
protection of the national and local governments consistently,
developed plans and objectives as well as annual work plan
for environmental protection, and in charge of monitoring and
managing work of environmental protection of the Company. In
2019, each of the Company’s production business units, under
the supervision of the environmental protection leading group,
established and improved environmental management systems
and regulations, including “Environmental Management Systems
and Measures” and "“Environmental Protection Accountability
System”, actively adopted pollutant treatment technology to
reduce emissions, and proactively investigated environmental
risks associated with the operation process to strive to reduce
the impact on the ecological environment around the port.

Environmental Risk Management

In order to prevent environmental pollution caused by pollutants
and improve environmental risk management, the Company
continuously improves the operation and management of its
environmental protection facilities, requiring the facilities to
be monitored by specialists to operate in accordance with
operation procedures and prepare operational records. For the
purpose of controlling the occurrence of potential accidents
or emergencies, the Company has formulated the Emergency
Management System as its emergency preparedness and
response, which stipulates that the units discharging pollutants
shall

accidents, control pollution from spreading and to reduce and

immediately take emergency measures to prevent

eliminate the impact of the accidents once pollution accidents or
other unexpected events may occur or have occurred. Within 2
hours after the occurrence of a major accident or an unexpected
event, it shall be reported to the Company’s environmental
protection leading group and be investigated and handled.
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2.1

60

Emission Reduction

The main pollutants involved in the operation of the
Company include wastewater generated from warehousing
wash tank, Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) and
solid waste in the process of operation. In order to
actively control the impact on the surrounding ecological
environment, the Company strictly abides by relevant
national environmental protection laws and regulations,
such as the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China and Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Environment Impact Assessment and relevant
laws on pollution and emission, such as Law of the
People’'s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution,
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste,
Law of the People’'s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution and the
Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China, as well as the relevant national and local
policies. The Company earnestly implements”Environment
and the

Protection Accountability System”

Management System and Measures”
"Environmental
of the Company, and accordingly establishes and
improves the relevant regulations and norms of emission
management. For each type of waste, the Company
formulates management regulations including”Hazardous
Waste Management Regulation” and “Accountabilities
of Hazardous Waste Pollution Prevention and Control”,
and strictly enforces the corresponding emission control
requirements. The Company's environmental protection
leading group instructs each of its subordinate units to
develop their own pollution source control plans and
annual control plans. The plans will be incorporated into
annual plans of the Company after review and will be
organised and implemented seriously to achieve “Control,
examination and operation step by step (RIE—I8 + BBl
—IE - BT IA)"

During the reporting period, the Company was strictly
in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations on
environmental protection and did not have any illegal
emissions.
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Exhaust Gas Emission Management

According to the requirements of the Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution, the Company strictly manages
atmospheric pollutants to ensure that emissions meet
relevant standards, and it continuously reduces emissions
of atmospheric pollutants and reduces environmental
impact through measures such as source control and
processing improvement.

In order to control the possible VOCs leaks in the storage
process and in strict compliance with relevant national
and be local laws and regulations, the Company carries
out VOCs pollution prevention and control according
to the Technical Policy on Volatile Organic Compounds
(VOCs) Pollution Prevention and Control. During the
Reporting Period, the Company engaged a qualified
third-party agency to conduct comprehensive inspection
for the uncontrolled exhaust gas in the park according
to the Standard Operating Procedures and Technical
Specifications for VOCs Non-Leakage Detection. Through
the inspection and re-inspection on uncontrolled
emission points of storage tanks, the results were both in
compliance with the national and local emission standards
and a qualification report was issued. In addition, the
Company also engaged a third-party detection agency
to conduct leak detection and repair by detecting nearly
1,700 sealed points in the tank yard so as to make all-
round investigation for the environmental risk in the
storage process. It turned out that the Company can well
manage and control the VOCs leak risk with a good sealed
petrochemical storage and transportation pipeline.

To further control VOCs emissions in the process of oils
loading and unloading in the terminal, Jiangsu Hairong
and Zhongnanhui, both being the subsidiaries of the
Company, introduced the oil vapor recovery unit in 2019 to
recover the vapor volatilized in the process of oils loading
and unloading through condensation and adsorption. The
oil vapor recovery unit will effectively improve the exhaust
gas treatment efficiency and reduce VOC emissions after
putting into use.
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On-site photo of the oil vapor recovery unit of Jiangsu Hairong
B I ERBREKEERSRA

On-site photo of the oil vapor recovery unit of Zhongnanhui

B:rmERREWEERSRA
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Wastewater Discharge Management

The Company strictly follows Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution,
adheres to the comprehensive treatment of production
wastewater. In according to the Integrated Wastewater
Discharge Standard of the People's Republic of China,
the Company implements the management of water
pollutants, and forbids the direct discharge of pollutants
such as oils, acids, and lye, etc. to water body to prevent
water pollution. Meanwhile, the Company establishes a
sewage pipeline to collect ground sewage and cleaning
tank sewage, tank bottom oil sewage and rainwater, and
have the sewage treated by a self-built sewerage treatment
station and then sent to the industrial park sewerage
treatment station for further treatment to further reduce
pollution and eventually meet the emission standard.
Office sewage is discharged into the municipal sewage
pipeline and enters into the local municipal sewage
treatment plant. At the same time, the Company will
monitor the surrounding seawater in order to have a real-
time understanding of our impact on the surrounding
waters and respond to accidents in a timely manner.

Solid Waste Management

The Company is committed to reducing the pollution
of the surrounding ecological environment caused by
various types of waste generated in its operations, and
has continuously improved its relevant management
system. We have formulated and have strictly followed
the "“Hazardous Waste Management Procedures”
according to the relevant requirements of the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes,
Regulations on the Safety Administration of Dangerous
Chemicals, National Hazardous Waste List, Standard for
Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage, Measures
for the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution
by Discarded Dangerous Chemicals, and Hazardous Waste
Transfer Contact Management Measures to ensure the
proper disposal of hazardous wastes.
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Hazardous waste generated in the Company's production ARAAELEBEPELENERESR
and operation mainly includes waste oil in grease trap, oil %%‘E’*”Ig BIERREEE R - ShmEY &
polluted waste and liquid (i /HEE¥) & B& ). The Company BER - REIECER EREYEIRH E) R
has defined relevant treatment procedures in “Hazardous WTHENEERT:

Waste Management Procedures”:

64

. Effluent from cleaning

production equipment

. General control division

collects and  stores

is transferred to sewage s?frlnples a.nd cleanir)gl
treatment station through SHLENE e e

T containers and conduct
pipelines
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EKBBEEREXE
VERAN LA

. Untreated production

effluent should not be
discharged to sewage
pipelines directly

. Production and domestic

sewa?e is discharged to
specific  collection pool
and be transferred to

sewage treatment plant treatment  station A
after reaching discharge cannot operate. due to. )
standards after going S ma|funct|on - oo

through sewage
treatment facilities

CHEE - EVRRKEENR

AEEWED - &F
7K Ba 3 5% bt 2 2 PE 7K
FERBEREISKE
B

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

treatment in accordance
with  requirement  of
"recycling of liquid
waste”
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"Hazardous Waste Management Procedures” also
specifies the requirements and standards for pre-handling,
storage and classification of hazardous waste. Production
facility division classifies and counts hazardous waste
collected and transfers the waste in kinds and batches
to the hazardous waste warehouse after confirmation by
safety and environment protection division. The Company
has set up hazardous waste warehouse in its plants
to classify and store hazardous waste generated in its
operation. Real-time cameras and surveillance are set
outside the warehouse to ensure effective management of
hazardous waste. Requirements for containers and storage
of hazardous waste of the Company are set out below:

. Disposition of container tanks or boxes
for hazardous waste

R E e RN R

RE HEREAHRSE

(EREENEENE)HEREZDND
ERE RSB FHARETERMRE
TERBHEBREINBRERYET
DEFE  XARERFMERER - HE
DEENIBOINBEERERE - AR
RAEMRRETERBEENREE  BEH
TEENERENDEFRF  BEIRE
E%ﬁﬁ%?MﬁﬁﬁK%%%Wﬁ
MEE - RAIHERERMETELHERT
ERM T E AR

e Ensure container to be stored safely and secured and kept away from fire and water.

o RERmLE - FE - EBNR KR -

. Container in direct contact with
hazardous waste should satisfy the

following requirements:

EEERERERNNERARRIAT
ERe

Material of the container should be compatible with (no rection) the hazardous waster

The container should satisfy relevant intensity and protection requirement

The container should be in perfect condition and sealed to prevent leakage during transfer and transportation
Each container storing hazardous waste should have clear label or stick new label to indicate the Chinese name and

nature of the material stored. The labels should not show any sign of markups

REMEBARBREZRYER (THERE)
RE=Bm R AR IR SR M R Rk
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REB B MR
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. Temporary storage of hazardous waste
should:

. IR RS R EEY MAME)

All containers storing hazardous waste should have appropriate space

FEBRECREEYNARS CHVARIRRNERE - it RS

EREMEN R X ERE L EREE - RES

® Be stored separately in kinds. Materials not compatible should be stored separately to prevent any danger

* Direct packaging materials for fragile packgae should, according to their nature, be fixed in wooden case or firm
cartons and fillers should be added to prevent collision and pressure and for secured storage

e Container in direct contact with hazardous should avoid leakage from tilting and slanted storage
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2.2

66

The safety and environment protection division engages
qualified units to undergo unified safe disposal of
hazardous waste and strictly adheres to the “Five Joint
List System for the Transfer of Hazardous Wastes”. In order
to better track the handling of hazardous wastes, a series
of information, such as order submission, acceptance
of wastes by qualified units, removal from plant areas,
confirmation of transfer amount, etc., can be updated
and inquired in real time in the online "Hazardous Waste
Dynamic Management Information System”. In addition to
the proper disposal of hazardous wastes, the Company
transfers non-hazardous waste and domestic waste
generated during storage and operation to the material
recovery unit for unified treatment or recycling.

Responding to climate change

We are concerned about global climate change, and we
continuously reduce the greenhouse gas emissions during
the Company’s operations by saving energy and applying
low-carbon energy. We actively cooperate with the “13%™
Five-Year Work Plan for Greenhouse Gas Emission Control”
promulgated by the State Council in the “13% Five-Year
Plan” to contribute to the sustainable economic and social
development of China and the preservation of global

ecological equilibrium.
Use of Resources
Energy Management

The Company abides by the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Conserving Energy and related laws and
regulations, and continues to improve energy structure
and increases energy efficiency. By 2019, the Company'’s
main business operation process, including petrochemical
storage and terminal operation with the highest energy
consumption, has realised the energy structure dominated
by electricity, and continuously reduced the proportion of
fossil fuels such as gasoline and diesel used in the liquid
supply system in the operation process. At the same
time, through setting annual production objectives and
making monthly production work plans, and incorporating
energy use into performance indicators of production
management, the Production Division of the Company
makes regular statistics and analysis on energy use of
unit capacity, reviews and summarises factors affecting
energy efficiency, and puts forward energy conservation
and consumption reduction measures.
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Meanwhile, we make reasonable plans for the berthing
and loading and unloading time of ships near the
port by improving the information management of
petrochemical storage and terminal, so as to improve
the utilisation efficiency of terminal facilities. In addition,
we continue to promote paperless office, standardise
the use and management of official vehicles, advocate
the energy-saving use of air conditioning facilities,
and comprehensively advocate the concept of energy
conservation and consumption reduction.

Water Resources Management

The Company complies with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Water Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and attaches importance to the protection of water
resources and improvement of utilisation efficiency in the
course of our production and operations.

During the reporting period, the Company increased the
measurement of water consumption nodes and wastewater
discharge in the process of petrochemical storage and
terminal operation, and comprehensively monitored the
water resources utilisation efficiency in the operation
process by improving the statistics of water consumption
and drainage data. At the same time, the Company
improved the water efficiency of specific production links
through scientific overall planning, such as reasonable
planning of material classification storage area in the
storage process, so as to reduce the length of pipeline in
the tank washing process and improve the water efficiency
of tank washing. There is no issues in sourcing water within
the operation of the company.

R #HERERBRE

RAERMABEREQLLREFNMEEANE
BEEKY fERIBEMENEAR
KHRME - 7T BERENERRE - It
Sh - B ERE BN LD - RELK
EMERER REZARBOHEREE
A 2EESMERFEER -

KERERE

NEESF(PEARJMBEAOL) SEHEE
BER EEEELBRTERKER
R REKERHERRE -

REHA - ARBIENT AL A R NEE
BB FKED B A K BEKBE IR ET &
BBTERKRERKBEORG 20
ERELBREPHIKEREAME - HEyt
R RAABABNERERNABELE
REVMAKYEE - flnEHBESERS
YRS RBRFEE AR AT EBIEN
EREE RSB AKEAE - RAIEA
EREBRP I FERIUKFEORERE -

HRNERBERGERAR 67
2019 3R



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRE

CHAPTER THREE SAFE PRODUCTION

3.1

68

Safe Operations Management

The Company attached great importance to production
safety. Adhering to the principle of “Safety first based
on prevention and comprehensive control (£ 2% — + 78
b7 &E - #2&/81)", it continuously improved the safety
management structure of oil and petrochemical wharf
and storage business, and established a production
safety leading group to implement the production safety
responsibility system. The Company has strictly abided
by the national and local laws and regulations including
Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
and Production Safety Regulations of Jiangsu Province.
Supervised by the Safe Production Committee, the
production safety leading group organized the preparation
of the Company’s production safety regulations, operating
regulations and emergency plans for safety accidents,
including Safety Management System, Production Safety
Reward and Punishment Management System, Safety
Inspection Management System, Risk Identification
and Evaluation Management System, Safety Devices
Contents and Technical Requirements for Petrochemical
Wharfs and Warehouse Areas, Regulations on the Safety
Management of Dangerous Chemicals, Provisions on the
Safety Management of Hazardous Goods at Ports. Each
production and operation unit further refined the safety
management system and operating regulations based
on their respective business characteristics to form a
management system in line with the characteristics of
business operations.

ARABERLELEE  BHIZ2F—
BHRE GEARABINGH  HE
HmAOLBEREMEGTNLEET
B EULEEERE)E BEREE
EHEEEEH - ARABEBETER KM
FTERER  BRE(FEARKMEZ 2
HEZR)(PEARKMEEP E) RO
HRERREERD) BALXELEEZB®
B Z2AERSHABRREAR
LEEERENE BREERLALES
BESER  BR(Z2EEFE (L2
FERBEENE(ZE2REETEHE)
(P B 28 Bl A0 R B B I ) ChRm it T
B ERRZEREERHEERXMTER)
(ERtLERE2ERBEIEAZERE
ME2EERT) SLEEREETKRE
EEXBHEBSLER6ERBREE
BE-FHL ERETEEBELEHED
EEBIERE R -

ma gl

=
=

%5
-—

b

Safety Management Structure of the Company
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TZEHBES JLER Rl TLERH EE g o L
Production Silely Sl Equipment G(Ier)e.ral ConFroI Safety and Production
Division Environment %iv?sion Division/Equip- Environment Division
Division ment Division Division
HER ZIREL B FCb e Y T LIREL HER

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group's safety management was led by the Company
Safe Production Committee, with the general manager and
the legal representative of the production and operation
business unit as the first person responsible, which
carefully implemented the production safety principles
and policies, and incorporated production safety into the
Company’s development strategy and long-term planning.
The safety director assisted in implementing the safety
responsibility system, organized annual and quarterly
safety leading group meetings, as well as summarized
and deployed safety management work. The production
division organized the formulation of annual production
work goals, and organized the formulation or revision of
operating procedures according to the actual situation of
the production. The equipment division was responsible
for the safety management of equipment power, devices
and industrial buildings and structures, the preparation
of equipment management systems and operating
procedures, and organizing training and implementation
to ensure that special types of work received professional
qualification training and certification. The safety and
environment division was responsible for the safety
management of oil and petrochemical wharfs and storage
facilities, identifying national and local safety related laws
and regulations, conducting identification of dangerous
sources and investigation of hidden dangers in production
safety accidents, assessing the current status of safety
management, and organizing drills for emergency rescue
plans.

In 2019, the Company'’s safety leading group collaborated
with various departments to continue to investigate and
manage hidden dangers and monitor dangerous sources
in accordance with the Safety Management System, and
timely and effectively improved the existing production
safety management methods to adapt to changes in
the Company’s safe operating conditions, with an aim
to improve the level of production safety management.
Through the active promotion of the management and
the efforts of employees at all levels, Zhongnanhui and
Jiangsu Hairong have all passed the secondary standard
of production safety standardization, and are preparing
for the certification of the primary standard of production
safety standardization.
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3.2 Safety Risk Control
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Following the safety management policy of “Safety first
based on prevention (&% — * JEHA=E)", the Company
pays attention to the safety risk management during the
operation process and continuously optimizes the safety
risk assessment system related to petrochemical wharf
and storage business, including “Safety Inspection and
Management System”, “Risk Identification and Assessment
Management System”, as well as the provisions like “Safety
Devices Contents and Requirements for the Petrochemical
Wharf and Warehouse Area”, "Regulations on the Safety
Administration of Dangerous Chemicals”, and “Provisions
on the Safety Management of Hazardous Goods at
Ports”, so as to continuously reduce the risk of operating
procedures.

In order to effectively identify and control risks, as well
as to reduce risks and hazardous and harmful factors,
the Company has specifically formulated "“Safety Check
and Accidental Hidden Risk Management System” and
“Risk Assessment and Control System” in the “Safety
Production Management System”. The Company's safety
and environment division is responsible for leading the
identification of hazardous and harmful factors, risk
assessment and risk control work.
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When organizing
hazardous and harmful
factors and risk

identification work, an
evaluation team shall be
set up with the general

manager, of each
subsidiary company, the
vice president of

production, the safety
director, and professional
technicians from various
departments.
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RE HEREAHRSE

Risk Identification Management Process

BRI EERRE

The evaluation team first
identifies the scope of
production, business
activities, operations, or
services that the Company
engages in, then selects
one or more combined
evaluation methods based
on the complexity of the
hazard of the evaluation
target.
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During the process of risk identification, the Company
established a quantized risk assessment standard
according to the frequency of risk and the consequence of
accident, and categorized risks as medium, significant and
enormous based on their level and accordingly developed
control measures and implementation deadlines.
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Risk degree Risk level Control measures
[ B [ B % 4% 76 e
21-25 Enormous Forbid operation before taking measures to reduce harm and conduct
EX assessment on improvement measures
ERBEMEEREEA - TRESERE  HUCERBETI
16-20 Significant Take emergency measures to reduce risk, establish operating control
EZPN procedure and conduct regular inspection, measurement and
assessment
EREzEREERR 2L ETENERF THRE  HENRFG
6-15 Medium Consider setting targets, establishing operating specification and
& strengthening training and communication
AEZBREYBE  BUIRERRE  MRFILES
1-5 Acceptable Consider establishing operating specification, operation instruction but
ER require regular inspection or require no control measures, and require
keeping records
AZRBEVREMRE FEXESEETTHREIEFTRBENEK -
BRFLS

According to “Safety Inspection and Management
System”, the Company conducted comprehensive
safety inspection on production and operating activity
on a regular basis, ensuring that each production and
operating unit shall achieve safety target and working
plan, comply with safety management requirements and
operating specification as well as effectively identify
safety hazards and provide rectification advice. In respect
of the important areas of high risk such as wharf berth,
nitrogen room, fire-pump room, sewage treatment station,
the Company also conducted specific safety inspection,
and timely check and eliminate operating breakdown of
equipment and facilities or unstandardized operation. In
addition, leading group of safety work conducted daily
and irregular spot check, gave specific rectification advice
on major problems identified and required corresponding
positions to complete the rectification and conduct
re-inspection as soon as possible.
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In response to the climate change and its resulting
frequent occurrence of extreme weather, to enhance
the safety emergency management capability of the
Company’s petrochemical wharf and storage business to
handle and defend against natural disasters, the Company
formulated “Emergency Plan against Lightning and Static
electricity” in order to minimize and reduce safety risks
caused by disasters like lightning, ensure normal operation
of facilities by establishing efficient and orderly rescuing
plan.

R #HERERBRE
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Sustainable Development Practices: Summary of annual safety check and hidden risk elimination and

investigation

RERRER TEZ2RENBIFEIFAL

According to “Safety Inspection and Management System”,
the Company conducted a total of 12 comprehensive safety
inspections on Jiangsu Zhongnanhui (including project
construction) and Jiangsu Hairong in 2019. Each of inspection
developed corresponding inspection record, issuing 6
hazard rectification lists and 57 rectification suggestions and
rectification items. Subsequently, safety inspection group
provided rectification direction on the major findings from
inspection to each business unit. As of the reporting period,
the Company has completed all rectification and achieved the
closed-loop management of hazard rectification.
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The Company places great emphasis on safety guarantee
during the overall operating process. In respect of the
external related parties such as contractors joining the
company’s production business unit, they are required to
accept the safe production education before entering the
production area in accordance with the Company’s safety
management system. Besides, the Company explained
the safety precautions they were required to comply with
and provide protection equipment such as protection suit
against static electricity to them, so as to fully guarantee
the safety management of related parties when working
at the production area.
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3.3 Safety and Health Protection

74

It is the responsibility of the Company to ensure the
safety and health of its employees. The Company strictly
complies with the Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China,the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases, the Law of the People's Republic of China on
Protection of Workers' Rights and Interests, the Provisions
on the Supervision and Administration of Occupational
Health at Work Sites, Jiangsu Labour Protection
Regulations and other relevant laws and regulations,
and has formulated corresponding management systems
and procedures according to the characteristics of the
Company's production and operation business, including
the “Occupational Health Management System (B2 &4
EIRHIE)", the "Protective Labor Equipment Management
System (B[ EAME RS E)", the “Safety Protection
Equipment and Facilities Management System (% & [ &
BRI E RS E)" etc, so as to continuously improve
the occupational safety and health protection system and
fully implement the main responsibility for safe production.
During the reporting period, the Company did not
experience any work injury or death from work.

For special jobs, in accordance with the “Management
System for Special Operation (% %REEEIEHIE)", the
Company specified application scope, duties and relevant
safety requirements for special operation like casual power
usage, cranking and lifting and aloft work, with a view to
standardize safety supervision and management of on-site
special operation of the safety and environment protection
division.
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In accordance with the relevant provisions of the
"Occupational Health Management System ( B % &
AEIRHIE)", the person in charge of the Company
is the first person responsible for the prevention and
control of occupational diseases, and shall systematically
organize the identification of occupational hazards and
input in occupational health protection. The safety
and environment protection division is responsible
for supervising and managing the implementation
of occupational health management, overseeing and
coordinating the “three simultaneousness” on prevention
and control of occupational hazards, and according to
the “Protective Labor Equipment Management System
(BB ERREESB E), formulates the standards
for the distribution of the protective labor equipment
to provide appropriate protective labor equipment for
employees, and coordinates the regular monitoring of
occupational hazards and the evaluation of the status
of occupational hazards. The production division and
the equipment division work together to improve the
operation procedures for each post, and organize regular
occupational health training for staff.

There are limited occupational hazards involved in
the Company’s course of business. The Company
provides the employees in related positions with pre-
employment, in-service and pre-departure occupational
health examination, and the employees in-service will
be provided with such health examination at least
once a year, the result of which will be informed to
the relevant employees in time. Once the occupational
contraindications or suspected occupational diseases
are found, the Company shall arrange the transfer from
original post for relevant employees according to the
relevant systems, and immediately arrange diagnosis
and treatment. During the reporting period, there were
no cases of occupational contraindications or suspected
occupational diseases being found.
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3.4 Safety Training Practice
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A sound safety training system can effectively improve the
safety awareness and quality of employees, and promote
the implementation of safety management. The Company
has established the Safety Training and Education
Management System and actively enhanced general
safety awareness through safety education, in order to
ensure effective implementation of safe production as
well as preventing and avoiding safety accidents. And
accordingly, the annual safety education and training
program has been set up to organize and carry out the
safety procedure standard training related to production
and operation, and advocate updating safety management
and revising the constitution. During the reporting period,
the Company has formulated the Annual Goals and
Requirements for Safety Education Training and the Safety
and Health Training Programme with a view to establish
knowledge system of employees’ safety education and
raised requirements in six aspects for safety education of
each divisions and subsidiaries: safety requirement, safety
awareness, safety knowledge, safety skills, compliance with
regulations and capability of emergency response. We
have set up the following objectives of safety and health
training in the annual training programme:

J The percentage of registered principals in charge,
officers in charge, and security managers be 100%.

o The rate at which the new employees participate in
the three-level safety training and passing rate of
employees training for transfer of posts be 100%.

J The annual rate of safety training for employees be
100%.

o The passing rate of a training=98%.

Meanwhile, the Company also sets goals of safety
education for employees at different levels. We require
new or re-designated employees to participate in the
three-level safety training. The three-level training would
be examined and the relevant employees can only start
working after passing the examination; acquirement of
safety titles or certificates is also required for safety-
related management staff.
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According to the Company’s business and different
personnel needs, each unit conducts safety production
training every month or every two months. Different
types of training and topics are designed to provide
targeted training to personnel such as terminal operators,
drivers, and team leaders with contents including safety
procedures, safety knowledge of dangerous chemicals,
typical accident analysis, first aid methods, and traffic
safety training. After training, the trainees also need to
pass oral or written tests. In order to further motivate
employees to pay attention to safety production training,
the Company has year-end incentives for units and
individuals that do not have accidents throughout the
Year, while departments that fail to follow the training plan
to commence training will receive negative performance
evaluation and warnings.

R #HERERBRE

REZRRINEBRIRNABTFR - &
BUSEAXEMEALET - RLEEE
B Bt E M HISHERIEAR - BR
8 MARSETAFIYREKFTTEIF
FIBAEMEE  ARBRLEBRIERRE
ERtERTE2ME  HEEHIN 2
RTE - RBR2EIE - Bl - X
BETERBENAUEASTER - RE—
THBMEIERL2LEERI > AAH
REFRESRBELEZEUMBEARESF
ARARE TR IR R EE P A 85 R IE DIl 60
MRS B HBERNER -

Sustainable Development Practices: Annual Working Meeting of the Safety Committee and Training

THRARRER FERZEIFSEREI

In December 2019, the Company held a meeting of the
Safety Committee, which was attended by all members of
the Safety Committee (including those in Zhongnanhui and
Jiangsu Hairong). The meeting was mainly to watch the video
of Xiangshui’'s “3.21" particularly serious explosion accident,
analyze and discuss the accident investigation report, and
convey the spirit of production safety related notifications of
the government and the group company, as well as report the
production safety in the previous stage.
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Through this meeting, employees have had a deeper
understanding of the content of safe production operations,
and their awareness of hazardous wastes has also increased.
And the meeting has alerted all staff and improved their safety

awareness.

BBLLREH  FEIULRE2EEFRETEHNATE TEMR
ANTER FARKGRSTHEREEZEYHNRBELZENRZE2E
W R TEBENER -

In 2019, all employees were provided safety and health
education and training by the Company, who have taken
safety and health training for an average of 6 hours
throughout the Year.
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At the same time, the Company regularly conducted safety
drills in accordance with the On-site Emergency Measures
to manage and control safety risks, improve the safety
awareness of all employees, and create a healthy and safe
working environment for employees. The safety drills can
make all staff further master the use of safety equipment
and facilities and improve their familiarity with emergency
plans and emergency handling capabilities, and ensure
that front-line employees can effectively organize, respond
quickly, and keep unflappable to minimize the harms in
the event of a production safety accident.
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Sustainable Development Practices: a Safety Emergency Drill

IRHERRER Z2EER

In December 2019, the Company held a comprehensive
emergency drill for the fourth quarter at Tank Group 4 of
Zhongnanhui Warehouse Area. The drill tested the situation of
employees’ handling of on-site conditions and improved the
emergency response capabilities of all employees in response
to safety accidents.
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Before the drill, the Company organized training for basic
knowledge of emergencies, which improved the participants’
safety knowledge, emergency response capabilities, and escape
skills after an accident. During the drill, participants were able to
observe discipline and team cohesion was improved. The safety
working group’s ability to organize, command, and respond was
also strengthened.
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Through this comprehensive emergency drill, all

employees have mastered basic skills such as how to
identify hazards in emergency spills and how to take
necessary emergency measures in order to achieve
rapid, orderly, timely and effective emergency handling
capabilities in accidents, which has thus effectively
reduced the accident hazards and ensured the safe,
healthy and orderly development of warehouse areas.
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CHAPTER FOUR EMPLOYEE EMPHASIS

4.1

Compliance with Employment Management

The Company considers employees as the important
capital for corporate’s sustainable development and
strives to grow with employees. The Company has
adhered to the principle of “"morality plus ability but
morality before ability” and “selecting people depends
on the task and maintaining a dynamic balance” when
recruiting employees, abided by the basic principle of
human resources management “openness, impartiality
and fairness in order to effectively motivate and constrain
each employee” as well as followed the principles of
competition, responsibility, incentives, and democratic
management to achieve effective development and
rational use of human resources.

Employment Policy and Labour Standards

The Company strictly abides by the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Regulation on Labour
Security Supervision, Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and the labour laws and
regulations of the state, province, and city, and has
formulated the "Administrative Measures on Labour and
Personnel Matters” to systematically regulate, manage
and protect employees’ legitimate rights and interests
such as employees’ recruitment, employment, promotion,
dismissal, staff training, code of conduct, working hours,
performance appraisal, welfare benefits, diversification,

and anti-discrimination.

The Company ensures that the recruitment process is
fair and impartial, strictly obeys the prohibition of child
labour regulations, and prohibits the use of child labour
and forced labour. If child labour were found, we will
instruct the relevant authorities to send the child labour
to their parents or other guardians in their original place
of residence. At the same time, we insist on treating
employees of different races, religions, ages, genders,
marital status, disability status, and political orientations
impartially, and provide them with an equal, diversified,
non-discriminatory work environment.
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4.2
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Pay and Benefits

The Company is committed to providing reasonable
remuneration, welfare, and benefits to its employees and
protecting the immediate interests of employees through
the implementation of the policies like “Administrative
Matters”,
“"Administrative Measures on Remuneration Payment”

Measures on Labour and Personnel
and “Management and Implementation Measures on

Performance Assessment”. In view of “Administrative
Measures on Pay and Benefits”, the Company provides to
employees basic salary, and (if applicable) bonus including
allowances, commissions, etc. At the same time, we also
provide employees with comprehensive welfare policies,
including five insurance premiums and housing provident
fund, medical insurance, and overtime allowance. In
addition, employees may enjoy pay leave such as public
holidays, leave, sick leave, marriage leave, compassionate
leave, maternity leave, and annual leave in addition to

statutory holidays.

To enhance sense of belongings of employees and
reinforce corporate cohesion and realize caring spirits,
the Company also developed "Administrative Measures
on Caring Employees”. The general department (4% & 3F)
takes the lead to organize consolation activities and grant
incentives and gifts in event of employees’ birthdays,
weddings, sick leaves, work injuries, maternity leaves,
funeral leaves and traditional festivals. In addition, we also
established rewarding events electing “Star of the Year”
to grant incentives to outstanding employees.

Employee Development and Training

The Company attaches importance to growth and
development of employees. We uphold the principle of
"openness, impartiality and fairness” to provide fair career
opportunities and channels to employees. We develop
tailor-made and suitable career paths and promotion
opportunities for employees in different positions,
departments and levels, and persistently provide related
professional training and courses to help employees adapt
to the rapidly changing social and economic environment
and satisfy their needs of achievement.
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The Company strives to coordinate the employees’
competence with the job requirements through education
and training, so as to enhance the quality of the Group's
manpower and facilitate the achievement of corporate
goals. The general management department of the
Company, as the responsible management department
for education and training works, is responsible for the
overall organization, formulation and implementation of
the Company’s education and training programs, including
the following specific duties:

Formulation of
training plans of
the Company and

To report the
training

Implementation

of training plans
9P outcomes

BIERO 25

each department

AEREEF
SEHIEHBIRBIRT

The Company provides different departments of career
paths for employees, including management, technology
and finance, as well as corresponding training systems.
The training is divided into induction training for new
employees, job-rotation training, on-the-job professional
training etc. At the same time, we provide corresponding
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Creation and
collection of
training files and

To report the
training

outcomes
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teaching materials
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training to employees of different departments in
accordance with job requirement and career development
requirement.

Managerial personnel Technical personnel

Financial personnel

EEHET RATRE T

M5BT

® To provide training on labor law, .
management practical  skills,
preparation of management
reports,etc.

To  provide  corresponding o
technical  training to help
employees continuously improve
their technical level required for
the duties. We also provide
training on occupational health
and safety education as well as
standardized operation
procedures; and deliver the
information regarding the latest
development and status of the
trade and logistics industry

To provide training on the
preparation of the latest financial
reports and accounting policies
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In addition, before the new employees taking office,
the Company will organize a collective training session.
The content of the training for new employees includes:
corporate culture, business philosophy, the Company’s
development history and current status, industry trends,
the Company's organizational structure, functions
and business scope of each department, rules and
regulations, code of conduct for employees, etc., so
that new employees can further familiarize with the work
procedures and scope of duties. Upon the completion of
new employee training, an examination will be conducted
and the employees who pass the exam will be given
the opportunity of being full-time employees. Besides,
a “training evaluation form”, which is designed by the
general management department, will be distributed to
the training participants to fill in at the end of training.
After summarizing, the general management department
will evaluate the effectiveness of current training session
from various perspectives, including training teachers,
training content, training forms and techniques as well as
training implementation, and rectify the inadequacies in a
timely manner.

We also encourage employees to keep learning new
skills through external training. Subject to the approval
of the manager and the human resources department,
the Company will provide support to the employees who
apply for the external training in terms of fund and time.
In addition, all Directors and senior management of the
Company have received training on the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
and continuing professional development during the Year,
so as to cater for the market requirements professionally
while performing duties.

The Company has continuously improved the training
system and enriched the training resources. During the
Year, we have provided 25 hours of training courses for
each of all employees, and the employee training coverage
has reached 100% for many years. In addition, we carried a
training course on safety and health in 2019, and provided
6 hours of special training on safety for each employee.
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CHAPTER FIVE WIN WIN COOPERATION

5.1 Supplier Management

To standardize supplier management of the Company,
protect legal interest of the Company, ensure project
quality, enhance economic efficiency and prevent
corruption, The Company strictly complies with related
laws and regulations,such as “"Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and “Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China” as well as “Notice
on Strengthening Recruitment for Supervision and
Management Work (B INo2 MR EE B B IE TERy@EmA)
and “Measures for Resource Management of JT & K &2 /8§
7 12 I &= (B B BR A Al (Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Holdings
Limited*) CL#AEEBEZEREEFRARVEEENR
7A) ", and accordingly established “Supplier Management
System (fft f& 3 & E # E) ", “Management Measures
for Procurement (Provisional) R & & 1 9% %) (B 17) ",
“Management Measures for Project Establishment { T2 32
HEBHE) ", "Management System for Tender of Project
(EEREZEERSE)" and "Management Measure for
Procurement of Office Supplies (I A MRBEBERIE)
to perform strict screening, evaluation and management
on suppliers of goods, construction work and services.

The "Management Measures for Procurement” specifies
duties and authorities of divisions of the Company related
to supplier management. It standardizes supervision of
procurement projects in terms of management structure.
The Company has established the procurement and
tender management committee (FREBEBIZEHEZEE)
responsible for directing all procurement and procurement
management. The committee supervises suppliers winning
the bid and their performance. It also makes internal
decision for price comparison and invitation of tenders
for procurement project of the Company. Under the
instruction of the procurement and tender management
committee, the investment and asset management division
(IFERBEEEEE) of the Company is responsible for
managing daily procurement and regulating procurement
procedures.

When signing a procurement contract, we require the
suppliers to provide relevant certificates, proving that
they have the required qualifications and ensuring that
their operations are in compliance with the applicable
labor, environment and other laws and regulations. At
the same time, the products provided by suppliers have
to comply with relevant standards of product quality and

environment.
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The Company assesses its suppliers’ competence from the
following four perspectives:

Product quality
assessment

EmERKTEIE

7 B P T B 03 1T DA T 0 7 B M0 3%
E

To engage a third-party agency for the assessment of product quality based on the product
indicators agreed in the contracts between the parties; and to determine the quality level
according to the assessment result

EEREHAROTERRERSE BEFF=TRikERIERDE  RERISRFTESKT

De"\/ery Competence business registration, etc.

assessment

RERENFIE

To learn about the company profile from various channels, such as telephone, Internet and

According to the terms of the contracts, the upstream companies are generally required to pay
after delivery while the downstream companies are required to pay before delivery

RIEEE - % IHERSZRRETHROERR
RIEAREROR - —REL EREXERMR - FRENREZE

To undertake assessment from three angles: whether customers carry out the contracts on
schedule; whether customers who apply for postponement due to exceptional cases have
carried out their contracts during extension; the fact that customers have not carried out the
contracts for more than three months

BREEFRBERHAEN  AEKRBEARBERLEEHANELY  B=EAREH=EERETTE

To undertake assessment according to market prices, product indicators, methods of delivery

and payment, etc.

RIETISER - ERER  KENRTASETHE

Supplier Safety and Environmental Management

In order to protect the environment and safety
management level of suppliers and promote the synergy
development of the industrial chain, the Company has
formulated the “Safety and Environmental Protection
Management System for Contractor (R BELZ 2 RIRE
B H|E) " It stipulates that a “Safety and Environmental
Protection Agreement { X2 IRIRIHE) ” should be signed
before make cooperation with suppliers and giving priority
to choose those with better safety and environmental
management abilities with the aim of mitigating safety
and environment risks of the supply chain. In regard
to suppliers with long-term cooperation, the Company
provides regularly EHS training for them, including
special contents such as safety and environmental
protection regulations, special operation procedures,
and management regulations for dangerous chemicals,
etc. Each training will be equipped with corresponding
detailed records to ensure that suppliers can fully
understand their due responsibilities for safety and
environment, as well as fully prevent supply chain risks.
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5.2 Customer Services

Communication with customers

The customer types of the Company are mainly
divided into manufacturers and traders. The customers’
satisfaction with the Company’s products, services and
management level is always our pursuit. Adhering to the
philosophy of customer first, we actively communicate with
customers in the course of business, take the initiative
to understand the customers’ views on our services and

obtain their feedback and suggestions.

The Company has established an effective complaint
system. When customers have any questions on or
dissatisfaction with our services, they can report to
us through various complaint channels. The contracts
have provided the methods of communication for both
parties, such as telephone, email, fax, address, etc. After
receiving the complaint from a customer, we will identify
the responsible department, clarify the reasons for the
complaint and follow up the complaint in a timely manner.
If a customer's loss was caused by our fault, the Company
will give the customer reasonable compensation to make
up for the loss of the customer.

Customer privacy

While ensuring that customers are satisfied with our
products, services and management, the Company places
emphasis on the protection of customer privacy, and
promises to respect and protect the customer privacy. We
require all employees to comply with laws and regulations,
industry discipline regulations and provisions on customer
privacy protection of their departments. Employees shall
not leak customer information and transaction information
to anyone; nor inquire colleagues about the personal
information or transaction information of customers out of
curiosity or for other purposes.

R #HERERBRE
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5.3 Community Participation

86

The Company is keenly aware of the importance
of community investment to realizing sustainable
development. We believe that the best return to the local
community is bringing continuous and stable tax revenue
to the local government with increasing scale of major
businesses, so as to continue to increase employment
opportunities for the surrounding communities and
to exert positive effects on the development of the
community through the Company’s organic growth.

At the same time, the Company also gathers its employees
to actively participate in a variety of community activities,
such as blood donation and half marathon to bring positive
energy to the community continuously.

In October 2019, to advocate green life, the Company
participated in the 2" Wind Power Green Energy Half
Marathon organized by the community where it operates.
This event passed by the wind power industry park to
keep the participants informed of the current development
and trend of the green energy industry, so as to further
enhance the awareness of energy conservation and
environmental protection in the community.
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The 2" Wind Power Half Marathon
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FAI#HEERKR

ERME

2019
Indicator
2017 2018 (note 1)
Indicator Indicator | ZE—NE
Types of Indicators Unit —2—+tF | Z8-N\F i
EREE B B 2B (B E1)
Energy consumption*
B FOR R
Electricity Kilowatt hours 265,885 259,446 766,592
= 4 TR B
Electricity consumption intensity Kilowatt hours/HK$'000 revenue 0.078 0.061 0.505
ENEREE TRE/FHETRE
Gasoline Liters 27,719 7,600 8,548
i
Diesel Liters 1915 2,700 3,000
Bl
Greenhouse gas emissions*
REREH
Total greenhouse gas emissions Tonnes COZeq 183,290 190,050 561,844
BRERBALER WE— ELHRE (note 2)
GE)
Greenhouse gas emissions intensity Tonnes C0O2eq/HK$'000 revenue 0.054 0.045 0.370
RERBHNEE “RIEBmEE /TR RE
Water consumption and wastewater emission*
HKEHEBKERE*
Production operations water consumption Tonnes 1,679 1,800 10,000
EEEERK 1A (note 2)
)
Production operations water consumption intensity Tonnes/HK$million revenue n/a 0.42 6.59
FEBERKEE W BEA TS TER
Office domestic water consumption Tonnes n/a 1,145 5,672
NEER RS & TEA
Office domestic water consumption intensity Tonnes/HK$million revenue n/a 0.27 374
MOEERKEE W R8BI TEA
Total wastewater emissions Tonnes n/a 2,720 2,672
BEKHEMES g TER
Wastewater emission intensity Tonnes/HK$million revenue n/a 0.64 1.91
BERHEREE W/ BERTRE TEA
Waste*
EESM
Amount of hazardous waste transferred Tonnes 14.90 0 0.27
EREDEERES T8
Office domestic waste Tonnes 2.2 4.2 92.7
WRAEFERR 7]
Office domestic waste intensity Tonnes/HK$million revenue n/a 0.0001 0.0611
WMRAEENRESARE B/ AEB T TiER
Office waste paper 10,000 sheets 9.6 17.75 36.8
N S B
Office domestic waste paper intensity 10,000 sheets/HK$million revenue n/a 0.004 0.017
MOMRELRE BR/BB8ETUH TER
Employment status
ERER
Total number of employees person 294 128 195
BEIEH A#
Employment status by gender
EﬁEUQﬁEET‘R
Male person 205 88 142
S AH
Female person 89 40 53
pogi A B

EMENBEROERDT 87
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2019
Indicator
2017 2018 (note 1)
Indicator Indicator | ZE—N &
Types of Indicators Unit ZE—tF | ZE-N\E e
EREH B 2B 28 (B &E1)
Employment status by age
RERBIERER
Employees aged under 30 person 93 40 28
FATETH A&
Employees aged 30 to 50 person 153 66 103
30-50% B T AE
Employees aged over 50 person 48 22 64
50sE LA BT H A K
Employment status by region
Eﬂﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Mainland China person — — 193
PN A&
Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan person — — 2
ARG A&
Foreign person — — 0
oNEE AH
Employee turnover rate
EIRKE
Employee turnover rate % — — 11.8%
BIRAE
Health and safety
REEZE
Number of work-related fatalities person 0 0 0
ATRTAH A
Number of work-related injuries person 0 1 0
FAIRBAK A &
Loss of working days due to work-related injuries Day 0 1 0
THEERIERH B
Development and Training
BRRE
Percentage of production staff trained % 100 100 100
EEABRIILH
Percentage of office staff trained % 100 100 100
WAANB RS
Average training hours of employees Hour 20 32 25
EEFHRIEH N
The training hours of safety Hour — — 6
ZEEEE IR E N
Supply Chain Management
HEgEE
Percentage of suppliers in the East China % 100 100 100
FRRHEEIETL
Anti-corruption
RES
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Case 0 0 0
practices brought against its employees during the 1
reporting period
BMERNHESRNIBENESHAEN
Notes: Bt 3% :
* Data coverage include: Zhongnanhui, Jiangsu Hairong, Yancheng Dafeng,  * gL W‘I'EH%/@% FEIE - TERSRE - EHROKRE .

Qianhai Mingtian, the Company, #3128 %

fi% A BR A &) (Shenzhen

Fanhai Holdings Limited*) (“Shenzhen Fanhai”) and Zhuhai Hengfeng
Heshun Petrochemical Company Limited* (¥5 /8 15 & M JE A LB R A 7).

1. As the Company’s ESG indicator for 2019 included Jiangsu Hairong, part

of indicators were materially different from last year;

2. Water consumption for the full year included water supply of Jiangsu
Hairong to the berthed vessel owner and water stored in the fire

protection water tank.

88 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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CONTENT INDEX OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING
GUIDE OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

e ]

P

BRP(RE - £ REBHRERES])

Indicators | Details Report Content Index
BE 3L HBERBRSG
A. Environmental
ARE
Aspect Al: Emissions
BEA: BB
General Disclosure Emission reduction
— R IR R B K BE IR
ALl The types of emissions and respective emissions data Emission reduction
HEa ) & 1R N HE B BE R BUR B K BE IR
Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, | Emission reduction
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility) Sustainable performance
BERBAFRECAMARE) R(MER)BE(MAGESEN - B |FEHK
Rt &) ARFEERRR
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, |Emission reduction
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility) Sustainable performance
FEXEESEEVRE UHAE)R(MER)ERE(WMNESEN - § | BEYERK
BREETE ARFBEERRE
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emission reduction
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility) | Sustainable performance
EAEREREEMEE UNEAZE)R(MER) ZE(MAESEN - 5 |REHK
BHRMEETH) AFEERKRE
A15 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved |Emission reduction
AR BE 2 B9 1R b K P S B R Fé K BE hX
Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, | Emission reduction
reduction initiatives and results achieved [ 1 BE Bl
REBEERBEEEDNGE REEEENEBMRAGHR

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: ERER

General Disclosure

Use of resources

— R E BIRGER
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas | Use of resources
or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production | Sustainable performance
volume, per facility). & RE A
REDEASHEER SHELRWE fRfn@REEUTET |AIFKEZERXER
REFAEILREE(MAGEESEN  BEREAE) -
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production |Use of resources
volume, per facility). Sustainable performance
BEKERTEWAEBEESEMN  BERMTHE) - IR A
AHEERRE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved |Use of resources
BERME AR ER AT 8 MRS AR BIRER

HRNERBERGERAR
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Indicators | Details Report Content Index

BER B3 BERBERS

A2.4 Description water efficiency initiatives and results achieved Use of resources
RAAKERGEERAERR BIREHM

A2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

HEmAAEEMANEE UBHE) R(WER) BEEEMEE -

Not applicable: the
Company'’s business does
not involve the use of
packaging material

TEA  RRARBER
WA BB R

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEAI: RERXARER

General Disclosure

Emission reduction

—REE B K HE 7R
A3.1 The significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural |Emission reduction
resources and the actions taken to manage them Safety Risk Control
EBEHHRENRABERNEAFERCRNEEAAZENTH (BREHENK
72 ERE
B. Social
BAE

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1: &M

General Disclosure

Employment management

— M= compliance
ERERERE
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Employment management
geographical region. compliance
ZER - EEED  FRANRMEISHIES B - Sustainable performance
ERERERE
ARBEERRER
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Sustainable performance
region. ARBEERRR

BIER - FRAMNRMREDMEEREKLE -

General Disclosure

Safe operation management

—RKE ZEBEEE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Safety and health protection
EATHEBEMBTHAZRKLE Sustainable performance
LERERE
ARFBEERRR
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Safety and health protection
ETHGEATIERH Sustainable performance
TERERE
AREERRR
B2.3 Occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are | Safety and health protection
implemented and monitored TR RERE
PIER OB R FERL2HE  ARBERTRERTE
90 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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ERME

Indicators

58

Details

18

Report Content Index
BERBERS

Aspect B3: Development and Training
EEB3: &R REZFI

General Disclosure

Employee development

— R E training
BT#HRE
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Employee development
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). training
U RESEN(NEREERE $REBES) B HHX I EEE |Sustainable performance
L e BTEEEI
AREERRE
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and |Employee development

employee category

RERMEEEBRENE D - BREETAIIN TR

training
Sustainable performance
BITERF
ARFEERRER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4: 55T %R

General Disclosure

Employment management

— MR 5= compliance
EHRERERE

B4.1 Measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced |Employment management
labour compliance
AR EANNEEABRET RRH ST BRERER

B4.2 Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered Employment management

FEHIREMRB I IHRA RIS IR 2R

compliance

B RERE R

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
EmEBS: ftiEHEE R

General Disclosure

Supplier management

—REE HEmeEE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region Supplier management
ZimERE SN EEREE Sustainable performance
HEmE R
ARHBEERAR
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of Supplier management
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they | #t Ji& 75 & 2

are implemented and monitored
HOAEHAERHERNED MERTEAENNHERHEE UK
BRBHOMITRERTE

EMENBEROERDT
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EEBs: EmEME

Indicators | Details Report Content Index
BER B3 BERBERS
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

General Disclosure

Customer service

EmEB7: R&ES

— R E BEPR
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for  |Not applicable
safety and health reasons i A
EEXRCEXERBHTRL 2 ERREHMARNKRNAS L
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how | Customer service
they are dealt with PR
EEBARERRBOKRFEBEARBEE T E
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Not applicable
intellectual property rights A i@ B
i B g RRIE B E A A BRI
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures Not applicable
HEERTRAEREREKRET A3 A
B6.5 Consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are Customer service
implemented and monitored B PR
HBEEBRERLEBER  URBBERTRERF A
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

General Disclosure

Law compliance

EBHBS : HERE

— R E SEER
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought | Law compliance
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and | 5F/& & #R
the outcomes of the cases
REBRAAHETAXHRERDVCEEANESHFRARENEER
BN
B7.2 Preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, and how they are | Law compliance
implemented and monitored SFEA R
e RBRET  URBERNTRERF A
Aspect B8: Community Investment

General Disclosure

Community participation

—RIR = R
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, | Community participation
labour needs, health, culture, sport) i
HIERER(IWHE RREEE SBIFR -@EF XXt 875)
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area Community participation
EEIHRMPBER(MSENRMHE) Mk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Y

To the shareholders of
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 103 to 231, which comprise the consolidated
December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

statement of financial position as at 31
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to the "Going concern basis” section in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements concerning the
adoption of the going concern basis on which the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared. The Group incurred
loss from continuing operations of HK$944,991,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and, as at that date, the Group
had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
HK$788,508,000 and HK$950,907,000 respectively. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore that it may
be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business. The directors, having considered
the measures being taken by the Group as disclosed in note
2 to the consolidated financial statements, are of the opinion
that the Group would be able to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments that would
result from a failure of achieving the measures. We consider
appropriate disclosures have been made in this respect. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“"Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

94 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BYRBEAEE

AREFTEE@®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HEEITER
Impairment assessment on goodwill

2 2R L 16 AT A

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

R A EREN E16

The carrying amounts of the Group’s goodwill amounted
to HK$1,296,000 as at 31 December 2019. Impairment
loss on goodwill of HK$223,782,000 is recognised for the
year then ended.

EEERER _T-NAF+_A=+t—HZEHER
12960008 T - BEEHA L FERRBBERERS R
223,782,000 7T °

Management performed annual impairment test on
goodwill. The goodwill was allocated to related cash
generating units (“CGUs"), and the recoverable amount
of CGUs was determined by management based on
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-
use calculation using discounted cash flow projection.
The calculations involved significant judgement and
estimations, such as cash flows forecasts, discount rates
and growth rates, and the identification of related CGUs.
Given the significance of the amount and judgement
involved, the impairment assessment is considered as a
key audit matter.

ERESFHHAEBETRENR BEESIREZEBE
CEAEN(REELEM]) MRSELSEM 2 KE
CHAEEEERURBRERERARBEATERLESE
RAREREENBRSERE)FEETE -FAESRE
RAET KB MBEREER - BREERREXKE
BIRCEABMZHA - ERFTRERNSRERAE - B
BFEEE R —HBRESEE -

REFHTEEHERENAETEZILTE

Our key audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

EENRAEREMGETCHERENIEFEE:

—  Assessing the identification of CGUs based
on the Group’s accounting policies and our
understanding of the Group’s business;

— RBRE EXESABRRXKESTY BEEEK
ZTHRARBREESLEM &R A E:

—  Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodologies in estimating recoverable
amounts of CGUs;

— FIERGEFRELAEBEUL 2AWE S ERER
ZEERERERE:

— Assessing the competency, objectivity,
capabilities and results of the work of the
independent professional valuer that was
appointed by the management to assist
management in determining the recoverable
amounts of the relevant CGUs;

— HEEBEMZEEBUZEEMAEMZER T
BE IR IERUBDEREEETEBAR
CEABMZATRO SRR

—  Challenging the independent professional valuer
the methodologies and judgments used in
valuing the recoverable amount of CGUs;

— MBUEXGHEMRGEERSAEEML 2D
WeBEmAHERHE IR DE &

REBNERBERBERD R 95
2019 F3R



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) HAREEITEE @)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HARBENEE REFTHPEERESETEEZAE

Impairment assessment on goodwill (Continued)

B AE A1 (E)

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)
BRGEHFIREN T16 (&)

—  Engaging auditor’'s expert to assist us in
assessing the reasonableness of assumptions
and judgments used by management and the
independent external valuer; and

— ZEERBMERGHESFEERRENREILI
MEEMMARKILHAGTREAE: &

— Assessing the competency, objectivity,
capabilities and results of the work of the
auditor’s expert.

— FHMERBEERZER  FTEE IR ITEE
2o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BYRBEAEE

AREFTEE@®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HEEITER
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

W¥E BMERZXEZHE

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements

REEG A ERIZNF15

The property, plant and equipment with carrying amounts
at 31 December 2019 in aggregate of HK$319,635,000
as disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements were tested for impairment because
impairment indications were identified. Impairment loss
on property, plant and equipment of HK$621,633,000 is
recognised for the year then ended.
RERBHRERMIGAREDE BERRXKBER-_Z—N
F+ZA=+-— EZE;EETED/\Z%MQ&SOOO/%E5&?‘}
MEANS  RARLERBEIR BEZALFERERY
¥ BB KR R B 5 15621,633,00078 7T ©

The impairment test of property, plant and equipment
required significant judgement and estimations and the
determination of the level at which impairment should
be tested. Given the significance of the amount and
judgement involved, the impairment assessment is
considered as a key audit matter.

ME - BEMREZRENATEE KA METREE
EETRENRZER ERNFIRERSBARHE K
BFEEREAS—RBAREFFE -

REFHTEEHERENAETEZILTE

Our key audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment included:

ERME - BELRBZBREFGHETZEAREN
&V“%-

— Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology in estimating the recoverable
amounts of those assets;

— FHMERGFRFEEZANEERER ZMAE
HEREA

— Assessing the competency, objectivity,
capabilities and results of the work of the
independent professional valuer that was
appointed by the management to assist
management in determining the recoverable
amount of relevant CGUs;

— AEEBREMZEBYEEMGEMZER TFE
B W RIEERIAGERBETABRS
EAEBMzAIKE S :

—  Challenging the independent professional valuer
the methodologies and judgments used in valuing
the recoverable amount of CGUs;

— MBVEEGEMREEREEEM 2AIEIR
TRRMARAERFE R L E 5

— Engaging auditor's expert to assist us in
assessing the reasonableness of assumptions
and judgments used by management and the
independent external valuer; and

— ZIZEMER G E ST EE K&
HEMBREAGMAREAE &

— Assessing the competency, objectivity,
capabilities and results of the work of the auditor’s

expert.
— HERBMERZER BBE REORTHES
2o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

BAREEFTEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RETERE
Impairment of trade receivables

ESEKRFEZHE

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements

BIRE B TEIRE N 23

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables
amounted to HK$97,673,000 as at 31 December 2019,
with loss allowance of HK$9,542,000 being provided for
the year ended.

RZZBE-NAF+ZA=+—HB > EBEEXEHEFEKRKIEZ
FRE1E /97,673,000 7T » WEREEZFEHEEE R
9,542,000/ 7T °

Loss allowances for trade receivables are based on
management'’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit
losses to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
trade receivables, customers’ repayment history and
customers’ financial position and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management
judgement. Given the significance of the amount and
judgement involved, the impairment assessment is
considered a key audit matter.
BORWABZEEBEDANEEBHBELEZ 2 HE
HEEBRZAGAREE 2HENEEFBRNKLEE
EEBELR BHESRWFIAREK TRERLK
REPF 2 B iR A K 5 B AT R TE R BB BN 25
HRIELMEE L ZREEA S REBEE AN -
ERFRERcERAE  RETERELS-AERS
FHEIE -
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REFHTEEFERENFETEZILE

Our key audit procedures in relation to the
recoverability assessment of those receivables
included:
EERRFRYWRIB Z AT M EET T EER
BFEeE:

—  Discussing with the management the Group's
credit control policy and credit terms granted to
the customers;

— HEEEHNw ESEEZEEARBRERART
FPREZEER:

—  Evaluating the management’s loss allowance
assessment of trade receivables, including
reviewing the ageing information, past
repayment patterns and the information of
future economic condition;

— IREBEERHESRWRBEEBREBZTME
BEEBHNRKRERN BEEFRTARKELE
R E

—  Assessing the critical judgements made by the
management regarding the factors considered
during the loss allowance assessment; and

— MEEEREERFEEERERAMEREEE
Hz BARHE R

— Inspecting subsequent cash receipts from
customers relating to those balances as at 31
December 2019, on a sample basis.

— WERER T NFT_A=+T—"HZ&ZFE
BMERWRM 2 EFPE KA -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
in the Company's 2019 annual report but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

R T

ftt & #

pu

BUMBHRERESZREERE -

FUHRAVBRRREZERLTREEM
B BENTERERECTAEAZIRES

3 my IH
>

o

REFHRAMBRRETZIEFATIEMS
EFRERMEEGBEN AHEKBERFERR
MERNELRGEMBRRABTFLETLF
PIESERNZEHREATHEMTER  XNRE
Htp MR ERERRA - HEFEERA
ETTEMSHEMENEERNERRL 24
i MIEERERBEAIBER it EFLE
AERZEH -

AEEMARSMBHRRAR

BERAEFAARRBEA GRS RML
FREPBREERNNBBRBEO Z R EER -
REEBMAFZEEMBHRE  REEHR
RREGAVBERRMVEZNEMEE - AE
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EXRERRAL -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate,

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

they could

of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement

of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

R T
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 7 May 2020

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is:

Chan Wai Man

Practising Certificate number: P02487

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEWER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Continuing operations FEQEXK
Revenue Uk 2= 6 1,517,072 4,169,489
Cost of revenue W &8 AR AR (1,516,229) (4,205,948)
Gross profit/(loss) EF,(FE18) 843 (36,459)
Other income H b W A 7 26,862 28,389
Administrative expenses TR X (64,796) (72,708)
Finance costs A& KA 8 (58,744) (31,445)
Impairment loss on trade B o REKFERBERBRE
receivables 36(a)(iii) (9,542) -
Impairment loss on goodwill EESNREN SR 16 (223,782) (14,844)
Impairment loss on property, plant #1% - BB &k & #& 2 B E
and equipment &5 18 15 (621,633) (23,804)
Reversal of impairment loss on FREEEREREEEE
right-of-use assets 17 6,312 -
Impairment loss on prepaid lease T HE 3 2 B A E B
payment 18 = (6,2006)
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of LEMB AR .2
subsidiaries (BB, = 25 (312) 261
Loss before taxation from BEREEEZRBA
continuing operations B8 9 (944,792) (157,516)
Taxation BB N (199) (59)

Loss for the year from continuing HEREEBZFREER

operations (944,991) (157,575)
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
Loss for the year from ERIEREEBZFNR
discontinued operations & 18 - (16,435)
Loss for the year FRER (944,991) (174,010)
Other comprehensive loss Hitb2EHEE
Items that are reclassified B 5 A AR AE
or may be reclassified to BRI E D IEEIE
profit or loss in subsequent @mZHA -
periods:
Exchange difference arising BMEBINEBEEZ
from translation of foreign =5
operations (15,023) (15,047)
(15,023) (15,047)

Total comprehensive loss for the FRZ2HEEBEEE
year (960,014) (189,057)

REBNENERGERAR 103
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEWER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Loss attributable to equity KATRERIEBAERN
holders of the Company: s
— from continuing operations — REFAELEED (946,599) (147,097)
— from discontinued — REERIEEEET
operations = (8,533)
(946,599) (155,630)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to non- 3E #= IR # 2% FE {15 % R
controlling interests: J(EBB) -
— from continuing operations — REFAELEED 1,608 (10,478)
— from discontinued — REERIEEEET
operations = (7,902)
1,608 (18,380)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ UTATEER2E(EE)
income attributable to: W3S A
— Owners of the Company Bl WNETEZZ =N (961,159) (168,081)
— Non-controlling interests — FEERRE R 1,145 (20,976)
(960,014) (189,057)
Loss per share attributable to ~ RABERFEAEES
equity holders of the Company R E#
Basic and diluted WS E: P
— from continuing operations — REFBELEERS (73.49) HK cents (11.42) HK cents
13 (73.49) 1L (11.42) & Al
— from discontinued — REEBRIFELEER (0.66) HK cents
operations 13 = (0.66) AL

(73.49) HK cents (12.08) HK cents
(73.49) 381l (12.08) 781l

1 O 4 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R R

At 31 December 2019 R=ZZE—hhF+=-A=+—H

Non-current assets

HARBEE

2019
ZE-NF

HK$'000
FERT

2018
—EN\E
HK$'000
FER

Property, plant and equipment Y- BEREHE 15 319,635 960,685
Goodwill kS 16 1,296 225,151
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 43,370 -
Prepaid lease payments ERHEERMNK 18 = 34,135
Sea use right payments 78 130 {68 PR R AR 19 = 2,848
Prepayments in relation to AE - -BEMRBLZ
property, plant and equipment TE 5k I8 20 4,596 500
Security deposit for loan froma REF=ZAZERZ
third party IRE & 27(b) - 3,416
368,897 1,226,735
Current assets REEE
Prepaid lease payments ENEERK 18 - 989
Sea use right payments 1 R R TR 19 = 72
Financial asset at fair value BEAFEFAERZN
through profit or loss TRMEE 21 3,343 7,971
Inventories FE 22 6,309 16,720
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A fE U 5RIE 23 602,162 1,090,644
Pledged bank deposits DEMETFER 24(a) 395,612 307,449
Bank balances and cash RITEB MRS 24 35,296 64,588
1,042,722 1,488,433
Disposal group classified as held 2D AFIELE 2 H
for sale EEE - 54,566
1,042,722 1,542,999
Current liabilities REBE
Trade and other payables B 5K E A EA A 26 1,652,922 1,946,976
Current portion of bank and other #8747 & H fth & & 2 B1 Hj
borrowings i 27 178,059 140,633
Taxation BIE 249 177
1,831,230 2,087,786
Liabilities associated with disposal Hi 538 &FEHE 2
group classified as held for sale HESEF@EzAE 25 - 46,429
1,831,230 2,134,215
Net current liabilities ERBEE (788,508) (591,216)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABEE (419,611) 635,519
REBNERERBERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B B IR &

At 31 December 2019 R=ZZ—hF+-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T F& T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amount due to a connected JE — B B8 EAR A
company 26(b)(iii) 126,654 -
Non-current portion of bank and R{T R HfEE 2 JERIHA
other borrowings 2B 27 397,769 611,492
Deferred tax liabilities EER I EE 28 6,873 7,100
531,296 618,592
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS B (BE)&E (950,907) 16,927
Capital and reserves BEXRHE
Share capital fi% < 29 12,880 12,880
Reserves s (980,392) (19,233)
Total equity attributable to equity ZRAT 5B A E(L#
holders of the Company B (967,512) (6,353)
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR = 16,605 23,280
TOTAL (DEFICITS)/EQUITY (B4 RERE (950,907) 16,927

These consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to MREIBHEZEFBIENGEATKHREREN T
231 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Z—ZEFHAtHELES=SH AELTETE - I

Directors on 7 May 2020 and signed on its behalf by: HATATRERESZ:
Tao Ying Miao Zhibin
M & 255
Director Director
BE EF

1 O 6 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRBSEHR

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Note 29)
(B &29)

Share

capital

(Note 31(a)
31a))

Share

premium

Attributable to equit

(Note 31(b))
(GEX)

Capital

reserve

(Note 31(c))
(M3E3110)

Exchange

reserve

holders of the Company

PN

(Note 31(d))
(GEXC);

Statutory

reserve

(Note 31(e))
(Ki3E31(6)

Other

reserve

Accumulated

losses

Total

Non-
controlling

interests

Total
(deficits)
equity

RE BRGE e ETEEE HtEE  RHEE
HK$:000 HK§'000 HK$:000 HK§'000 HK$:000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000
FAT BT FAET BT FAET FHT ThET BT ThET TAT
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\§-fA—H 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (239) 826 (9151 (37,211 161,127 35,334 196,461
Effect on adopting of Hong Kong R & BB H 428
Financial Reporting Standard 9 R EE - - - - - - 601 601 - 601
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZZ-\F—-A—-AR
(7)) 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (239) 826 (9,151) (36,670) 161,728 35,334 197,062
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (155,630)  (155,630) (18,380) (174,010)
Other comprehensive loss Eth2EER
Exchange difference arising from ~ REFNEBEEL
translation of foreign operations ~ EXZ%H - - - (12,451) - - - (12,451) (2,59) (15,047)
Total comprehensive loss EAEREE - - - (12,451) - - (1556300 (168081)  (20976)  (189,057)
Transactions with owners BEFAZRS
Changes in ownership interests B EE#EE
Contributions from non-controlling ~ #£4% ff i 25 i3 &
interests (note a) (GED) - - - - - - - - 8,416 8,416
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RREARA - - - - - - - - 506 506
Contributions and distributions AERAF
Appropriation to statutory reserve 9 Bt 25 E R - - - - 5 - () - - -
Total transactions with owners RBEFAZRAAE - - - - 5 - () - 8922 8,922
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N§
+=B=t-H 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (12,690) 831 9151 (192,305) (6,353) 23,280 16927
REBNENRROBRDLA 107
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRSEHR

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EINGE £33 PN 1
(Note 29) (Note 31(a)) (Note 31(b)) (Note 31(c) (Note 31(d)) (Note 31(e))
(MaE29)  (W&E31(a) (MEREND)  (MHEE3NC) (MAE3M()  (M&E31(e)
Non- Total
Share Share Capital ~ Exchange  Statutory Other Accumulated controlling  (deficits)

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests equity
(BAb)

B  RfEE EARE EXRHE  AERE  AtEE  RHER i FERREE  REAR

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TERT TERL TERL TER TERL TER

At 1 January 2019 RZZ-N5-A-H 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (12,690) 831 (9151)  (192,305) (6,353) 23,280 16,927
Loss for the year EFRER - - - - - - (946,599)  (946,599) 1,608 (944991)
Other comprehensive loss A2 EER

Exchange difference arising from ~ #BEBNEBEE L

translation of foreign operations ERzE - - - (14,560) - - - (14,560) (463) (15,023)
Total comprehensive loss 2EEREE - - - (14,560) - - (946,599)  (961,159) 1145 (960,014)
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS

Changes in ownership interests B EEZEH
Contributions from non-controlling ~ #{X g 1 &

interests (note a) (GED) - - - - - - - - 8,169 8,169
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 25) &M B A
(Brsk25) = = = = = = = - (15989)  (15989)

Contributions and distributions RERATE

Appropriation to statutory reserve 9 B0 2 A E R = = = - 2 - 0] - - -
Total transactions with owners BEEAZRS4E = = = = 2 - @) - (7,820) (7,820)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NFE

+ZA=t-H 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (27,250) 833 9151)  (1,138,906) (967,512) 16,605 (950,907)

Note a:  The amounts represented the capital contribution from non-controlling ~ Mitta: BB ARAFEANEARAMHERE ORI BRA

interests of AT/&BAR & # R II) ABR2E (Qianhai Mingtian Supply A ([AEAXDRRINTIZEERARLAA (DR
Chain (Shenzhen) Company Limited*, “Qianhai Mingtian”) and &3 Iz 8 1) Z IE ¥ B & 9 Bl /& 48,169,000 T K&
T2 /B8R BMRAA (Shenzhen Fanhai Holdings Company Limited*, T8 T (ZF — )\ : 2,354,0007% 7T 126,062,00078
“Shenzhen Fanhai”) of HK$8,169,000 and HK$nil (2018: HK$2,354,000 T °

and HK$6,062,000) during the year.

The official names is in Chinese and English name are translated for identification purpose only.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
ZE-hF —T—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFTH
Cash generated from operations &2 EKAER & 32(a) 270,711 260,681
Interest paid B A (32,008) (31,356)
Tax paid BRI (314) (2,349)
Net cash from operating RETETDREREFH
activities 238,389 226,976
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Proceeds from disposals of HEME BMERZEBZ
property, plant and equipment T3 38 4 565
Net cash outflow on acquisitions WEHEB AR ZE &R
of subsidiaries F R - (138,441)
Interest received 24 F B 14,635 1,536
(Increase) Decrease in pledged B R TG )
bank deposits Ve (96,484) 22,083
Purchase of property, plant and EEWZX - BE L& HE
equipment (35,092) (40,008)
Net cash inflow (outflow) on HE—HWBARZRE
disposal of a subsidiary mACR ) 88 25 11,297 (50)
Proceed on disposal of financial HEEAFHETABERZ
assets at FVPL TREEMBREA 211,015 9,407
Purchase of financial asset at FVPL BEEZ AT EFTAERZ
TREE (206,475) (7,971)
Dividend received from an BEHEEE e QA
associate in disposal group WOER 2 B2 = 142
Net cash used in investing REETBHFARESFEHE
activities (101,100) (152,737)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BLEE B
New loan from a connected RKEBEQR ZHER
company = 197,594
New bank borrowings MIRTTEE - 250
Contributions from non- FEEREREE
controlling interests 8,169 8,416
Net proceeds from placing of REFLTEERESRZ
unlisted secured bonds Fr 8 s F 58 - 385,160
Repayment of obligations under {EEFl & H & & IE
finance leases - (2,793)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMEMEAE (1,249) -
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITER (111,240) (317,540)
Repayment of loan from a third BEEKREE=ZFTZ2EX
party (23,294) (23,019)
Repayment of loan from BEREBEATZER
connected parties (37,458) (317,689)
Net cash used in financing RMEETHARESESE
activities 32(b) (165,072) (69,621)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—2-nE —z-N\%

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET

Net (decrease) increase in cash HekBeEEYWORD)
and cash equivalents 30 EE (27,783) 4,618

Cash and cash equivalents at FNHReRREEEY
beginning of year 63,652 61,703
Effect on exchange rate changes [EX# &) & & (573) (2,669)

Cash and cash equivalents at end TR\ S KRS EEY (A

of year, represented by bank RITEHBEBE SRR

balances and cash, net of bank HBRIBITE X

overdrafts 24 35,296 63,652
Major non-cash transactions: FEFRERS:

Acquisitions of property, plant and 1R & @ & fl & %2 BE BB
equipment under finance lease  M% - B&E K& #
arrangement = 3,275

Consideration payable in respect 3t U B — [ M B 2 5 FES

of acquisition of a subsidiary ZRE = 323,539
Consideration receivable in BHE—FMWBRREWK

respect of disposal of a ZRE

subsidiary 25 111 911

1 10 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited (the
"Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
13 September 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The Company's shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of the registered office of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business is located at Unit 1009, Exchange Tower, 33 Wang
Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are detailed in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are herein collectively referred to as
the “Group”. In the opinion of the directors, the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company is Dafeng
Port Overseas Investment Holdings Limited ("Dafeng Port
Overseas”), which is incorporated in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

AEEH

EEMERERNDBERAF(ERFD
DRZZE——FNAT=-HREBEHSHS
FRERNEE(—NA—FBIFEN - &
meakEF)EREHEIMA L AER
RBEREMERAE - RARKROHNE BB
AERGHMERAR (B AT]) GEM ET °
AN F] Z 7 89 = BE AL Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands > 2
EEMBANBE BN NEE RBIES]
SR B ER R 5 01009 % ©

AR BREERAT  KHERATZE
BEBREGA BB REM B - &
AAREMBARSBAAEE] - £F
RA  ARTZEEREKERATAR
EBEMAL 2 RSB ALBRE
RAR (K ZBE) -

2IEE

HZEREUMBBRRDIBRBER BB REE
Al(EBMB/EEN] BREELEES
fhne ((ERETMAE])PTBMHIAE
REEMBHREER - BAEEFLEAN(E
BEFEDEGERE)  EELRERA
REBRRGHZEBRBTBEREMRER
ZERAMBHRRITETEH R TGEME
F AR (GEMETRRA ) 7 & A% E
&> o

RREEREN  FASENNEERE
S F i 2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

2.

112

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies
adopted in the 2018 consolidated financial statements
except for the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that
are relevant to the Group and effective from the current
year as detailed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. A summary of the principal accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$788,508,000 (2018:
approximately HK$591,216,000) and net liabilities of
approximately HK$950,907,000 (2018: net assets of
approximately HK$16,927,000) respectively. In addition, it
incurred a loss of approximately HK$944,991,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$174,010,000).
These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and,
therefore, the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid conditions, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis on the assumption that the Group
is able to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable
future. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group can meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within the next twelve months, after taking into
consideration of the measures and arrangements made by
the Group as detailed below:

(i) the unutilised banking facilities readily available
to the Group amounted to approximately
HK$29,576,000 at 31 December 2019;

(i) the Group is in negotiation with financial institutions
for the renewals of the Group's short-term bank
borrowings upon expiry, new borrowings and
application of additional credit facilities;

(i) the Group is expected to generate adequate cash
flows to maintain its operations; and

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—-Z—

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)
(iv) proposed disposal of 60% equity interests in)L

HRERMAZEMREIBEER QA

Hairong Dafeng Port Petrochemical Product Terminal

(Jiangsu
Company Limited*, “Jiangsu Hairong”).

LRI
(Yancheng Dafeng Heshun

For the proposed disposal of Jiangsu Hairong,
EMIEERESBR AT
International Trading Company Limited*, “Heshun
Trading”), a subsidiary of the Company and /L& X 2§
B EE AR AR (Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Holdings
Limited*, “Jiangsu Dafeng”) entered into a share transfer
agreement to transfer 60% equity interests in Jiangsu
Hairong to Jiangsu Dafeng at the consideration of
RMB226,980,000 (equivalent to HK$252,947,000) on 28
April 2020. Since Jiangsu Dafeng is a connected person to
the Group, the completion of the disposal will be subject
to the approval from the independent shareholders in
accordance with GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2019, the net current liabilities and
net liabilities of Jiangsu Hairong were approximately
HK$592,761,000 and HK$412,803,000 respectively. The
directors are of their opinion that after the disposal,
Jiangsu Hairong would become an associate of the
Company and its financial position would not be
consolidated and the financial position of the Group would

then be improved.

The directors have prepared a cash flow forecast covering
a period up to 30 June 2021 on the basis that the disposal
of 60% shareholding of Jiangsu Hairong and negotiation
with financial institutions for the renewals of the Group's
borrowings and credit facilities would be successful, and
are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within the twelve months from 31 December 2019.
Accordingly, the directors consider that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

2.

e M RRME

NFE+_A=+—HILFE
ENEE @)
BEEREEE(H)

(ivy BEbesIsmsmAReEhntl
ﬁ%»ﬁﬁﬁﬁ T(DI /Fﬂj)ﬁ@éo%ﬁi
7 o

MEZLEIH SRS @ B KERM

IEERE S BRAT (FIEEZE S]] K7
MTE AETHALEBIERERGR
AR(ITE#ARE))R-_ZE-_ZTFWMA -+

NBETL DB ERZE ARTIHEKE
BEIIAERN60%IIE  RER/RARE

226,980,0007T (48 & 252,947,000/ 7T) °
MR TIEBALEARNEENBEEAL TR
HEEIEEREGEM E 8 B & 0B I’
Bt R - HAEE -

RZE-NF+-_A=+—8B I1%E
RORDABFEREEFEIANOR

592,761,0007% T 52412,803,000/8 7T - &%
e HEEEE  IHERBKAARA
AIMEEE QR HBBMKRGTEE 6
MASEMNTBRAKEE B NRE -

EFCANHETIHERA60% I E K &2
PRREREESAEEERREERE
ETHENESKIMEEREEEZES
S —FXNAZTAHLBEZRERETE
B WEMREEBEERHEEESRE
TREZE—NFTZA=+T—BRB:T
ZEARIEBR HBEE - At EER
F%HZ SEREERREGAVBRERE
BEH SR -

The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated for identification purpose only.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

2.

114

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)

In light of the measures and arrangements implemented
to date, the directors of the Company are of the view
that the Group has sufficient cash resources to satisfy
its working capital and other financial obligations for the
next twelve months after having taken into account of the
Group's projected cash flows, current financial resources
and capital expenditure requirements with respect to the
development of its business. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company are of the view that it is appropriate
to prepare these consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the directors of the Company will
be able to achieve its plans and measures as described
above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would depend upon the Group's ability to
generate adequate financing and operating cash flows in
the near future and obtain the continuous financial support
from its substantial shareholders.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
restate the values of assets to their estimated recoverable
amounts, to provide further liabilities that might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

2015-2017 Cycle

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases

Annual Improvements Project — 2015-2017
Cycle

HKAS 23: Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

The amendments clarify that (a) if a specific borrowing
remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is
ready for its intended use or sale, it becomes part of the
funds an entity borrows generally and (b) funds borrowed
specifically to obtain an asset other than a qualifying asset
are included as part of general borrowings.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements in HKAS 12
Income Taxes by specifying how to reflect the effects of
uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

The adoption of the Interpretation does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

RN RETERUBR
HEEA

AEECEREA T EAEEFRE 2
A/ RRERT BB HREER:

BRMBREREY —FT-HFE
FEBE —E-EFEN
TR (BREVHHRE ENHEEZ
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122358
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F165%

FERERE — —F-HFEZ
E-tFEH

BEREMERERR SERBRTELZ
BE KA

EFTABRBEQME B EEKXREEEE
REEFREMAEGREERDAEERE &
—RERBERBERESHN — D R(b)
FRl SRMEBEE(BRAEEREEINNMEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

116

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9: Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income instead of at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") if specified conditions are met.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 and related Interpretations
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. It
significantly changes, among others, the lessee accounting
by replacing the dual-model under HKAS 17 with a single
model which requires a lessee to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for the rights and obligations
created by all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. For lessor
accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a
lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases
or finance leases, and to account for those two types
of leases differently. HKFRS 16 also requires enhanced
disclosures to be provided by lessees and lessors.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time at 1 January 2019
(i.e. the date of initial application, the "DIA") using the
modified retrospective approach in which comparative
information has not been restated. Instead, the Group
recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying
HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the balance of accumulated
losses or other component of equity, where appropriate,
at the DIA.

The Group also elected to use the transition practical
expedient not to reassess whether a contract was, or
contained, a lease at the DIA and the Group applied
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and to contracts entered into
or changed on or after the DIA that are identified as leases
applying HKFRS 16.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)
As lessee

Before the adoption of HKFRS 16, lease contracts were
classified as operating or finance lease in accordance with
the Group's accounting policies applicable prior to the
DIA.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group accounted for
the leases in accordance with the transition provisions of
HKFRS 16 and the Group's accounting policies applicable
from the DIA.

As lessee — leases previously classified as operating
leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases previously classified as operating
leases at the DIA, except for leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value, and the Group applied the
following practical expedients on a lease-by-lease basis.

(@)  Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics.

(b) Did not recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities to leases for which the lease term ends
within 12 months of the DIA.

()  Excluded initial direct costs from the measurement
of the right-of-use assets at the DIA.

(d)  Used hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend or terminate
the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—

3.

118

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

As lessee — leases previously classified as operating

leases (Continued)

At the DIA, right-of-use assets were, on a lease-by-lease

basis, measured at either,

(a)

applied since the commencement date,

discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing

rate at the DIA; or

payments relating to the lease

immediately before the DIA.

Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the DIA. The weighted
average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease

liabilities at the DIA is 10.56% per annum.

Reconciliation of operating lease commitments disclosed
December 2018 and lease

applying HKAS 17 at 31
liabilities recognised at the DIA is as follows.

their carrying amount as if HKFRS 16 had been

an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
recognised

NE+ZA=+—HILFE

3. RMFHT KRBT EBUHER
HER (@)

ERMBREENF 165 HE@

ERABAN — KA BEAKEHENA

g(&)

REXRERBY  EREEENREZRA

HEREERUATHE

(@ HE@E BOEFBHBHEHRSER
but FREEMMBHEER AR

EAEREAREBERERARHNNES
BRI RAEITREIR - K

HERNHERBEN SR IRER
BXAEREMAEAZHEHEGRN
EREMKESFEEN RSB
% o

HERBEZHKTHENRZREFE - X
18 AT AR B X E R B HI A I8 8 18 3KA)
KRR - REXEAEHMBEHEERERA
H) D04 3538 2 18 3 F ) K 7510.56%

RZZE-N\F+_A=+—HEREES
AEREIUTR BB AEHERERNE
RERABERZAEAGENHEKENAT

HK$000

Operating lease commitments at

TET

R-ZZE—-NE+-_A=+—82

31 December 2018 4 T B R E 4,260
Less: Short-term leases and other leases with B REEEE AT HEER
remaining lease term ending on or before T-NF+ZA=+t—B%x
31 December 2019 A E RO EMESE (1,811)
Gross lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 R-ZE-NWF-A-—BHNHEEEE
R 2,449
Less: Total future interest expenses B R R B 85 (113)
Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF-—HA—HNHEEAR 2,336

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs 3. RPHFE REITEBUER

(Continued) HER @)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued) EEMBREENFI6H  HE@
As lessee ERABEA

At the DIA, all right-of-use assets were presented within RERERBEH MECAEEEZIRN
the line item “right-of-use assets” on the consolidated mAaMBRAXRNEREEEIEER -

statement of financial position.

As a result, the adjustments to the opening balance At - RZZE-NF—-—A—-HBERER
(affected items only) below were made from the initial BB RELEFIGHREERHAETX
application of HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019. The prior- g (EFERE) - IS EL KA
period amounts were not adjusted. o

31 December
2018 Adjustment

—E-N\F
+=-A=+—H” EikS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FA T FAT
Increase
(Decrease)
2 n CRl 2)
Assets BE
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 40,380 40,380
Prepaid lease payments FENEENR 35,124 (35,124) -
Sea use rights payments G R T 2,920 (2,920) -
Liabilities &fE
Lease liabilities HEBE - (2,336) (2,336)

38,044 - 38,044
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

4.

120

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical costs, except
for financial assets at FVPL, which are measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as that of the
Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event
of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or
at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are initially measured at fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to the owners of the Company and
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
determined at the date when control is lost and (i)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests at the date when control is lost. The amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for
on the same basis as would be required if the Company
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and
any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture
or others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether
it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of
control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HLFE
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122

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, which
is presented in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, an investment in subsidiaries is stated at
cost less impairment loss. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on
an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
measured at the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of any previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of
the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if
any, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as an income from bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification. Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
that comprises operations and cash flows that can be
clearly distinguished, operationally and for financial
reporting purposes, from the rest of the Group.
It represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the
operation is abandoned.

Prepaid lease payments

Before 1 January 2019, prepaid lease payments are up-
front payments to acquire fixed term interests in lessee-
occupied land that are classified as operating leases. The
premiums are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses and are amortised over the period
of the lease on a straight-line basis to profit or loss. From
1 January 2019, these payments are accounted for as right-
of-use assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Sea use rights payments

Before 1 January 2019, sea use rights payments are up-
front payments to acquire fixed term interests in lessee-
occupied sea areas that are classified as operating
leases. The premiums are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses and are amortised
over the period of the lease on a straight-line basis to
profit or loss. From 1 January 2019, these payments are
accounted for as right-of-use assets.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant
and equipment, and where the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of the asset or as a replacement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives from the date on which they are
available for use and after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

3'/3%-10%
3'/3%-10%
Over the unexpired term

Buildings

Storage facilities

Leasehold improvements
of lease

Furniture, fixtures and 6.8%-20%

equipment

20%-25%

20%

2.5%-3.5%

Motor vehicles
Computer equipment
Terminal facilities

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes all construction expenditure and other
direct costs, including interest costs, attributable to
such projects. Costs on completed construction works
are transferred to the appropriate asset category. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of other assets, other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indicator that its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets may be impaired or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is
recognised as income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of
impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting
policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments and on a trade date basis except for

financial assets mandatorily measured as FVPL which are
accounted for on the settlement date basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from
the financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the
financial asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but
it does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises the
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such
trade receivables are initially measured at their transaction
price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“Mandatory FVOCI”); (iii) equity investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at FVPL.
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4.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group's business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first annual reporting period following the
change in the business model (the “reclassification date”).

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is
assessed for classification.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

2)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that
are not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI,
including financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent
consideration a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial

assets that are otherwise required to be measured

arrangement in

at FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss,
which includes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial assets.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it
is:

(i)  acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them
on different bases.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and bank loans and other borrowings. All
financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities at FVPL,
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses ("ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost, Mandatory FVOCI, lease receivables,
contract assets, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts issued to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—-Z—

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)
Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected
life of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows that are
due to an entity under the contract and the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or
more shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i)  nature of instrument

(iii)  nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v}  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the financial instrument, except
in the case of Mandatory FVOCI,
is recognised
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

the loss allowance
in other comprehensive income and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

4.

132

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may
not receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if
the financial instrument that meets any of the following
criteria.

(i)  information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group); or

(i)  there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—-Z—

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into

account in the assessment:

the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial institution’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

J an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

o actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.
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4.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)
Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business

conditions in the longer term may, but will not

necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

Simplitied approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The
Group recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
at each reporting date and has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—-Z—

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(¢) the
contractual

lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at
a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past
due based on historical experience of recoveries of similar
assets. The Group expects no significant recovery from
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any
subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value, net of bank overdrafts.
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4.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group
is as follows:

TES
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Nature of goods and services
EmkBRBEMHE

Integrated logistics handling services business
RAEMRRIERBES

Trading business

BHEB

Petrochemical products storage business

AlLERRRER
Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same
pattern of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct
if both of the following criteria are met:

(@)  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources
that are readily available to the customer (i.e. the
good or service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of
the contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of
that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation
and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance
as the Group performs;

(b) the Group’'s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example, work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset, and customer acceptance.

Sale of goods is recognised at a point in time at which
the customer obtains the control of the promised asset,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and the title is passed.
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4.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Service income of integrated logistics handling services
and petrochemical products storage services, is

recognised over time when services are rendered.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation
can be reasonably measured, the Group applies the
output method (i.e. based on the direct measurements
of the value to the customer of the goods or services
transferred to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the contract) to measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation because the method provides a
faithful depiction of the Group's performance and reliable
information is available to the Group to apply the method.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably
measure the outcome of the performance obligation.

The principal input applied in the output method is:

—  Storage services for petrochemical products: number
of days of the usage of the storage services

— Integrated logistics handling services: duration of the
vessels being berthed at the port.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—-Z—

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

Cost,
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have

realisable value. which comprises all costs of
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, is calculated using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of Hong

Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of each of the Group's entities
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

140

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the group
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the end of reporting period;

— Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
rates;

—  All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

— On the disposal of a foreign operation, which
includes a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, a disposal involving the loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest is no longer equity-accounted
for, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation that
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
gain or loss on disposal is recognised,;

—  On the partial disposal of the Group's interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
the separate component of equity is re-attributed
to the non-controlling interests in that foreign
operation and are not reclassified to profit or loss;
and

—  On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income over the years necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount
of obligation can be made. Expenditures for which a
provision has been recognised are charged against the
related provision in the year in which the expenditures
are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. Where the Group expects a provision
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as
a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Leases

Applicable from 1 January 2019

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-
term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(c)  any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the
right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided
over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as
follows:

Office premises 2 ~ 3 years
Prepaid lease payment 45 years
Sea use right payment 42 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the contract.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual
value guarantees;

(d)  exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a
change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in floating interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease
liability using a revised discount rate.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises
any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or
loss.

Applicable before 1 January 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

Contributions to the state-managed retirement schemes in
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong, which are calculated
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs,
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a reserve within equity. The fair value is
determined using the binomial model, taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards that are conditional on a market
condition or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vested irrespective of whether or not the market condition
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all non-
market vesting conditions are satisfied.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at fair value
of the goods or services received, except where the fair
value cannot be reliably estimated, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. In all cases, the fair value is measured at the date
the Group obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the services.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

TES

EI‘I_’

BUEK (&)

UBROARERZNRRS
REEEXS

AEBZEE(BHEER)BRURNASER
ZNRZSHA BRI - EhEE AR
HERBZIBE DI SR RDZEN - &
FHEBETZRXIRATDIZRELAS
ZEATRAZAFEFE RTERZ
BREQATFEERSEINA - MREA
ZREBIAREIE M - X E TN RE
] 1 55 R 1T e JF 57 B IR R R — 1A
BAEE -

Wi B R 5 2 B ANE RIS 2 18 FE T8
EREMFEBRTBEER BEE8H
BEZHEZHM o ENBEABIAER
EREMmEREGREMRZB(RERD
Bl -REBHNSEHNENSKEBEZ
BRESR NEEHHEERURF AT
BEZEAAEEREHNFRE BT
B/ R WA HEREAZFEE -

BT 5L & RORBE 5 BB 2 B2 B RE SR (T (A1 B
O MEXBRRMISEGAERBRTZ
RER REMAEMEREGRIDE
A BIRAR AT BB N i m 5 R IE
BEETREDERK -

HIREATETRESEURDSE
2R 5% AU B ek R 2 & F
B8 HEAFEEEAEMGAZER
TRAEBETIAZATFEE - HEMR
BRAT H8RAKENCEMIRS
HTRERBERZRAFENE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Cash-settled transactions

A liability is recognised for goods or services acquired,
measured at the fair value of the liability. Until the liability
is settled, the fair value of the liability is remeasured
at the end of each reporting period and at the date of
settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss for the period.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss, it is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v}  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
which are described above, management has made various
estimates and judgements which are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated. The key source of estimation uncertainty
and accounting judgements that result in significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the next financial year
or significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements are discussed below:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i) Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets

The management reviews the useful lives and
depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of
each reporting period, through careful consideration
with regards to expected usage, wear-and-tear and
potential technical obsolescence to usage of the

assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the management has to assess whether an
event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be
determined by based on the higher of the value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal. Value in
use is determined using the discounted cash flow
method.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables by using various
inputs and assumptions including risk of a default
and expected loss rate. The estimation involves high
degree of estimation and uncertainty which is based
on the Group's historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of
trade receivables. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in note
36(a)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company assesses annually if investment
in subsidiaries has suffered any impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance
of HKFRS 9 in determining whether amounts due
from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of
future cash flows, including expected dividends,
from the assets and the selection of appropriate
discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause
the adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of recoverable amounts, which is
determined at higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. Details of the estimates used to
calculate the recoverable amount are given in notes
15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKASs 1 Definition of Material’

and 8
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark

HKFRSs 7 and 9 Reform’

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for acquisition that occurs on or after the beginning for
the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

The effective date to be determined

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the
new/revised HKFRSs in the future period will have any
material impact on the results of the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are identified
collectively as the chief operating decision maker. An
operating segment is a component of the Group that
is engaged in business activities from which the Group
may earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified
on the basis of the internal management reporting
information that is provided to and regularly reviewed by
the Company’s executive directors in order to allocate
resources and assess performance of the segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into the following operating segments:

Operating segments

w8

For continuing operation
HEQBETY
— Integrated logistics handling services

ﬂr‘*/\q:@ /)IL B ii HE%

— Trading business

—B5E®

— Petrochemical products storage business
— REERRRER
For discontinued operation

BRI T

— Integrated logistics handling services

— BB YRR R R

— Provision of fuel cards

— RHRER

— Tractor repair and maintenance services and
insurance agency services

— ES|BEHEERERE MMRBRAE RS

5. DEEE @)

REEME AEBANSAUTEES
%

Principal activities

FEXEH

—  Provision of terminal handling services

— RHISEEERE

—  Trading of textile, wood logs, scrap metal,

electronic products, petrochemical products etc.

—  Provision of supply chain management services
— Manufacturing and trading of tin wires

— HE*? EHHL AV BB -EFER

Eﬂ:;’%uu—r

— RHEUEREERS
— BERBEEHR

—  Provision of storage services for petrochemical

products

— RHEACERE RS

—  Provision of ocean freight and land

transportation and container drayage services

—  Provision of ocean freight forwarding services
—  Provision of air freight forwarding services
—  Provision of feeder container storage facilities

and hiring services of barges and vehicles

— RHEFEE EREGLREEBEEHRS
— RHSERERE
— RHZEERERE
— REIBEBEARREAEREMER

/Tifﬁg
AR 75

—  Provision of fuel cards

—  REHEHER

—  Tractor repair and maintenance

—  Provision of insurance agency services
— EL|E#ERRE

— RHEBRAIERS

HRNERBERGERAR
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5.

154

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Company’s
executive directors monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segments assets include all assets except for corporate
assets which are managed on a group basis. All liabilities
are allocated to reportable segment liabilities other than
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities which are
managed on a group basis and certain other payables and
accrued charges.

Revenues and expenses are allocated to the operating
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments. The measure used for
reporting segment results is profit/loss before taxation
without allocation of share of results of associates and
other unallocated corporate expenses and income.

For the purpose of assessing the performance of the
operating segments and allocation of resources between
segments, the Group’s results are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual segments
and other head office or corporate administration costs.

Inter-segment sales transactions are charged at prevailing
market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. o EIER @)

Operating segments S i

Segment information is presented below: AHEERZHNMAT

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-—-NAF+=-A=+—HLFE

Continuing operations Discontinued operations

BREERY BRLEEXE

Tractor

repair and

Petro- maintenance
chemical Integrated Integrated services and

products logistics logistics insurance Inter-

Trading  storage  handling  handling Provision of agency segment

business  business  services  services  fuel cards services  elimination
Eo|BEER
RLER &HAUR KEUR RERBUR
B8 ARER RERE EERE ROUMANT RRAERE 2HEMH @z
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TET TER TEx FEx TEx

Revenue (from external customers) W (RENBRR) 1,502,123 7872 7077 - - - - 1,517,072
— Inter-segment revenue — HHEKE - 310 - - - - (310) -
Total revenue leat b 1,502,123 8182 7,077 o = = (310) 1,517,072
Results £&
Segment results PHEE (38,811) (18,044)  (868,674) = = = = (925,529)
Other unallocated corporate income EtRARATHA 14,686
Other unallocated corporate expenses EAARAARY (33,637)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 25) &N BA A 2 & (i 525 (312)
Loss before taxation BREAER (944,792)
Taxation HE (199)
Loss for the year FRER (944,991)
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5.

156

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Continuing operations

Trading
business

Petro-
chemical
products

storage

business

Integrated

logistics

handling

services

D EER @)

rE D@

BE-T\E+-A=t-HLEE

Discontinued operations

Integrated
logistics
handling  Provision of

services  fuel cards

Tractor
repair and
maintenance
services and
insurance
agency

services

Inter-
segment

elimination

CUES RERE RERB i 2 i 45
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt BT Thr B T BT THT
Revenue (from external customers) WH(RENBRE) 4160,007 8,789 693 160,664 39,595 152 - 4369900
— Inter-segment revenue — 7Bk E - 555 - 27,104 5,625 1943 (35,227) -
Total revenue et 4,160,007 9,344 693 187,768 45,220 2,095 (35.227) 4,369,900
Results E3
Segment results PHEE (71,220) (53,677) (2,136) 445 (2,890) (1,834) - (131,312
Share of results of associates by disposal group  HEEEEEBE DT LR (591)
Other unallocated corporate income ERARDARA 9778
Other unallocated corporate expenses B RARAFRY (40,614)
Impairment loss on disposal group classified as ~ H B ABIELE 2 HEEE
held for sale (note 25) ZEBE 25 (10,837)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHEAR R 261
Loss before taxation BREMER (173,315)
Taxation B (695)
Loss for the year FREER (174,010)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

Operating segments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

Continuing operations

DEER @)

g

R=ZZF-hF+=ZA=+—H

Discontinued operations

BRIESERH

Tractor

repair and

maintenance

Petro-chemical Integrated Integrated services and
products logistics logistics insurance
Trading storage handling handling  Provision of agency
business business services services fuel cards services
EoERHBR
RLER GEWR SANR RERBUAR
ERER RRER RERE RERE REMNT KRBRRERSK E-HS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PHEE 618,550 205,171 546,958 - - - 1,370,679
Unallocated corporate assets APEAEEE = = = = = = 40,940
Consolidated total assets GAEEHE 1,411,619
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities HHEE (954,463) (48,632) (959,761) = = - (1,962,85¢)
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEDAEE = = = - - - (399,670)
Consolidated total liabilities RAEERE (2,362,526)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEER @
Operating segments (Continued) ReE WA
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z—-NLE+=-A=+—HLEE

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HELEXE BRLEEERHK
Tractor
repair and
maintenance

Petro-chemical ~Integrated Integrated services and

products logistics  logistics insurance

Trading storage  handling  handling  Provision of agency
business business  services  services  fuel cards services
EDZHER
RLER ®EWE H/UR RERBAR
EPES EREE RERE RERE REKET RBRAERHK @t
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

TR TER TR TR TER TR TR
OTHER INFORMATION A&
Capital additions BRI 61 WA 6379 = = = 30910
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nx BERRENE 1,213 4914 25,068 - = = 31,195
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE BERIBEAERIR)

(unallocated) - - - - - - 3
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RRAEEERE 848 986 88 - - - 1922
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (unallocated) ~ FAEEENE(XHR) = = = = = = 437
Finance costs BERKA 36,385 = 1,304 = = = 37,689
Finance costs (unallocated) BERAK(RAE) = = = = = = 21,055
Impairment loss on trade receivables BORNGERESE 7,865 - 1,677 - - - 9,542
Impairment loss on goodwill BEHEFR = - 223782 = = - 223,782
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 1% - BEREZEHEEE = 20,402 611,205 - - - 631,607
Reversal of impairment loss on property, plantand  #1% - BERREREEERE

equipment = (9,974) = = = = (9,974)
(Reversal of) Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EAEEE (RE)HEEE = (6,906) 594 = = - (6,312)
Interest income FERA 15,759 15 5 - - - 15,779
Interest income (unallocated) FBMA(RAR) = = = = - - 273
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019 &%

Operating segments (Continued)

At 31 December 2018

Trading

business

5.

Petro-chemical
products
storage

business

Integrated
logistics
handling

services

TE-AFTZA=T—HIEFE

DEER @)

RE DR )
R=Z—-N\&+=-A=+—H

Discontinued operations

Integrated
logistics
handling

services

Provision of

fuel cards

Tractor
repair and
maintenance
services and
insurance
agency

services

=/,
i RERHE ;
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL THL T

ASSETS BE
Segment assets AHEE 971974 162,682 1,546,055 - - - 268071
Unallocated corporate assets KOEAREE - - - - - - 34,457
Disposal group held for sale BELEZNMESE - - - 30,884 16,156 1,766 48,806
Unallocated assets in disposal group classified PRERELECLEEEY

as held for sale ADREE - - - - - - 5,760
Consolidated total assets GREAEBE 2,769,734
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities PHEE (1131,275) (92,213)  (1,085,209) - - - (2,308,697)
Unallocated corporate liabilities APELREE - - - - - - (397681)
Liabilities associated with disposal group held BRELNEZHESEREY

for sale afE - - - #23%9) (2,663) (1,340)  (46,402)
Unallocated liabilities associated with disposal HARARELEZHERRE

group classified as held for sale REzxPEAR - - - - - - (27)
Consolidated total liabilities GAEBELE (2,752,807)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEER @
Operating segments (Continued) ReE WA
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (EZE - N\FTA=+T—HLEFE

Continuing operations Discontinued operations

Tractor

repair and

maintenance

Petro-chemical Integrated Integrated services and

products logistics logistics insurance

Trading storage handling handling  Provision of agency

business business services services fuel cards services

REMR &

HK$'000 HK$'000
THT Thx
OTHER INFORMATION Hit&H
Amortisation B - 1,028 7 - - - 1,035
Capital additions BAEM 1,290 47517 - 2,877 - 10 51,694

Capital additions through acquisition ~ EBKEMBARMEMER

of subsidiaries - - 841,136 - - - 841,136
Depreciation wE 1,548 5,350 2192 3,545 - 6 12,641
Depreciation (unallocated) FEGAE) - - - - - - 10
Finance costs BERK 16,230 127 170 462 - - 16,989
Finance costs (unallocated) BERA(RAR) - - - - - - 14,918
Impairment loss on goodwill BHEREER - 14,844 - - - - 14,844
Impairment loss on property, plantand ~ #1% + BER R &R EEE

equipment - 23,804 - - - - 23,804
Impairment loss on prepaid lease BERAENTRERR

payment - 6906 - - - - 6906
Interest income MEKA 6,695 45 121 - - - 6,861
Interest income (unallocated) FIEMA(RAE) - - - - - - 137
* The operations of Gamma Logistics (B.V.l.) Corporation (“Gamma I RBV.LER(MBY R LENE QA

Logistics”) and its subsidiaries (“Gamma Logistics Group”) have been (MNBMREB D 2 EXZBHERERIEEEET -

classified as discontinued operations.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information
Geographical segment

The Group operates and derives revenue in two principal
geographical areas: Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"). The following table sets out the
revenue derived from geographical areas which are based
on the geographical location of the customers:

5.

o EE B

it & & K}

1B 5 5

AN 2 8 5 P 11 35 B 000 B A 5 2 75 30 JE B

i EARPEARKAE (@) - TH
HIIRBEF BB 852 B

2019
—E-NF

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FBT

HK$'000
FTERT

Revenue from external customers — REINEE P W = -
continuing operations: RHEREER:
Hong Kong &5 972,100 2,353,433
The PRC i 429,556 1,718,455
Others (Note) H (Bt =) 115,416 97,601
1,517,072 4,169,489

Note: The locations of others include Europe, the United States of

America ("U.S.A."), Asia (other than Hong Kong and the PRC),
South Africa and others.

The geographical location of non-current assets is based
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, prepayments in relation to
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets (2018:
prepaid lease payments and sea use right payments), and
the location of the operation, in the case of goodwill. The
analysis of the Group's non-current assets of continuing
operations by geographical location is as follows:

HiipREeEEN - XMNBARE(EED -
TSMEERTPEERIN)  BEREMBE -

ERDEECHENMENZEEREY
BZENFE  ERAEEE(ZT—/\F:
BENEENTARBEHERENF)ZE
MUBEREEVE(FEEHEBR) - A%E
BB EBEHRELEEBZIRDE
EESITIT:

REBAENZEROERDT
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. D EER @)
Geographical information (Continued) i E & B @)
Geographical segment (Continued) E D E)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —EF-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKRZE
The PRC s 319,635 960,685

Prepayments in relation to property, ME BERERHEZ

plant and equipment TE R IE

The PRC H 4,596 500
Goodwill 7o R

The PRC B 1,296 225,151
Prepaid lease payments FENEENK

The PRC 1 - 34,135
Sea use right payments 8 15 R R TR

The PRC H - 2,848
Right-of-use assets CTREAE

Hong Kong BE 800 -

The PRC 2 42,570 -

43,370 -

Total non-current assets EMBEELE 368,897 1,223,319
Information about major customers FERFEH
For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue from BHE_ZT-NAFT-_A=+—HILEFE "
Customer A (trading business segment) of approximately REEPABIEBBH) 2K EAR
HK$243,248,000 accounted for over 10% of the total 243,248,000/ JT © 1k A% B I 35 A %8
revenue of the Group. 10% -
For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from BHE_ZT-\F+_A=+—RHIEFE"
Customer B (trading business segment) and Customer KEEFB(BEZEBHMBIREFC(ESH
C (trading business segment) of approximately B 5 E) 2 W 9 Rl 4 /R954,171,000%
HK$954,171,000 and HK$786,102,000 respectively TL K% 786,102,000/ 7T + {h AN B U 2 4258
accounted for over 10% of the total revenue of the Group. #110% °
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE 6. W&
2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-N\&E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Continuing operations BERERR
Revenue from contracts with customers % & Bf 7 3R &5 2 B 51558
within HKFRS 15 BEREFAEOKRE
Provision of integrated logistics REEESYWRERERSE
handling services 7,077 693
Trading business BHEB 1,502,123 4,160,007
Petrochemical storage service A& IR 7,872 8,789
1,517,072 4,169,489
Timing of revenue recognition R ERERE
At a point in time A — {8 B ) Bh 1,502,123 4,160,700
Over time R — B 14,949 8,789
1,517,072 4,169,489
The revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS BEMBEREENFISRBEANTFEFEL
15 is based on fixed price. W AB EEBRRELE -
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Hito g A

N

7. OTHER INCOME

2019 2018
o

—E)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER

TET

Continuing operations BEEEXRE
Bank interest income RITH B U A 15,819 6,998
Other interest income EH A A S A 233 -
Exchange gain, net E & W /558 4,893 10,996
Sundry income HMIEW A 42 1,266
Compensation from a customer RKE—REFPHMEE 5,150 -
Subsidy income 4 BL U A 329 112
Late payment penalty received from a WEE—BEFZH N &
customer 7 2,331
Write-back of accrued directors’ salaries [ fEZTE E FH & 389 -
Write-back of long outstanding other Bl R EiR{EE 2 At f&
payables NE/ = 6,686
26,862 28,389
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BMEMRAK

2019

—E-NF

HK$'000
FTER

2018

—E—N\F

HK$'000
TAET

Continuing operations BFEREXRE
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ERAFALEEHEE 2 &
within five years B ZHE 5,236 6,506
Effective interest on unlisted secured FLEMAERPESFCER
bonds (note 27(d)) 8 (i 3£ 27(d)) 33,506 24,183
Other interest to a third party XNFE=F 2 EMF R = 660
Interest on amounts due to connected JEfTBIEAENIE 2 F L
companies 14,784 -
Interest on loan from a connected KE—HBERARIZER
company A 8,944 6,368
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEME 207 -
Total borrowing costs BEKALE 62,677 37,717
Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into  J& : & h#& 19 & Rt kb
property, plant and equipment E596% (ZE—)N\
at weighted average F:58%)FtEER
capitalisation rate of 5.96% {tRME - BEKIFK
(2018: 5.8%) BZBEERA (3.933) (6,272)
58,744 31,445
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM 9. REFEAKERBZRBAE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS B
This is stated after charging (crediting): KB GEA) TYIEB &5 8 -
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Staff costs BIKEX
Salaries, allowances and other short- e EUERHEMEH
term employee benefits including EERETN BEES
directors’ emoluments = B 21,438 26,232
Contributions to defined contribution  F R M &334
plans 4,358 2,833
25,796 29,065
Other items HitmE
Auditors’ remuneration % £ AN BN &
— Audit-related assurance services — HEZHBE#E
% & Bk 7% 1,500 2,200
— Other services — H AR 7% = 455
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 {J f & 15 2 # - 1,028
Amortisation of sea use right payments & I3 5 F3 4 15 2 8 85 - 7
Cost of inventories FERA 1,455,570 4,189,606
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRETE
equipment 31,198 9,100
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 2,359 -
Loss (Gain) on disposal of subsidiaries  H&EMEAR 2 EE (ki)
(note 25) (Bt 5£25) 312 (261)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE = K& & & E
equipment, net BFE 17 104
Exchange gain, net PE 3 W ¥ AR (4,893) (10,996)
Lease charge — short term lease HEMX —RHBAHEE 1,242 -
Operating lease payments on premises #)%¥ Z (& &M E = 6,332
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 10. EERAERBEFA LT ZHMH
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) EEHH
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and AEERAFERNREMNERT
payable to the directors of the Company by the EEEFBAENT:

Group during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hE+=-A=+—HL#F
E

Salaries, Contributions

allowance to defined

Appointed during Resigned during and benefits Discretionary  contribution

the year the year Fee in kind bonus plans Total
Fe RER ERER

ERER FRRE e  BUNE  RERA  HEEXR Azt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR TR

Executive directors HTES
Mr. Ni Xiangrong Ak H:d 18 March 2019
- ZE-nE=ATNR = = = = =
Mr. Shum Kan Kim (Note a) L&) 7 4 (M & a) - - = 600 = 30 630
Mr. Pan Jian EREE 18 March 2019
- ZEZ-AEZATAR - - - - -

Mr. Miao Zhibin BFEmEE - - - 576 - 29 605
Mr. Chen Wen Xiang 3¢ 18 March 2019

—Z-NF=AT/NRB - = 378 = - 378
Mr. Tao Ying (Note c) CEYAAC D) 18 March 2019

ZZ-AFZATNA - - - - - -
Non-executive directors ~ FHTES
Mr. Ji Longtao ERELE - - 240 = = - 240
Mr. Yang Yue Xia BHELE - - 240 - - - 240
Mr. Sun Lin (Note d) Bhf (i id) - - 120 = = = 120
Independent non- BUFANES

executive directors

Mr. Zhang Fangmao RAKEE - - 120 = = = 120
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang ThEEL - - 120 = = = 120
Mr. Lau Hon Kee BEERE - - 180 = = = 180
Mr. Yu Xugang TEREE - - 120 = = - 120

1,140 1,554 = 59 2,753
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 10. EEREBBREHFA LT ZHM

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (4&)
(Continued)
(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) iy EEZFHME)

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z—)\F+_A=+—HItHF

=

Salaries, Contributions
allowance to defined
Appointed Resigned and benefits Discretionary ~ contribution

during the year during the year in kind bonus Total

FREE Be : BREfEL EE a5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Ni Xiangrong REKEE - - - - - - -

Mr. Wang Yijun TRELE 15 March 2018

- ZE-\¥ZAtZR - - - - -

Mr. Shum Kan Kim nEBEE - - - 600 478 48 1,126

Mr. Pan Jian EREE - - - - - - -

Mr. Miao Zhibin (Note ¢) ~ ZHE % £ (e 26 June 2018

“E-\ERRZTRA - o 1 - - 62

Non-executive directors ~ FHTES

Mr. Ji Longtao HEELL - - 240 - - - 20

Mr. Yang Yue Xia BHELE - - 240 - - - 240

Mr. Sun Lin (Note d) EMEE(H ) - - 5 571 528 - 1104

Independent non- BUFINES

executive directors

Mr. Zhang Fangmao RAREE - - 120 - - - 120

Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang TREEL - - 120 - - - 120

Mr. Lau Hon Kee BEERE - - 180 - - - 180

Mr. Yu Xugang TN E - - 120 - - - 120

1,086 1172 1,006 48 3,312

Note a:  Mr. Shum Kan Kim resigned as an executive director on Mida: KHBREER-ZTTF_A=+
22 February 2020. “HBERTES -

Note b: Ms. Leng Panpan was appointed as an executive director MaEb: RBBEXTR-_T_TF-_A=+
on 27 February 2020. tHEZERNITES -

Note c:  Mr. Tao Ying was appointed as an executive director and Midc: MBMELEER-_T-AF=A+NB
Chairman on 18 March 2019. BEERRTEERERE -

Note d: Mr. Sun Lin was re-designated from an executive director Mistd: BMEER_Z-—NF+_A=+N
to a non-executive director on 28 December 2018. He HERITEFAERIERNITES -
resigned as a non-executive director on 20 February BR-_ZBE-_ZF-_A-+HETH
2020. WITESF -

Note e: Mr. Miao Zhibin was appointed as a non-executive Mizte: BEBREER-_Z-NFSAZFL

director on 26 June 2018 and re-designated as an

executive director on 28 December 2018.

NAEZERFERITES RN
E-NF+AZTNBRERHA
TE=E-

REBAENZEROERDT

2019 Fk 167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group
to any of the directors as an inducement to join the
Group or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

The following directors have waived or agreed to
waive their emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018:

Mr. Tao Ying Gl Bk
Mr. Ni Xiangrong ARE P
Mr. Wang Yijun FTRERE
Mr. Pan Jian L

10. EERAERBEFA LT ZHMH

(&)

(i)

EEFM @

2T -NER-TE-N\F+ZA

=t—HLEFE- $'¥ljﬁﬁlﬂfi
MEE BB - (FRRS
MAREEL AR EBIEL 2 52
HIERBERM(E -

MTEFERRXFAERRERETE
—hER=ZF-N\FE+=-A=

:I:—?

THLEFEZHH:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET

754 -

206 1,200

- 186

129 760

(ii)

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in

favour of directors

There were no other loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favour of the directors that were
entered into or subsisted during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

(iii) Directors’ material interest in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

After consideration, other than disclosed in note
the
directors are of the opinion that no transactions,

33 to the consolidated financial statements,

arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company, or an entity connected with the directors,
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the year or at anytime during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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(ii)

(iii)

LNEEARAZRAZER #E
ERRHEMRS

BT -NER-T-N\F+A
=t—HLEFE- $EE%LA%$Z%X
BAFUKFEZEMER BE

EERNXRG  RHHAEHNEH
MEXER

REREK BREAVHRRMESS
PIBEEN EFER/ RFAH

HE-_Z-NFER-_ZE—-—N\F+=A
—+—HIEFEAEMER - BI&
GEARARBER—FTBBALA %
BeERAXS  THEEEHEARR

AESNES HETRERNEFRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHmRHE
Year ended 31 December 2019 EHZ —ZE—NWF+-_A=1+—HILFE
10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 10. EERIERAHFATZHM
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (#4&)
(Continued)
(iv) Five highest paid individuals (ivi IEBREFAL

The five highest paid individuals included three
directors (2018: two directors) for the year ended
31 December 2019. The aggregate amounts of the
emoluments in respect of the two (2018: three) non-
director individuals are as follows:

HE-_Z—NLF+_-_A=+—HL
FE AEAmaHGATRE=Z2E=F
(ZE2E—NF - WMBES) - MA(Z
E-N\F =FR)IFEFEAT 25N
WM

2019 2018

—EB-0F —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THE T

Salaries and allowances e MoEBh 864 4,061
Contributions to defined JE BB SR AT B R

contribution plans 43 46

907 4,107

The numbers of the non-director individuals whose

emoluments for the year were within the following
bands:

FRAFMNTFUTHE ZIFEEA
T A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z %1,000,0007% 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T % 2,000,000 7T - 1

2 3

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group
to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join the Group or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

BT -NEFRZF—NF+A
=+ —ALFE - -AEELERMR
HAEEBFALTINEN T - F
ARSI MARE B N AKE Hig
2 RE S ERBERAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

11.

170

TAXATION

M. HE

2019
—E2-NF

2018
—Z2—)N\F
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
FTER

Continuing operations FREEEXRE
Current tax: BN ERRR I8
Current year KEFE 253 185
Under-provision in prior year BAFERETR 137 74
390 259
Deferred tax I IE 718 28 (191) (200)
Total income tax expenses for IFERKEEBKZMB
continuing operations BB A 199 59
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
Current tax B EA % 18 28 = 636
Total income tax expenses RERER 2SN
recognised in profit or loss bl X # 58 199 695
(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax (i) BEEANEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated in accordance FEEMNGRZNSHMASTE -
with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under BEMNEGHMEH  cERKER
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the profits tax H B8 B2,000,0007 JT 2 1 5T FE &R
rate for the first HK$2 million of estimated assessable B 5a A 2 F 15 BT X E £8.25%
profits of the qualifying group entity is lowered to 2,000,000 7T bA L= 89 1 51 /& SR T i
8.25% while the estimated assessable profits above FEBRI16SBN D EB R - T
HK$2 million continue to be subject to the rate of RENMSHMAHOHEMEEEER
16.5% for corporations. The profits of other group BERER s M EIRE — T E16.5%
entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two- oo
tiered profits tax rates regime continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.
(i) Income taxes outside Hong Kong (i) BBEBEHNZFEH

The Company'’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT"). PRC EIT is calculated
at the prevailing tax rate at 25% on taxable income

determined in accordance with the relevant laws and

regulations in the PRC.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI") and the Cayman Islands,
the Group is not subject to any taxation under those

jurisdictions.
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1.

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

TAXATION (Continued)

Reconciliation of tax expenses for continuing

operations

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before taxation from continuing operations per the

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z

BIE#®)

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

follows:

2019
—E-hF

HK$'000
FTEx

FARBAXHEES

REXBZHEHRABERAERNOT:

—NEFTZA=T-RALFE

FEACEXB P ARIHEK

EHEERZFE

2018
—F-N\F
HK$'000
THET

Continuing operations BEREXRE
Loss before taxation B 3% A& 18 (944,792) (157,516)
Income tax at applicable tax rate of % i BB 16.5%

16.5% (2018: 16.5%) —F—)\F 16.5%)

AHEZHER (155,891) (25,990)

Effects of different tax rates of REMBEEREEZ

subsidiaries operating in other MEARZTRBELE

jurisdictions (6,397) (4,587)
Effect of preferential tax rate of a —HWNEAR=ZEEER

subsidiary E - - @3m
Non-deductible expenses IR 43,154 16,317
Tax exempt revenue ER (4,422) (705)
Unrecognised temporary differences RERERETE 101,337 (200)
Under provision in prior year BEFEREIR 137 74
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERHIEBEEZ

MEGEE 22,990 16,147
Effect of two-tiered tax rates MARHTEER T8 - 938
Others Hh, (709) (1,904)
Tax expense for the year FABIERX 199 59
DIVIDENDS 12. BB
The board does not recommend the payment of a EFgTEEAREEC H$+ A=
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). +—BHIEFEIRNKRE ( —\EF: fE) o
REBHNEREBRABERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 are calculated by dividing the loss attributable
to the owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue.

13. SREBE

BE-_Z-NFN_ZEZ—N\F+-_A=+
—BHILFEZEREANEBRARGGES
A FEAE 18 4 DA O 3 17 % 3@ A% hn ke SF 15

CEER

Loss operations attributable to owners

ARBFEEARMEERE

of the Company E g
— Continuing operations (HK$'000) — BEGLEK(THET) (946,599) (147.097)
— Discontinued operations (HK$'000) —— B #%F & & %75

(FET) = (8,533)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue

BT E BRI T 8

1,288,000,000 1,288,000,000

Basic loss per share BREAXNERE
— Continuing operations (HK cents) — BEREER B (73.49) (11.42)
— Discontinued operations (HK cents) — B #%1F & & 7% (GB(L) = (0.66)

Basic and diluted loss per share are the same as the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the years ended 31 December 2019 and

2018.
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December

2019 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Dafeng Port Heshun International Investments
Limited
YEANERRREERAA

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (China) Company
Limited

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (China) Company
Limited

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (Indonesia)
Company Limited

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (Indonesia)
Company Limited

Luck Sign Investment Development Limited

REREERARLA

Worldly Development Limited
EMLERERLT

REEMERZ (RN ERAT

AREEMERZ (RN ERLE

ERLHEEEEHER AR ("Heshun Trading”)

ERABNEERESERAE
(IIEE5])

AIEAREESR (R ERAF (Qianhai Mingtian
Supply Chain (Shenzhen) Company Limited,
"Qianhai Mingtian")

AIERRREE(RINERAR
(Tagmx)

IHEYEERAEERAA Uiangsu
Zhongnanhui Petrochemical Storage Company
Limited*, “Zhongnanhui”)

IHETHEALARARAA(HEE)

Place of
incorporation/
operation
BEhy

Hong Kong

The BVI

RRERNES

The BVI

RERNES

The BVI

ARRAES

Hong Kong

i

The PRC

P

The PRC

G

The PRC

G

The PRC

G

Issued and paid-up capital/

registered capital
BRTRARRE/
ZMEE

Usst

X7

US$1,000
1000% 7T

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

Registered capital and
paid-up capital
US$1,000,000

EMEAARBRBA
1,000,000% 7T

Registered capital and
paid-up capital
US$64,500,000

EMEARERBRA
64,500,000% 7T

Registered capital
US$8,000,000 Paid-up
capital US$6,401,360

1 & 758,000,000% 7T 4
RBEA6401360% T

Registered and paid-up
capital RMB32,000,000

EfRARBEARS
32,000,0007C

Directly held

14. AMBRAREIZKRE

AREMBRAAR-_ZE—AE+=_A=+
—BZHENT:

Effective
ownership
Proportion of interests held by
ownership interest the Group  Principal activities
L8 1 Vet
RiEE: § §:) ERfAERE IEEEH
Indirectly held

EERA HERE

- 100% 100%  Investment holding

REER
100% - 100%  Investment holding

RARR

100% - 100%  Inactive

EXH

100% - 100%  Investment holding

- 100% 100%  Trading of electronics
ETERED

- 100% 100%  Inactive

BEB

- 100% 100%  Trading of mental, sugar,
coal and petrochemical
and freight services

©8 DR RRALER
ZHRBERY

- 51% 51% Trading

%

- 100% 100%  Provision of petrochemical
products storage

services

REBCERRERE

REBAENZEROERDT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14. RREAR 2R E @)

Effective
Place of ownership

incorporation/ Issued and paid-up capital/ Proportion of interests held by

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest the Group Principal activities

EMEL/ BRIRBRRE/ KEEMR
WRARER BEHY EMER Mk FERER ERfERREE TEXH
Directly held  Indirectly held
EEEA BEER

HEEENERLERAR The PRC Registered capital - 100% 51% Trading of petrochemical
RMB10,000,000 Paid- products
up capital RMB500,000
HBEENERILAERRA e EMEATARK RtERES
10,000,007 &1 B fR
AR 5000007
RN 82 BRERRF (Shenzhen Fanhai The PRC Registered capital and - 51% 51% Trading of petrochemical
Holdings Company Limited* “Shenzhen paid-up capital products
Fanhai") RMB10,000,000
AT BERERAR(RINZE]) e HMATRARBAARS BtERES
10,000,0007C
Evertime Management Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100% 100%  Inactive
BRERERLT Y %7 BEH
Million Sky Business Limited The BVI US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Million Sky Business Limited EERAES 1ET REER
BHEREZ(RINERAR The PRC Registered capital - 100% 51%  Trading of tin wires

RMBS5,000,000 Paid-up
capital RMB1,200,000

BHEEZ(RINERLT il & R AR 5,000,000 HRES
THRRAARY
1,200,0007
ERERAREFRAA The PRC Registered capital - 51% 51%  Inactive
RMB1,000,000
EREEBRAERAR Gl M ARARH1,0000007 BiH
IHERAE R IBEARAT The PRC Registered capital and - 100% 100% Provision of terminal
("Jiangsu Hairong") paid-up capital handling and berthing
RMB250,000,000 services
IHERAEE MR IBEARAT e ZMEARRERER RUEBERBREDRS
(P8 3:2-3) AR 250,000,000
All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability b EMBRARAYAEREE AT -
companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests (“NCI")

The following table shows the information relating to
all non-wholly owned subsidiaries, Shenzhen Fanhai
and Qianhai Mingtian and its subsidiaries (together the
"Qianhai Mingtian Group”) (2018: Gamma Logistics Group,
Shenzhen Fanhai, Qianhai Mingtian Group and K2
AAEMEEBRAF (Tianjin Lian Qi Cheng Petroleum
Products Trading Company Limited*, “Tianjin Lian Qi
Cheng”)) that have material NCI during the year. The
summarised financial information of each of the NCI for
the period from the later of the beginning of the reporting
period and the date of acquisition to the earlier of the date
of disposal and the end of the reporting period represents
amounts before inter-company eliminations and excluding
the related goodwill.

* The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated for

identification purpose only.

14. AMBRAEIZEBE @)

EEFERES (FERERZDZ
MEARZHBER

TRINTFANRBEERFERER 2
B2 EWMBRRRINZERAEHX
REWBAR(REIAEHRXEE])(=
F-N\F-MBYREE - RIZE B
BRAREERREZBERKOBMEMREE
BRAR(TRF2BEK])) 2BBEER - A
BERARBEEBENUABRRERE)E
HERHERERTE(UREERE) B
MEFERER T BERBREI R
AEMERN 2R AT BEEERE -

Shenzhen Qianhai
Fanhai Mingtian Group
Yz AIBHARXEE

(Note b)
(Hf & b)

At 31 December 2019 R=ZF-—NF
+t=A=+-—AH
Proportion of NCI's ownership interests JF % [i% # & % & 7
T %5 L 1 49% 49%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FERT
Non-current assets EmBEE 21 1,101
Current assets mENE E 1,766 536,090
Current liabilities B BE (56) (485,505)
Net assets EEFE 1,731 51,686
Carrying amount of NCI EEREREEE 848 15,757
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests (“NCI") (Continued)

14.

Shenzhen

Fanhai

RINZ 8

RZZ—N\F+=A
=+—H

At 31 December 2018

FEYEPR R o R A AR
R 2t LE )

Proportion of NCl's
ownership interests

49%

YUESEY e SE]

RBAR 2R E @)

EEFERED (FERERS] 2
MEARZHBER &)

(OIETEY
Mingtian
Group

(note b)
RIGRAREE
(Mt 5T b)

Gamma
Logistics

Group
(note a)

Tianjin Lian
Qi Cheng
(note c)
ROE B K

(Kt #£a) (Bt &)

49% 49% 49%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Non-current assets IERBEE 35 15,686 1,753 698
Current assets mEEE 8,127 49,717 744,025 23,314
Current liabilities mnBaE (5,126) (44,958) (700,287) (5,370)
Non-current liabilities ErBaE - (1,471) - -
Net assets BEFE 3,036 18,974 45,491 18,642
Less: Impairment loss for B DBEARIEL
the disposal group BEZHESRH
classified as held for 2R EEE
sale - (10,837) - -
3,036 8,137 45,491 18,642
Carrying amount of NCI IR E S RE A 1,488 4113 8,544 9,135
Note a: On 28 December 2018, the Company entered into a share Wita R=ZZE—\F+-A=+/\A  ARQAFT LK
transfer agreement to dispose its interest in Gamma Logistics. MEEGE WHEERMBYR2EE -
The assets and liabilities was classified as disposal group as at RZZE—NF+-ZA=+—H BEHEEKRA
31 December 2018. Gamma Logistics Group was disposed of on BERSERLEER - IBYREER_-Z
10 January 2019. —NE-—ATHHEE -
Note b: Qinghai Mingtian Group's total equity disclosed above included Miatb: EXFBEBEAMEAREE  ERAERER

the accumulated profits up to disposal of 49% equity in Qianhai
Mingtian of HK$6,470,000 (the “Pre-acquisition Profits’) in 2017.
However, the non-controlling interests are not entitled to the
Pre-acquisition Profits in accordance with the agreement entered

into between the shareholders.

In 2018, the Group and the non-controlling interests had injected
HK$24,006,000 and HK$2,354,000 respectively. In 2019, the NCI
had injected HK$8,169,000. The non-controlling interests are
not entitled to the excess contribution made by the Group of
approximately HK$13,033,000 in accordance with agreements
entered into between the shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14. RIERR 2R E @)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non- EAFERERS ((FFERER D2

controlling interests (“NCI") (Continued) MEBAR 2B KER &)

Note c: During the year, the Group has entered into a share transfer Mistc: &N AEEEEE=FIZRHEERZ
agreement with a third party to dispose of 51% equity interest in VA ROR B D AR 519 A0 « X B ERH N
Tianjin Lian Qi Cheng. The disposal transaction was completed T-AFMANBEK °
on 8 April 2019.

Shenzhen Qianhai

Fanhai Mingtian Group
w5z FiEHXEE

HK$’000 HK$'000
F& T THET

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-h&E+=A

=+—BLFE

Revenue U %= 4,514 1,037,726
Cost of sales 55 & B AR (4,502) (1,025,071)
Other income H b Ug A 5 15,659
Expenses i3 (1,280) (28,956)
Loss for the year FANEE (1,263) (642)
Other comprehensive loss HhzmER (42) (1,332)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRE2MEEBELE (1,305) (1,974)
Loss attributable to NCI JEVE AR = FE AL B 1B (619) (315)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to NCI JE¥E =BG 2 E

&5 18 AR5 (639) (967)
Net cash flows from (used in): e (AR U TEIE

ZCHREREFE:
Operating activities L) (5,981) 77,305
Investing activities REEE 5 (77,054)
Financing activities BEEE - 5,451
Dividends paid to NCI ENIEERER 2

% B - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14. RIERA 2 RE @)
BEFERES (FERERDZ

MEARZHBER &)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests (“NCI") (Continued)

Qianhai

Gamma

178

Shenzhen Logistics Mingtian Tianjin Lian
Fanhai Group Group Qi Cheng
035 91 7% A& BF K K 2 B
el raist &5 SE JJ—_@Z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T&T TET TBT F& T
Year ended 31 December BZE-Z-\H£+=HA
2018 =+—HLFE
Revenue Wz 759,639 200,411 2,503,960 112,256
Cost of sales §H & B A (764,323) (164,906)  (2,495,291) (110,048)
Other income E b YA 2,551 1,904 13,770 10
Expense 53 (6,305) (42,416) (29192) (7,253)
Impairment loss on disposal & % E 5 & & &
group - (10,837) - -
Share of result of associate JE{HEi& N Al ¥ 4& - (591) - -
Loss for the year FHEE (8,438) (16,435)* (6,753) (5,035)
Other comprehensive income E fib 2 [ I 25
(loss) (E18) (1,327) 170 (2,793) (1,091)
Total comprehensive loss for 4F N2 [ /&5 18 42 58
the year (9,765) (16,265) (9,546) (6,126)
Profit attributable to NCI BEREENANKE
of subsidiaries within the UNSIEIE200
respective groups T 25 JE 18 5 A - 157 - -
(Loss) Profit attributable to  JF ¥4 A% # 25 B 15
NCI (B18E) &M (4,135) (7.902) 183 (2,467)
Total comprehensive loss FE 15 IR S PEAG
attributable to NCI FHEERSE (4,785) (2,660) (4,789) (3,001)
Net cash flows from RKEAR)ATREZ
(used in): BenE F58:
Operating activities KEEE (2,412) 1,627 289,889 421
Investing activities KREEH (39) 5,104 (5,195) 76,318
Financing activities REE 10,489 (2,803) (281,872) (71,931)
Dividends paid to NCI EAEERER 2
% _ _ _ _
Impairment loss for FEEREREE DA
the disposal group RFEFHEZEE
classified as held for sale SEZREESE
attributable to NCI - 5,310 - -

* The amounts included the income tax expenses of HK$636,000.

The loss before tax from discontinued operations amounted to

HK$15,799,000.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ - BERKRE

T-AFTASt-ALFE

—=

Fumiture, Feeder
Storage Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Computer  vessels and Terminal Construction
Buildings facilities  improvements  equipment  Vehicles  equipment barges  Containers  facilities in progress
B %8 FE
BT RRXE BENEKE & ElRE i L o ERIE G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK§'000
TE TE TR TR TEL TEL TEr  TEn TEr T
At cost REK
At 1 January 2018 R=E-\§-f-H 1,162 91,449 5107 8,862 44,843 8,476 4,35 8,227 - 14,675 187,156
Additions HE n" - 33 433 3215 504 - 8 - 47128 51,694
Additions — acquisition of subsidiary FE — WENBAH 5,522 12,656 - 32913 85 13 - - 789817 - 84136
Reclassified as disposal group held for EF 5B AR {ELE L
sale (note 25) NEEE(KE2) - - (3,429 3.876)  (45,572) (4,654) (4,355) (714) - - (69,000)
Disposals/Written off HE/HE - - - (149) (833) - - (1,121) - - (2103)
Disposals of a subsidiary HE-BHBAH - - (434) (1,427) - - - - - - (1,861)
Exchange realignment EREE (1) (4,730) (99) (276) (882) (227) - - - (2,531) (8,806)
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-NF+ZA=
1 January 2019 T-BRZZ2-nE
-A-A 6,634 99,375 1,480 36,480 916 4,242 - - 789,817 59212 998,216
Additions RE 61 1,204 - 91 1 - - - - 29,543 30910
Disposals/Written off HE /i - - - (31 - [ - - - - (35)
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR
(note 25) (Fi3¥25) - - - (269) (530) (62) - - - - (861)
Transfer from CIP EEIREA - - - 28 - - - - - (238) -
Exchange realignment EXEE (121) (2,233) (45) (805) - (87) - - (16,288) 262 (19,317)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE+=A
=1-8 6,574 98,346 1,435 35,704 397 4,089 = - 113529 88,839 1,008,913
Accumulated depreciation and EHAERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\§-A-H n 4490 3451 4173 35,161 4903 4,35 6,875 - - 63479
Charge for the year ERME 65 4,545 787 1,09 3,200 809 - 347 1,804 - 12,651
Impairment HE - 13151 - 230 7 442 - - - 9974 23,804
Reclassified as disposal group held for EF A BAKEHEY
sale (note 29) HERE (HE25) - - (3429) (3818 (3651 (4,349) (4,359) (6125) - - (5858¢)
Disposals/Written off e/ HH - - - (25) (798) - - 1,09) - - (1919)
Disposals of a subsidiary HE-MHBLAR - - (235) (169) - - - - - - (404)
Exchange realignment EXEE (6) (404) (31) (65) (850) (70) - (1) (67) - (1,494)
At 31 December 2018 and RIE-NE+ZA=
1 January 2019 T-BRZE-NE
-A-8B 130 21782 543 1,420 206 1739 - - 1737 9974 37531
Charge for the year ERNE m 4,851 688 3816 154 740 - - 20,778 - 31,198
Impairment A 3231 34,516 - 26,345 43 1,095 - - 566,377 9974 621,633
Disposals/Witten off HE /i - - - (13) - ] - - - - (14
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR
(note 25) (H3¥25) - - - (41 (128) (34) - - - - (203)
Exchange realignment ERAE 6) (272) (38) (98) 36 (74) - - (@15) - (867)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-A%F+2R
=1-A 3,526 60,877 1193 31,429 3N 3,465 = - 588,477 - 689278
Net book value BEFE
At 31 December 2019 RZB-N%F+2A
=1-A 3,048 37,469 242 4,275 86 624 = - 185,052 88,839 319,635
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE1ZA
=1+-A 6,504 77,993 937 35,060 70 2,503 - - 788,080 49298 960,685
REBNENRROBRDLA 179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

15.

180

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
carrying value of property, plant and equipment (storage
facilities and construction in progress), goodwill (note
16 to the consolidated financial statements) and right-
of-use assets (2018: prepaid lease payments) (note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements) of Petrochemical
Products Storage Business (as defined in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements) and the carrying value
of property, plant and equipment (terminal facilities
and construction in progress), goodwill (note 16 to
the consolidated financial statement) and right-of-use
assets (note 17 to the consolidated financial statement)
of Terminal Handling and Berthing Business (as defined
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements) as
their economic performance is worse than expected and
determined that the recoverable amount from the use or
sale of certain of these assets has declined below their
carrying amount.

On 21 March 2019, a major explosion occurred at a
chemical plant in Chenjiagang Chemical Industry Park,
Chenjiagang, Xiangshui County, Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. The event spurred a significant
emergency response at the national and local levels. The
local government moved almost immediately to close the
entire industrial park and the State Council of the PRC
ordered immediate safety inspections of chemical parks
across the country, instructing regulators to shut down
plants if necessary. The Jiangsu Provincial Government
has decided to slash the number of chemical production
enterprises as part of an ambitious plan to overhaul the
local chemical manufacturing industry.

The operations of the Group's Terminal Handling and
Berthing Business and Petrochemical Products Storage
Business located at Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province and
most of the major customers are mainly the chemical
companies in Jiangsu Province. The expected decrease
in number of chemical production enterprises in Jiangsu
Province would have significant adverse impact on the
Group's Terminal Handling and Berthing Business and
Petrochemical Products Storage Business located in
Jiangsu Province on future operations, and hence, the
future cashflows. As a result, the value-in-use calculations
as at 31 December 2019 substantially decreased when
compared with that estimated as at 31 December 2018.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amounts of
cash-generating unit (“CGU"), including property, plant
and equipment, goodwill, right-of-use assets (2018:
prepaid lease payments) of Petrochemical Products
Storage Business and property, plant and equipment,
goodwill and right-of-use assets of Terminal Handling
and Berthing Business (2018: Nil) (collectively known
as the "Assets”), which was lower than the aggregate
carrying amounts, are determined by the management,
with assistance from an independent professional valuer,
based on fair value less costs of disposal for the Assets,
which are significantly higher than that using value-in-use
calculations (refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements).

The key assumptions used in estimating the fair value of
the Assets under depreciation replacement cost approach
include estimation of construction as if building the
similar structures, adjusting for physical deterioration,
obsolescence and optimisation or referring to current
market price of the similar assets. The valuation was
categorised as Level 3 fair value measurement.

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of
the CGU of Terminal Handling and Berthing Business is
determined to be lower than their respective carrying
amount. The recoverable amount of this CGU, comprising
goodwill, property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets, measured at fair value less costs of disposal,
is HK$173,175,000 (2018: HK$1,063,024,000 measured at
value-in-use valuations). Accordingly, impairment losses
of HK$223,782,000 (2018: HK$nil), HK$611,205,000 (2018:
HK$nil) and HK$594,000 (2018: HK$nil) were provided for
goodwill, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets in relation to this CGU respectively during the year.

15. ¥ - BERKRE®E)

R-ZE-NF+-_A=+—H HLEL
BEU(HRELEEUDBREALERR
BEBZME  BEREE BERER
REECZE-N\F - ANEENTUR
BREEMEBXRBZUE  BERRK
" BELREREEE(CT\F:F)
mBIEE Dz kBB (EREARE
BEHEEEEBYEXMEMBGEY TR
RFEREEMNHEXNAEE - MEBA
WoeHEBRESRREBEREENE
MER(FE2HEEMBEMRKT T -

RENEEEXNDEGFEEZATFE
FRBERBRREEGERERENZER
&R RELERE  REMELEL
HAEL2RBREUEENERME - A8
WO BRE=RRFENE-

RZZB-NE+_A=1+—B HEEZRE
MEAEBNRSEEBEN 2B S5
EREABENREZENERE ZRSE
EEN(REEE WE- - BEREZBN
MEREEE) 2R ESEIZAFER
HERARFE » 5173,175,0008 T (ZF—
J\AE + 1,063,024,00058 7T © & {F A EE
HiEEE) At RAFE  pBEBE
ReELEBNIHE WE BERZE
AR FE FREEEE DRI IZ R E E B8 & E
223,782,000 T (Z B —N\F: TH 1)
611,205,000 L (ZE—N\F = F L) &
594,000 T (ZZE—N\F : TH ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

15.

16.

182

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of
the CGU of Petrochemical Products Storage Business is
determined to be lower than their respective carrying
amount. The recoverable amount of this CGU, comprising
goodwill, property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets, measured at fair value less costs of disposal,
is HK$180,786,000 (2018: HK$151,794,000 measured at
value-in-use valuations). Accordingly, net impairment
losses of HK$nil (2018: HK$14,844,000), HK$10,428,000
(2018: HK$23,804,000) and reversal of impairment loss of
HK$6,906,000 (2018: impairment of HK$6,906,000) were
provided for goodwill, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets in relation to this CGU respectively
during the year.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was in the process
of obtaining the ownership certificates in respect of the
building and terminal facilities in Jiangsu Hairong with
carrying amounts of HK$1,072,000 (2018: HK$4,515,000)
and HK$158,507,000 (2018: HK$761,533,000) respectively.

GOODWILL

15.

16.

ME- -BERRE®R

R-ZBE-NF+_A=+—8  A{LER
ERESHRSEESMN 2D & B
REABRESANEEE -ZHEEE
B (REEE ME BEERREBAR
FAEEE) 2T KRE ¢ EIZEAFER D
Efk K& 0 5180,786,0005 T (Z & —
J\F 151,794,000 7T - L EREETE
EETE) At RAFEE BB IR
CEABMIEE WE - BREREKEN
FERAEEEDRFIRBAEREFER
BEBET(ZZ—/\F : 14,844,000/ 7T)
10,428,0007% JTt (=& — J\ & : 23,804,000
7 7T) KO B B 18 18 816,906,000/ 7T (=&
— )\ : J§{E6,906,000/8 T ) °

R-ZZT—-hhE+-_A=+—8 AKEHE
T EE R E 9 R &1,072,000% 7T (=
T —)\4F : 4,515,00058 7T ) % 158,507,000
T (= F — \4F : 761,533,000 7T) 2 7T &
HRETFRIEERENMEEE -

Gk

2019
—B2-NF

2018
—E—N\F
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
FTER

Reconciliation of carrying amount B ] (8 #1 57
At beginning of reporting period iz E==g R 225,151 16,213
Acquisition of a subsidiary U g — R E A A - 223,782
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 25) HEWNB R A

(B 5% 25) (73) -
Impairment loss L E & B (223,782) (14,844)
At end of reporting period REBEH KR 1,296 225,151
At 31 December R+=-—HA=+—H
Cost (DN 239,922 239,995
Accumulated impairment loss 25t RERE (238,626) (14,844)

1,296 225,151

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. GOODWILL (Continued) 16. BE @)
Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the EXmERHRAMBEIN 2 REERE
acquisitions effectively included amount in relation to the BARARTSERMRBEBMELES
benefits originated from future market development and NAERMEZ 2 28 - AR ZEMR T
the assembled workforce of the acquired business. These REABANEREE 2 BRIZE - B
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill BEBEBEORAER BHRECERS
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for B ARHBREN -

identifiable intangible assets. None of the goodwill

recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax

purposes.
The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the FMEBZREEIEEARAEERSESLE
Group's CGUs as follows: AT
2019 2018
ZE-hF —E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Terminal Handling and Berthing WREEREAER
Business = 223,782
Petrochemical Products Storage AlLEmMmBRER
Business - -
Petrochemical Products Trading AtEREIEY
Business 1,296 1,369

1,296 225,151

REBHNIEREBRABERAA 183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z

16.

184

—NEFTZA=T-RALFE

GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the Terminal Handling and
Petrochemical
Business and Petrochemical Products Trading Business
as at 31 December 2018 and recoverable amount of

Berthing Business, Products Storage

Petrochemical Products Trading Business as at 31
December 2019 have been determined on the basis of
value in use. These recoverable amounts are based on
certain key assumptions. The value-in-use calculation uses
cash flow projection based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period by applying
certain key assumptions below:

16. BE®m)

Terminal Handling

and Berthing

Business

GRS &

SORETR

2018

—T-N\F

Pre-tax discount rate BiAT AR R = 10%
Average growth rate THERE 27%
Perpetual growth rate KA R E 1%

The recoverable amount of the CGU of Terminal Handling
and Berthing Business and Petrochemical Products
Storage Business as at 31 December 2019 are determined
with reference to fair value less costs of disposal are lower
than their respective carrying amounts as mentioned in

note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

An impairment loss on goodwill of HK$223,782,000 in
relation the Terminal Handling and Berthing Business was
made during the year.

The goodwill in relation to the CGU of Petrochemical
Products Storage Business has been fully impaired in a
previous year.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

BREENSEBARY AEEMBRE
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WeREHEAEREEREEET L2
ERETEIERR ERHEEDRERE
Fﬁﬁ&ﬂi%%ﬁﬁﬁZﬁémg
AEAUATE TEERRS

Petrochemical

Petrochemical Products Products
Trading Business Storage Business
AL E @

ALtERERER BRAE
2019 2018 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F —T-N\F
1% 1% 8%

3% 3% 2%

1% 1% 1%

R=F-AF+=A=+—A0 2BAT
EREERAEE 2 ACERABES
EEREEREAEBREEEELY
AT B O 2 B SR B TSR
&8 2 REME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
17. &
FRAEEE

17. LEASES

Right-of-use assets

Prepaid Sea use

lease rights Office
payments payments premises
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
ENEE SEFER WRE
E:S TR ) %
(ffzxa)  (Mt=Eb)  (B¥FEc) 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TET BT BT

Reconciliation of carrying amount HREIEHE — &=
— year ended 31 December —E-hHF+=A
2019 =Et+t—HLEFE

REF) — RERAFBE
B HmELERIE16

At beginning of the year —
upon adoption of HKFRS 16

SR 35,124 2,920 2,336 40,380

Depreciation e (986) (88) (1,285) (2,359)
Reversal of impairment loss 1B & 18 [

(impairment loss) OB EE1E) 6,906 (594) - 6,312

Exchange differences [E X =78 (879) (75) @) (963)

At the end of the reporting period %k 2 Hi K 40,165 2,163 1,042 43,370

At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-h&E+=A

=+-8
Cost 7R 43,121 2,845 2,327 48,293
Accumulated depreciation and R ERRBEEE
impairment losses (2,956) (682) (1,285) (4,923)
Net carrying amount REFEE 40,165 2,163 1,042 43,370

Note a: Prepaid lease payments

Zhongnanhui has agreed with L&A 28 B REZEEE (Management
Committee of Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Economic Development Zone*,
“Management Committee of Dafeng”) and /T & K 288 1F R £ EGR
A7) ("Jiangsu Dafeng”), a company wholly owned by the Government of
Yancheng Dafeng Port, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (the “Government of
Yancheng Dafeng”) to pay RMB19 million to Management Committee of
Dafeng and Jiangsu Dafeng which would apply for the certificate of land
use right of a piece of land located in Yancheng Dafeng on behalf of

Zhongnanhui from the Bureau of Land and Resources of Yancheng Dafeng.

ffifa: BN BEENK

TRERIHALELEREEZEG([REEE
BgNRIHALEELEREEABERAR(IHA
@ AR ET A B A EBET (B AL BT
2EBEAEZRAFANME MALYBZEGRIHAL
4 A R #19,000,0007T JA X 2 7 7 E 3k — 18 iz 7 B8
WAL L mER X LE L ERBHBLILEH

= .

REBHNIEREBRABERAA 185
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

17.

186

LEASES (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Note a: Prepaid lease payments (Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of Zhongnanhui, as an incentive for
investments in the location, it was the intention of Management
Committee of Dafeng and Jiangsu Dafeng to bear the additional purchase
cost if it exceeded RMB19 million.

In March 2011, Zhongnanhui entered into an agreement with the Bureau of
Land and Resources of Yancheng Dafeng pursuant to which Zhongnanhui
was granted the land use right of that piece of land at a consideration of
RMB36.5 million. Management Committee of Dafeng and Jiangsu Dafeng
paid the whole amount on behalf of Zhongnanhui including the excess

portion of consideration of RMB17.5 million.

In accordance with confirmation from Management Committee of Dafeng
and Jiangsu Dafeng, Zhongnanhui had no further obligation in respect
of the grant of the land use right apart from RMB19 million payable to
Management Committee of Dafeng and Jiangsu Dafeng, which was fully
settled.

Upon acquisition of Zhongnanhui by the Group in 2016, the prepaid
lease payments were valued at RMB38.7 million. The prepaid lease
payments are amortised over the remaining leasehold period of 45 years
since acquisition. As at 31 December 2019, the prepaid lease payments
were pledged to secure bank borrowings as stated in note 27(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

* The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated for

identification purpose only.
Note b: Sea use rights payments

The amount represented cost paid for sea use rights, with remaining lease
term of 40 years as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 41 years) in Dafeng Port,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The cost is amortised over the lease period.

As at 31 December 2019, the sea use right payments were pledged
to secure bank borrowings as stated in note 27(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.
Note c: Office premises
The Group leases various office premises for its daily operations. Lease

terms range from 24 to 36 months. Lease payments were usually increased

annually to reflect current market rentals.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

17. LEASES (continued)
Restrictions or covenants

Most of the leases of office premises impose a restriction
that, unless the approval is obtained from the lessor,
the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Group
and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the
underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep
those properties in a good state of repair and return the
properties in their original condition at the end of the
lease.

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the

year:

17. & #®)

PR % = R 78

ZEMAMEHENBRBRE  RIFER
HEANE TRIEHREEERE
AEBEER  BAEETSHEREIRA
EE -

IMEHENS  AEEASBYMERLY
MEEIRE YTREEERBRYEN

AEBRFRAER TSR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHE T

Lease payments: HER:
Short-term leases REHEE 1,242 -
Operating lease payments wEHENR = 6,332
Expenses recognised in profit or loss  HRIBZERZFAX 1,242 6,332
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRLEE 2,491 6,332

Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2019, the Group was committed to
HK$207,000 for short-term leases.

At 31 December 2018
The Group had total future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases, which are payable as
follows:

HEAE

RZBE-NF+—_A=+—8 K&EA#R
55 AR 73 & /E A& 2 207,000 7T ©

R=F-N\F+=A=+—H

AEBRTARELEMETERMNR
KxBERENRAELT:

HK$'000
TAET

Within one year —FR 3,594
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_HFZELFBEEEME) 666
4,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. ENHEEN
2018
—ZT-N\F
HK$'000
FHET
At cost BEAE
At the beginning of year N 46,495
Exchange realignment BE 3 B (2,409)
At the end of year RER 44,090

Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss RitBERBREBE

At the beginning of year N 1,130
Amortisation during the year FREH 1,028
Exchange realignment ME 3 8 & (98)
Impairment DERIEY 6,906
At the end of year RER 8,966
Carrying amount FRHEE 35,124
Less: Amounts to be amortised within 12 months  J& : R 12{E A N H 2 ¢ 58 (989)
Amounts to be amortised after 12 months ARR2ERZ#E 2 H 34,135
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the prepaid lease RERE BV R EERE 165 1% - T
payments are presented under right-of-use assets. HENKRDRERAEEERTZ -
19. SEA USE RIGHT PAYMENTS 19. BEEAENR
2018
—ZT-N\F
HK$'000
FHET
At cost R
At the beginning of the year REF -
Additions — acquisitions of a subsidiary RE —WE—FHRERQF 2,927
At the end of year RER 2,927
Accumulated amortisation EE &
At the beginning of the year REF -
Amortisation during the year F A 7
At the end of year RER 7
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19.

20.

21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

SEA USE RIGHT PAYMENTS (Continued) 19. BEERAES K@
2018
—E—N\FE
HK$'000
FET
Carrying amount REE 2,920
Less: Amounts to be amortised within 12 months & : #1218 B A # #5104 58 (72)
Amounts to be amortised after 12 months B2l B2 B M £ 58 2,848
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the sea-use right R E BT REERNFE1651% - B
payments are presented under right-of-use assets. TRENR IR ERAREEERTZY -
PREPAYMENTS IN RELATION TO 20. BE BMERIFEZEANLXK
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT b= |

2019 2018
—g-nE —2—N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TR

Advances to suppliers for purchase of FEEWZE BEK
property, plant and equipment & A e B K 4,596 500

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2. RAFEFABEZZEREE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Unlisted investment fund outside ERBRIIZIELETRE
Hong Kong He 3,343 7971
The unlisted investment fund represents the non- FEMREESEEIMEN F3.6%E4.0%
principal-guaranteed fund with the rate of return ranged (BRIBHEE) 2 MRAES - JFLE™
from 3.6% to 4.0%, varies according to the number of days KREES 2 ATENDZERT(RESRE
of establishment. The fair value of unlisted investment BANZHREEBTE ZBREEER-_ZZ
fund is estimated with reference to the price quoted by T F LR (B 493,343,000 L HE

the bank which is the fund administrator. The investment
has been subsequently disposed of at a consideration of
approximately HK$3,343,000 in 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

22. INVENTORIES 22. #8

2019 2018
—®-hE =t

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET

Finished goods — electronic products SEMX T — EFEm - 4,946
Petrochemical products AL E & 6,309 11,774
6,309 16,720
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EGREMERRE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T F& T
Trade receivables ESEWRRIE
Third parties F=7 36(a)iii) 107,184 418,688
Less: Loss allowance B 1B R 36(a)(iii) (9,511) -
97,673 418,688
Other receivables Hth e R 1E
Deposits, prepayments and other &% « AN RBE K E
debtors i, JFE Ui BR 3K 55,233 38,988
Advanced payments to suppliers [a] £ F& 75 €4 3¢ 45,718 49,722
Value added tax refundable Al 3R 0] 42 (E 7 67,769 142,435
Interest receivable & W) B 6,878 5,461
Security deposit for loan froma RKB—®F=HZ
third party ERZRFESR 27(b) 3,343 -
Due from connected companies & U B8 & A 7] 5B 23(a) 325,437 435,350
Consideration receivable for ERHEWB AR Z
disposal of subsidiaries KRB 25 111 -
504,489 671,956
602,162 1,090,644
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

23. EGREMmEWRRE R

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

23(a) Due from connected companies

23(a) B BB E N R KE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Jiangsu Dafeng TE#KRE (i) 325,415 435,321
AREBBEXEFRRAA AREEEBEXEAR
A A] = 29
REEEBOEREBEELT KREEBEBFCOEAR
Dafeng Port Harbour Limited & T A &
Liability Company* (rxess])
("Dafeng Harbour”) (i) 11 -
BHMAEEWDEERE HEEATAEBRYE
BR AT EEARAT (ii) " -
325,437 435,350
(i) The amount represents advances of (i) B IEIEH SR KRER)

RMB292,009,000 (approximately HK$325,415,000)
(2018: RMB382,296,000 (approximately
HK$435,321,000)) from Jiangsu Hairong (before
acquisition) to Jiangsu Dafeng, which has a
40% equity interest in Dafeng Port Overseas.
The amounts are unsecured and have no fixed
terms of repayment. Included in the amounts
are balances of RMB52,500,000 (approximately
HK$58,506,000) (2018: RMB142,500,000
(approximately HK$162,265,000)) which bear
annual interest at rate ranged from 5-year RMB
benchmark loan interest rate of the People's
Bank of China to 110% of 5-year RMB benchmark
loan interest rate of the People’s Bank of China.
The remaining balances of RMB239,509,000
(approximately HK$266,909,000) (2018:
RMB239,796,000 (approximately HK$273,256,000))
are interest-free.

(i) These companies are controlled by a
substantial shareholder and the amounts are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

(ii)

BRFIHRALHEERLE
INZ 40%REHE) 2 BRA R
292,009,000t (#49325,415,000
BILNZZE—NFARE
382,296,0007T (47435,321,000
BIL) c B EAEIEER
THEETENRY -EH28
B 1 A B #52,500,0007T (49
58,506,000 7T)(= & — N\
F: A R #142,500,0007T (4
162,265,000 7T)) 2 &8¢ 1%
NFFBRAREBITAFEEHA
REZEGRFEREZHEA
RETHAFHPAREEEE
KA EZNMN0% 2 FEERETE °
£ 58 A R #239,509,0007T (49
266,909,000 )= & — N\
£ AN R #239,796,0007T (4
273,256,000/ 70)) Jh B & 8. °

ZERFATEZRREGLE
MEBEAERLN  RERLE
& &R -

REBHNIERFERDERAE
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

24, ReRBESEBYUREBER
RITHEK

2019
e -

2018
—ZE-)N\F
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
FTER

Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFBRRE 35,296 64,588
Bank overdrafts (note 27) RT3 S (Y 5E27) = (5,672)

35,296 58,916

Bank balances and cash attributable DEABIELEZ

to disposal group classified as held HE S B EERTT

for sale EHEBE - 4,736
As stated in the consolidated statement KA IR &R E XK

of cash flows 35,296 63,652

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

24(a) Pledged bank deposits

The pledged bank deposits of the Group are
pledged for the bill payables issued by a bank. The
interest rates of the pledged bank deposits ranged
from 3.6% to 4.4% per annum (2018: 4.39% to 4.63%
per annum) and will be matured from August 2020
to November 2020 (2018: August 2019).

25. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(i) Disposal of Gamma Logistics

On 28 December 2018, the Company entered into
a share transfer agreement with a third party, to
dispose of all its remaining 51% equity interests in
Gamma Logistics at a consideration of HK$4,150,000.
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Gamma
Logistics Group (i.e. the disposal group) have been
classified as held for sale which were measured at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell as at 31 December 2018. An impairment
loss on disposal group classified as held for sale
of HK$10,837,000 was charged to profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The disposal
transaction was completed on 10 January 2019.
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RITESREBETARITE RN XIZFH
R EREA B -

24(a) BHEBRITER

AEBCEFRITERCIERAE
LDERBSRITHELECENREE - B
EIHRITHERCFERNEN F3.6% =
44% (ZFE—NF: FMEL39%E
4.63%) BR-_ZE-_ZTFENAE_ZT
—EF+—RACE-NF:ZF—
FLENR)EER -

25. HEMKB A A
iy HEMBYR

RNRZE—NF+ZA=Z+NB ' &2
AIE—HBE=FEI IR EEpE
LA BB S B A 0035 078 82 T 519% %
. KRB A4,150,0008 T - R=F
—N\F+ZA=+—H8  MBEWKEE
BT EEEMEERBEMNE
DHAEHE D BEABIERE REE
BEHEAFERDEKRK AN CREEG
2 BE-Z—\F+=-_A=+—
HIEFE DEARELRENEE
& B MR E E51810,837,00078 ST N 18
=P NR - HERFERZZE—NI
F—HATHTK -



25. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Disposal of Tianjin Lian Qi Cheng

During the year, Heshun Trading and an independent
third party purchaser (the “Purchaser”) entered into
a disposal agreement pursuant to which Heshun
Trading agreed to sell and the Purchaser agreed to
acquire 51% equity interest of Tianjin Lian Qi Cheng
at a consideration of RMB10,300,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,994,000). The disposal was completed on 8
April 2019.

The following table summaries the consideration
received/receivable and the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities at the date of disposals:

(i)

25. HEMB AR @)

HE R B K

RERN MEBEZHR-—BBLE=
FEHFTEARDI ML HERZ it
MEEZRELERE HFREWE
KB DK% E REAA
R ¥10,300,0007T (48 & 711,994,000
BIC) e HEFBEER - —LFN
ANBZEKX °

TRAENLEEHE K EKRAE
UEEERBEMNREENHEE:

Gamma Tianjin Lian

Logistics Qi Cheng Total
s Ym KB K 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FHT
Net assets disposed of: FTEEFEE:

Property, plant and equipment mME - BERZE 3,219 658 3,877
Interest in associates AL RN I 1,630 - 1,630

Trade and other receivables B 5 & H U
FRIE 43,826 23,826 67,652
Amount due from associate /N E e 1,155 - 1,155
Cash and bank balance HWe MRTTES 4,736 - 4,736

Trade and other payables B 5 & H AT
;A (29,154) (249) (29,403)
Amount due to associates FEAS B & AR FR B (3,946) - (3,946)
Tax payables &~ F 18 (1,046) - (1,046)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBAE (1,471) - (1,471)
Interest bearing borrowings SEEE (10,812) - (10,812)
8,137 24,235 32,372

Consideration: RAE -

Consideration received B (E 4,150 11,883 16,033
Consideration receivables FEW KB - 1M m
4,150 11,994 16,144
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

25. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 25. HEMEQE @
(i) Disposal of Tianjin Lian Qi Cheng (i) HERZHB LR M@
(Continued)
Analysis of net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash HEMNBRARZRSEMNREEEY
equivalents in respect of disposal of subsidiaries: TN G FEa

Gamma Tianjin Lian

Logistics Qi Cheng Total

IS ROE B K #Et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T T T T T

Cash consideration received BUWIR & HRE 4,150 11,883 16,033
Cash and cash equivalents EREReEREHE

disposal of =) (4,736) - (4,736)

Net inflow (outflow) of cash and RE&KIRESEEY R
cash equivalents A ) % 58 (586) 11,883 11,297

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEKBEAT ZEE

Consideration received or B U sk e R (B

receivable 4,150 11,994 16,144
Net assets disposed of FTt&EFEE (8,137) (24,235) (32,372)
Goodwill disposed of B & - (73) (73)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = 4113 11,876 15,989

126 (438) (312)

The net loss on disposal is included in the LEEBEREIFEFTAGEEZEEZ
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. B R HMEMNRE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Trade and bills payables ESRNREAR
EREE
Trade payables B 5 EMNRIE 66,427 324,794
Bills payables FE A E % 412,306 321,244
26(a) 478,733 646,038
Other payables H B ¥ KR
Accrued charges and other fE &t B A R Ho At AT
creditors BR 53,242 37,449
Contract liabilities BHWARIE 26(c) 17,496 17,800
Construction costs payable JE 2 R K AR 468 11,260
Salaries and bonus payable B & RIEA 1,464 2,727
Amounts due to connected J& 1<t 88 3 X R RKIE
companies 26(b) 1,101,519 1,231,702
1,174,189 1,300,938
1,652,922 1,946,976
26(a) Trade and bills payables 260 ESENRERENSEE
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, EHRNFIERENEBRERH
based on invoice date, is as follows: HZERWROMIT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHE T
90 days or below 90K gk AT~ 62,480 645,740
91-180 days 912180K 412,306 298
181-365 days 1812 365K 3,947 -
478,733 646,038
The Group was allowed a credit period up to 90 AEBEEBSBERARENES
days by its trade creditors. The trade payables are ARNEER BEENKIERE
interest-free and are normally settled on terms of one BEEBRER—ZEXNEAPELEER -

to six months.
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 26. EZRHMENRE @

26(a) Trade and bills payables (Continued) 26(a) EZENRERENESE (&)
The bills payables of RMB297,460,000 (equivalent & 2 & A R #297,460,0007T (48
to HK$331,489,000), RMB10,360,000 (equivalent to & 73314890007 ) A R %
HK$11,545,000) and RMB62,160,000 (equivalent to 10,360,0007T (48 & #211,545,0007%8
HK$69,272,000) are interest-bearing at 2.9% to 4.0% L)~ A R #62,160,0007T (FH & B
per annum and repayable in July, October and 69,272,000 JT) & § F29% £4.0%
November 2020 respectively (2018: the outstanding FERABESNR-ZE_FF LA +
bills payable balance RMB282,115,000 (equivalent Ak+—RAEE(CZT-N\F:KE
to HK$321,224,000) was interest-bearing at 3.8% to i B B R 4 o A R 282,115,000
4.0% per annum and payable in August 2019). JC (& 7 321,224,000/8 L) BIZEF

3.8%ZE4 0% RERZZE—NFNA
I=ERPIE
26(b) Amounts due to connected companies 26(b) BB E AR RIE
2019 2018
ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET

Current portion RE D

Dafeng Harbour NEFE 26(b)(i) 888,685 908,063

Jiangsu Dafeng T ER A2 26(b)(ii) 207,038 194,223

IERERIKRERR DA IHERIRE

(Jiangsu Huahai Investments BRAT
Limited, “Jiangsu Huahai") (DI#EED 26(b)(iii) 5,796 129,416
1,101,519 1,231,702
Non-current portion EREI S
Jiangsu Huahai L8 E 26(b)(iii) 126,654 —
1,228,173 1,231,702
* The official name is in Chinese and the English name is
translated for identification purpose only

()  The amount due is unsecured, interest-free () EHENREAEER. 28
and has no fixed terms of repayment. Dafeng REETEERE KEE88R
Harbour is the wholly-owned subsidiary of AHEREZ2EMBERR -
Jiangsu Dafeng.

(i) Jiangsu Dafeng has equity interests in Dafeng (i) THAEEAAREEBIZ
Port Overseas as to 40%. The amounts due A0% X - B RN RIEE R
represent the consideration payable in relation U B AR A &) — R B /BB 8 BT &R
to acquisition of Jiangsu Hairong, a subsidiary BRENKE BEFEARE
of the Company. The amounts are unsecured, HRRAREZRER  REF
repayable on demand and bear interest at a HTA3B%ETE ©

rate of 4.35% per annum.

19 6 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 26. EZRHEMENE

26(b) Amounts due to connected companies 26(b) FEAS BB E N B K IE (&)

(Continued)

(i) Jiangsu Huahai has 10% shareholdings in (i) TITEESHNALEESNES
Dafeng Port Overseas. The accounts due 10% H) B #E - 75 B JE 3R IE $5
represent the consideration payable in relation FUWE AR —HHBART
to acquisition of Jiangsu Hairong, a subsidiary HERENKE BRRER
of the Company. The amounts are unsecured B IR FNRL35%E1 R °
and bear interest at a rate of 4.35% per FR - ARAEI&HEFE] Y
annum. During the year, the Company and ERERGZ  ERRAELS
Jiangsu Huahai entered into a loan extension # # A R #113,652,0007T (48
agreement and it was agreed by both parties & 126,654,000 TT) 1§ A =
that the principal balance of RMB113,652,000 T_—F+_A-+HEE-

(equivalent to: HK$126,654,000) would be
repayable on 20 December 2021.

26(c) Contract liabilities 26(c) BWERE
The movements (excluding those arising from FA - -BEBMBRESLERFISH
increases and decreases both occurred within the HEATFEHOZANEBEZH (T
same year) of contract liabilities from contracts with BRERRA-—FERRMELEER) N
customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are as ™~
follows:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\E

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

At the beginning of the reporting R &4

period 17,800 184,589
Recognised as revenue R EWZE (17,800) (184,589)
Receipt of advances of undelivered W KRR & fh 2 B 5K

goods 17,496 17,800
At end of the reporting period A& H K 17,496 17,800
At 31 December 2019, the advance payments from RZEBE—NF+_A=+—8 &8P
customers are expected to be recognised as revenue ZENRERRER —FAERR
within one year. Wz o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. BRTREMEE

2019
o

HK$'000
FER

2018

—E)N\F

HK$'000
TAET

Interest-bearing R
Bank loans RITER 27(a) 95,838 209,521
Loan from a third party KE—BE=ZFZER 27(b) 11,901 35,529
Loan from a connected company KB —EEQF 2
B% 27(c) 69,650 108,746
Bank overdrafts (note 24) SR 1738 S (K 5E24) - 5,672
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,078 -
Unlisted secured bonds I EMERXIFES 27(d) 397,361 392,657
Total bank and other borrowings R 17 & H b (& & 8 %8 575,828 752,125
Current portion BV ER &8 53
— Bank loans — RITEK 95,838 111,593
— Loan from a third party — RE—RE=FH
ZEX 11,901 23,368
— Loan from a connected — KE—H@E
company RNAEIZER 69,650 -
— Lease liabilities —HEAaE 670 -
— Bank overdrafts — R1TBEX - 5,672
178,059 140,633
Non-current portion JEBDER =R o
— Bank loans — RITER = 97,928
— Loan from a third party — RE—EBE=H
ZEX = 12,161
— Loan from a connected — KE—H@E
company NAEIZER - 108,746
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 408 -
— Unlisted secured bonds — LM AEIKA
&% 397,361 392,657
397,769 611,492
Total bank and other borrowings R 17 & H fib & & 458 575,828 752,125
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

27. RTRHEMEE @)

(Continued)

2019 2018
ZE-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET

Analysed as follows: pai N
Secured ot 11,901 41,201
Secured and guaranteed EEARER 493,199 602,178
Unsecured 45 35 1R 70,728 108,746
575,828 752,125

At the end of reporting date, the analysis of bank and
other borrowings due based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements is as follows:

RBEAHR BNRTREMEERE
RIpEMEEERBMZOMMT

2019 2018
—E-hF —ENE

HK$°000 HK$000
TERT TAT

The above borrowings are repayable as

A EBERERIATRABRE

follows: g
— repayable on demand or within — RERIMFANEE
1 year 178,059 140,633
— repayable after 1 year but within — MFRE2ZFREER
2 years 397,769 218,835
— repayable after 2 years but within — R2FZBSFANERE
5 years = 392,657
Total bank and other borrowings RITREMEERE 575,828 752,125

27(a) Bank loans

27() BITER

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\&F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHB T

Bank Loan A IRITE KA 28,974 38,716
Bank Loan B IRITE B - 34,161
Bank Loan C RITEC 66,864 136,644
Total bank loans RITER @5 95,838 209,521
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

200

(Continued)

27(a) Bank loans (Continued)

Bank Loan A

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 28 July 2015
entered into between Zhongnanhui and Jiangsu
Dafeng Rural Commercial Bank Co Ltd, a 5-year term
loan facility of up to RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$60,000,000) was made available to Zhongnanhui.

As at 31 December 2019, the loan balances of
RMB26,000,000 (equivalent to HK$28,974,000) (2018:
RMB34,000,000, equivalent to HK$38,716,000) carry
interest rates ranged between 5.8% and 6.5% per
annum and are secured by prepaid lease payments
as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, these loans are
guaranteed by Jiangsu Dafeng up to the extent of
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to HK$33,432,000).

Bank Loan B

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 23 December
2010 entered into between Jiangsu Hairong and
China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited,
a term loan of RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$148,031,000) was made to Jiangsu Hairong which
is fully repayable on 3 January 2019.

Bank Loan C

Pursuant to the loan agreement entered into
between Jiangsu Hairong and Bank of China
Limited, a bank loan of RMB390,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$444,093,000) with interest bearing at the
People’s Bank of China base interest rate per
annum and repayable in 2020 are guaranteed by
Jiangsu Dafeng and secured by right-of-use assets
(2018: sea use right payments) as disclosed in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements. As at
31 December 2019, the loan balance amounted to
RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to HK$66,864,000) (2018:
RMB120,000,000 (equivalent to HK$136,644,000)).
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o

mE
i

RITEMC

BB ERMERRHETRMNDER
NEIMEI M ER B REARE
390,000,0007T (48 & 444,093,000
BILIZROTER  DEFABEHAR
BOTRAEFFNEFEREAREZ
THEEE ZEFHAIHALER
RUARE TR R F17AT 3 BB
FEAREE(ZZE—N\F  §GHEFEH
BRPOERR R —NF+
“AZt+—B EBEREHRBARE
60,000,0007T (18 & 766,864,000/
T ZZ—)\F : AR ¥120,000,000
7t (P8 & 78136,644,00078 7)) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. BRTREMEE®

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

27(b) Loan from a third party

27(c)

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 28 March 2018
entered into between Zhongnanhui and a third party,
loan facility of up to RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$68,332,000) was made available to the Group
and is secured by computer equipment, storage
facilities and construction in progress with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB55,403,000 (equivalent to
HK$61,741,000) (2018: RMB58,366,000 (equivalent to
HK$66,461,000)). The loan bears the interest rate of
5.38% per annum.

A security deposit of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,343,000) as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,416,000)) has
been placed for this loan. The loan is repayable by
installments and the last installment is due on 20
April 2020.

Loan from a connected company

Pursuant to the loan agreement signed between
Heshun Trading and Jiangsu Dafeng which was
a substantial shareholder of the Group, a loan of
RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to HK$111,440,000) with
interest bearing at 9% per annum and repayable in
November 2020 is unsecured. As at 31 December
2019, the loan balance amounted to RMB62,500,000
(equivalent to HK$69,650,000) (2018: RMB%0,000,000
(equivalent to HK$108,746,000)).

27(d) Unlisted secured bonds

On 29 March 2018, the Company issued 3-year
unlisted secured bonds of US$50,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$390,395,000) with a coupon rate of 7.5% per
annum (the "Bonds”) and the interest is payable on
every 29th of September and March. The proceeds
from issuance of the Bonds to independent third
parties after the issuance costs were HK$383,277,000.
The effective interest rate is 8.3% per annum.

21b) RE—BE=AZERX

27(c)

BEFEERE —ZE=FMIZA
HAE-_ZE-N\E=A-+\BZEX
WE AEEERESEZAARE
60,000,0007T (18 & 768,332,000/%
TIZERRE WUAEEAEAR
#55,403,0007T (18 & 72 61,741,000
T (ZZE—)\F : AR #58,366,000
7T (HB & 766,461,000 7T)) 2 B B
B EREREREETRRERE -
BRIEFFE538EFE -

RZE—-—NLF+_AR=+—H"
ZEFREHRUEFTARBTEARKE
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—F—)\F : AR®3,000,0007T (8
& 13,416,000 L)) - E XA 5
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—H - BB A ARE62,500,000
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108,746,0005% 7T)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(Continued)
27(d) Unlisted secured bonds (Continued)

Dafeng Port Overseas, a controlling shareholder
of the Company, entered into a deed of account
charge (the "Account Charge”) with the security
trustee on 29 March 2018, pursuant to which Dafeng
Port Overseas assigned and agreed to assign to the
security trustee, as trustee for the bondholders, all of
Dafeng Port Overseas’ right, title and interest from
time to time in and to each secured account, which
represented approximately 57.46% of the Company’s
total issued shares as at 29 March 2018, as security
for the payment and discharge of the secured
obligations.

Based on the deed of guarantee dated 29 March
2018, the Bonds are guaranteed by Jiangsu Dafeng.

28. DEFERRED TAXATION

The movements for the year in the Group's net deferred

tax liabilities are as follows:

27. RTRHEMEE®)

21(d) 3k £ B T & 2= )

ARBZ—HFEBRBEERREEEI
RZZ-NF=ZRA -+ BEIER
EEAFTLRFEAREBE(RAE
;D Bl KEBEBINMGKERS
SIMBERERMEP AR
rERkES HERR-_T—/\F
ZAZTNABARRABETRND
BLAI57.46%) 838 W A 3 88 58 T
XRAMERBEFHEAZZTEA)
ERXNEBEITEMREEZER -

REABRS -_ZE-NF=ZA_-1+N
AZERRE BB IHANEE
& -

28. EEERE

AEEBERLEREABEFENAFE 28
EyR N

2019 2018

—E-hF —E—N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET AT

At beginning of the reporting period RIBEHY (7,100) (3,619)

Addition — Acquisition of a subsidiary ANE—WE — KB Q A - (5,254)

Credited to profit or loss (note 11) sEAE I (B EE11) 191 200
Reclassified as liabilities associated with EF DB AEFEHE 2

disposal group held for sale HEEEFHE 2 BE - 1,471

Exchange difference M H =5 36 102

At end of the reporting period REEBHK (6,873) (7,100)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 28. iE % ¥ 1E ()
Recognised net deferred tax liabilities at the end of the RREMRZERREENIEAG FHE
reporting period represent the following: AN &IE

Assets Liabilities
BE 8f&
2019 2018 2019 2018

—F-AF ZFT)/\F ZB-RF —ZT)\F
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET THERT FHET

Fair value adjustments NFEERE = - (11,849) (6,822)
Tax loss T IE B 1R 4,976 4,976 = -
Fair value adjustment upon Wi — M B A F

acquisition of a subsidiary 2 A FEFHE - - - (5,254)
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE E

(liabilities) (&) 4,976 4,976 (11,849) (12,076)
Offsetting 85 (4,976) (4,976) 4,976 4,976
Net deferred tax liabilities EZEHEABEFEHE = - (6,873) (7,100)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets (liabilities) of continuing UTRIEMEEAFBERKEEBARERE
operations arising from EFHEEE(AE)

2019
—®-hE —F-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THETT

Before multiplied by the applicable tax AT %78 3 A i A

rate: T =g
Temporary differences R = (3,647) (2,882)
Tax losses T IE B 18 153,443 76,336

149,796 73,454

REBHNIEREBRABERAA
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z

28.

204

—NEFTZA=T-RALFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these items due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The expiry dates of unrecognised tax losses of

continuing operations are as follows:

28.

IE 7T B H (@)

B X K B AN R SO M ORI E B
E%%IEEEE RARERIBEE - FELE
EBZRAERVBABRZIBBEMT

2019 2018
—EB-hF — N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Tax losses without expiry date EINHAHIBERE 13,525 5,688
Tax losses expiring on RZZT_ME+_A
31 December 2024 —t+—BRHFEEEIE 79,429 -
Tax losses expiring on R-_ZE-_=%+—"AH
31 December 2023 =+ HEHREER 51,261 60,705
Tax losses expiring on RZTEZ_—_F+=H
31 December 2022 =+ HEHREER 8,871 9,559
Tax losses expiring on RZE-_—F+_A4
31 December 2021 =+ REHREER 357 384
153,443 76,336
Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is RERBECEMESRZE REBKZZ
levied on dividends distributed to foreign investors by INERECERIINEREEDRZKRE -

the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, no deferred
tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Groups’
subsidiaries established in the PRC of HK$1,594,000 (2018:
HK$2,201,000).
accumulated profits, at the present time, are required for
financing the continuing operations of the entities and no
distribution would be made in the foreseeable future.

In the opinion of the directors, these

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z

SHARE CAPITAL

29.

e M RRME

—NEFTZA=T-RALFE

IR A

2019 2018
—E-hF —N&F
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
B4 & E EHE 1 2 B EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FREE0.014
HK$0.01 each T2 E B 10,000,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRBERM
(HK$0.01 each): (BREE0.018
)
At beginning of year and RENREFER
at end of the year 1,288,000,000 12,880 1,288,000,000 12,880

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 3 August 2013. The purpose of the Scheme
is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that
participants have made or may make to the Group,
to provide participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with the view to achieve
motivating the participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group, to attract and
retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship
with participants, whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

Participants include (i) any director and employee,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
("Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of
which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects
of which include any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a
company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
agent,
partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an
Affiliate.

consultant, professional, customer, supplier,

30.

BRESTE

ARRBR_T—=FN\A=ZRRNERE
sHEI(TEHE)) - 5181 B &Y 5 £ 52 7F R B At
EEHAEEHAKEFLERZ2 A
EF-RA2EFZREBERARFEEBEA
Bt NEHEBH2EEFRKERR
RMEEAREET 7 - ARSI RREHIA
Hitp T AR RSEEHEETRE -
MKEZ BRB A MR KB R RAEE
ZERMER -

SEEAE (N EEXAEEFEES
ZARRZATNZHBAR (BB AR
FREZ=E;EE HHRA BF #HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

206

The directors may, at their discretion, invite any
participant to take up options. Options may be granted
to participants under the Scheme during the period of 10
years commencing on the effective date of the Scheme.
An option is deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee upon the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee and
paying HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price of the share options will be
determined by the board and shall not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant of the relevant option, which must be a business
day (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the relevant option and (c) the nominal value of a share
on the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
shares of the Company, being 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the Scheme unless shareholders’ approval has been
obtained. An option may be exercised during a period to
be determined by the directors in their absolute discretion
and in any event such period shall not be later than 10
years after the date of grant of the option.

The maximum entitlement for any participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant under
the Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1 percent of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company. Any further grant of options in excess of the
1 percent limit shall be subject to certain requirements
provided under the GEM Listing Rules.

No option has been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

31. #EE

RESERVES

31(a) Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of the net
proceeds from issuance of the Company’s shares
over its nominal value. Under the law of the Cayman
Islands and the Company's Articles of Association,
it is distributable to the Company's shareholders
provided that the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business
after the distribution.

31(b) Capital reserve

31(c)

The capital reserve arises from the business

combination under common control in relation
to the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) for
rationalising the corporate structure in preparation
for the initial listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange. The Reorganisation
was completed on 3 August 2013. The amount
represents the difference between aggregate net
asset value of the subsidiaries and the investment

costs in the subsidiaries.

The negative capital reserve represents the excess
of “total investment costs in the subsidiaries” over
“the aggregate net assets value of the subsidiaries”.

Under merger accounting the net assets of the
combining entities are combined using the existing
book values from the controlling party’s perspective.
No amount is recognised as consideration for
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase at the time
of common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.
Accordingly, the above mentioned difference has
been recorded in the capital reserve under merger
accounting.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of the
financial statements of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 4 above.

31(a)

31(b)

31(c)

I 42 3% (B

B 1 )4 1B #8 B AT AR B A T 5 3K
BEFRBLRMEE 2D - RIE
MEREAMRARRAKERA
A ARRRDIREE—REH
BREPAENENBBMER - BIK
MEEADIRTARE R

EXRfEE

EARBERERASHEARARD
PABSE A2 P GEM &R £ T M 32 JE 2 F)
REMETEAIERD 2 HRAE
HTEBEHELE BHEHDN-F
—=F\AZHBEK - ZEemmEN
BRARIZEEFEABERENE
RAEZKAEZZHE

BENFHEHREIRENBAR 2 AKX

Ly

AIBHIMBRRZEEFEARE]
i
IERTME AHEBEBETAH

ERCZEEFENAREEREEES
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31.

208

RESERVES (Continued)

31(d) Statutory reserve

The statutory reserves are reserves required by the
Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises
applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The
reserves can be used to reduce previous years' losses
and to increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

31(e) Other reserve

31(f)

The other reserve has been set up to deal with the
changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control. The difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised in other reserves.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose
from the Reorganisation. The balance represents
the difference between the nominal amount of
the Company'’s shares issued and the consolidated
shareholders’ fund of the subsidiaries acquired
during the Reorganisation.

31(g) Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the
fair value of share-based payment transactions dealt
with employees of the Group and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R R M A
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
32. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 2. EMBEEREER
32(a) Cash generated from operations N REMBEE

2019 2018
—g-nE  —EFNF
HK$'000

HK$'000

FTEx

TR

Loss before taxation B B4 A &S 18 (944,792) (173,315)
Amortisation HH = 1,035
Depreciation of property, plant ME BERZEHTE

and equipment 31,198 12,651
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {F FEEEITE 2,359 -
Foreign exchange differences SN[ 2= BE (19,650) (16,584)
Impairment loss on trade Z SRR IEREEE

receivables 9,542 -
Impairment loss on property, plant %1% « BB R & # 2

and equipment B & B 621,633 23,804
Impairment on disposal group SEARELEZLEE

classified as held for sale £ B REE - 10,837
Impairment loss on goodwill EESN RN SR 223,782 14,844
(Reversal of) Impairment loss on  FAEEE FANHEE

right-of-use assets/prepaid Rz (B E) R E & 18

lease payment (6,312) 6,906
Interest income B A (16,052) (6,998)
Interest expenses FERX 58,744 31,907
Share of results of associates LB E NREE - 591
Loss (Gain) on disposal of HEME - MEREZEEE

property, plant and equipment, (W 2) % 5

net 17 (381)
Loss (Gain) on disposal of HENBAR ZEIE

subsidiaries (K z) 312 (261)
Write-back of long outstanding HEREAKREEEM

other payables X NE QL] - (6,686)
Write-back of accrued directors’ Bl EFtEEF &

salaries (389) -
Cash flows before changes in LEESEPHIRSRE

working capital: (39,608) (101,650)

Inventories FE 9,917 (10,058)

Trade and other receivables g5 & E g W FRIB 447,999 43,743

Trade and other payables E5 Nk EMhERMFKRE (147,597) 328,646
Cash generated from operations K& BHEE 270,711 260,681

REENENERBERAR

2019 F3R

209



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-F

32. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(Continued)

32(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details

—NF+—A=t—BLFE

32(b

-

changes in the Group's

liabilities arising from financing activities, including

both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising

from financing activities are those for which cash

2. EMBEEREER W

MEZBRELEREZE2D

TRHAJARERERE LTS ZAE
228 RERRENIRSEY -

KERMEZD L ABZATRED
R RKBR TR EH%EA$%@F/\

I

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in ReREeEXRDEARMETHMNE
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as EmE °
cash flows from financing activities.
2019 —E—hfF
Cash flow
from/(used
Bank and other in) financing
borrowings activities
RITR MEITBME
HtifseE (FREERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
At beginning of the year R E 1) 752,125 -
Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 REMBE BB ®E
ﬁ Bl %1698 18 2,336 -
Repayments — principal B — e (173,241) (173,241)
Foreign exchange translation HNEE H (9,373) =
Interest incurred in unlisted secured  JE LM ABEESE
bonds 2B 33,506 -
Payment of interest associated with XATEIE A EA
unlisted secured bonds BEBBZFE (29,525) -
At end of the year REXR 575,828 (173,241)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

32. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 2. HREREER @)
(Continued)
32(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing R MEFTEHELEEBZ2EH
activities (Continued) (#)
2018 —E-N\F

Cash flow
from/(used

Bank and other in) financing

borrowings activities
R1T M mEEHE
Hinig & (FA)BRLRE

HK$'000 HK$'000
T T F& T
At beginning of the year REF 670,904 -
Receipts of new interest-bearing B EEE
borrowings 583,004 583,004
New finance leases FmEHRE 4170 -
Transferred to liabilities associated with B ZHIZ{EHEE
assets held for sale EREBzEE (10,812) -
Repayments — principal BR— 1% (661,936) (661,936)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—FHHEB AR 170,805 -
Foreign exchange translation GNEE R (4,010) -
At end of the year RER 752,125 (78,932)
Bank and other borrowings include bank loans, loan RITREMBEEREGZEVBRE
from a third party and loan from a connected party WEE27FT BB TER - RE—F
as disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial FZAZERRKRE—RZHEEALT
statements. 2B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3B.BEFIRS
In addition to the transactions/information disclosed BRGAUBREREMBESIEERS, &
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the BN RAFE  AEEEEITUTEZE
Group has the following related party transactions during FREG:
the year:

2019 2018
—B-nE —FT)N\F

Related party relationship HK$'000 HK$'000
B B THET FHET

Interest expenses paid to:

MERXXMAT:

ANEBRERE(LR) Controlled by a substantial
BREME QA shareholder - 792
LERMEHEEULR)
EREERF H—EEZRRZES
Jiangsu Dafeng Controlled by a substantial
shareholder 17,823 1,363
TERARE H—BEEREZE
BREEREERAA Controlled by a substantial
shareholder = 3,632
BREEXEREBRAF H—2EZRRZES
Jiangsu Huahai Controlled by a director of
the Company 5,904 -
IR EE H—BARRAESEZEH
Remuneration paid: (a)
BT
Salaries and other benefits Key management personnel
other than directors 480 5165
¥ Mk HAMRE R T2EBRAB(EFKIN
Contributions to defined
contribution plans 24 46
E R R &R
Write-back of accrued Directors of the Company
directors’ salaries (389) -
WoEFE=FE ZAYNETE- =
Notes: B &
(a) The remuneration of directors is set out in note 10 to the (a) ERHMERGRE M REM LI -

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS/BANKING FACILITIES 34. EEK® BITRAE

Details of pledged assets and the banking facilities
granted to the Group are summarised as follows:

Total banking facilities granted (note 1) B & HIR1TE & B 58

BEBAMRTAKEZRTREFB
Bt anh

2019
—ZE-hEF

2018
—E-N\EF
HK$'000
TR

HK$'000
FER

(B %1 470,856 415,626
Total utilised banking facilities (note 2) EEZAIRITRE B EE
(B 5¥2) 441,280 365,632

Note 1

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had obtained several
banking facilities amounted to HK$470,856,000 (2018: HK$441,280,000) of
which:

(i) RMB50,000,000 (approximately HK$55,720,000) (2018:
RMB50,000,000, approximately HK$56,935,000) are guaranteed by
Jiangsu Dafeng and secured by right-of-use assets (2018: prepaid
lease payments) as shown in note 17 to consolidated financial

statements.

(ii) RMB372,520,000 (approximately HK$415,136,000) (2018:
RMB300,000,000, approximately HK$341,610,000) is secured by
pledged bank deposits as shown in note 24(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

(iii) As at 31 December 2018, the bank overdrafts as shown in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements was secured by properties

owned by spouse of a director of Qianhai Mingtian.

Note 2

As at 31 December 2018, the utilised banking facilities amounted to
HK$365,632,000 which comprised bills payables of RMB282,115,000
(equivalent to HK$321,244,000) included in trade and bills payables
issued by a bank disclosed in Note 26, bank overdraft of RMB4,981,000
(equivalent to HK$5,672,000) disclosed in note 24 and bank loans of
RMB34,000,000 (equivalent to HK$38,716,000) disclosed in note 27 (a) to

the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the utilised banking facilities amounted to
HK$441,280,000 which comprised bills payables of RMB369,980,000
(equivalent to HK$412,306,000) included in trade and bills payables
issued by a bank disclosed in Note 26 and bank loans of RMB26,000,000
(equivalent to HK$28,974,000) disclosed in note 27 (a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

B &1

R EH R - AN B S A 5470,856,0008 L (=
—)\%F 1 441,280,000 70) 2 & TR/TREE - H -

(i) A R #50,000,0007T (#£755,720,000%8 7 )( = F
— \5 A R #50,000,0007T + #56,935,000
BB ALER - WARE M RE N
HIU7RFREREEE(CE - \F - BNEE
50 1R AR o

(i) A R #372,520,0007T (47415,136,0007% 7T.) (=
T—)\4 : ARM300,000,0007T + #7341,610,000
BIT) R A MR M 240 AT REEAE
TERAEER -

(i) HRZZB-\F+ZA=+—H UEEFBER
KIWFE27FRRITE I URNER R —RES
ZEBATEA Y EMFEER -

Bt 52

RZZEZ—N\F+-_A=+—H8B CHARTHESL
365,632,0008 Tt AE BN RIBRENZE - 2I1F
A MBREMA26MBFEERITAELENZREA
R #282,115,0007T (F& #321,244,0007%8 7T) ~ B 524
FiT 7 8 4R 17 7 32 A R 154,981,000 7T (48 % 14 5,672,000
78 70) I MY 5E27(a) BT I BB 4R 77 B B A K %34,000,000
7t (48 & 238,716,000 7T) °

R-ZZE-NAFE+-_A=+—HCHRRITREAS
441,280,000 T A B S EMNFERENZERE - &8
FEER A B 75 R MY S5 26 P 0 58 4R 77 BT 2% e N 22 4
A R #5369,980,0007T (18 & 14412,306,0007% 7T) K P
FE27(a) T 4% T $R 17 B 5k A R #26,000,0007T (18 & 7
28,974,000 7T) °

REBHNIERFERDERAE
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. COMMITMENTS

36.

214

Capital expenditure commitments

Contracted but not provided net of
deposit paid for construction of
property, plant and equipment

BTS2

35. &I
B X RIE

BERTAERREME  MEZ
BEME - BERZREZ

2019
—E-hF

2018
—T-N\F
HK$'000
FTHET

HK$'000
FTER

229,400 129,670

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitment of HK$229,400,000 (2018: HK$129,670,000)
principally relating to construction work of petrochemical
storage facilities.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank and other borrowings, amounts due from/
to connected companies, financial assets at FVPL,
bank balances and cash. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance
for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial instruments such as trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables, which
arise directly from its business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are (i) foreign currency risk, (ii) interest
rate risk, (i) credit risk and (iv) liquidity risk. The
Group does not have any written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors co-operates closely with key management
to identify and evaluate risks and generally adopts
conservative strategies on its risk management
and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a
minimum level as follows.
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EHIR - NEE AE229,400,0008 7T

—Z — )\ 1 129,670,000/ 7T) 2 A
THRALEREBERIR -

36.

(a)

TRMTA

cHEREEAERBEE

ARECEIESHIABRRITR
HipfE & - BB BE QR R
B RAVEFABRZEREE
NRRITHEBRERE - ZF2RT
AZFIZENABERERIEHE
REMTBRE -AKEAEESLEHE
i FE WK TR A B B 5 B E At FE A 3R
BEEZREAMEMTE  ZFHA
ERAEXBEDESL -

AEESBMIAEEZEERRA
MHNERRER - ()VFERR - (i)EE
BB EiVEiBESRR - AREEIL
FAT M EEEREERERIES -
R BEFCHITSEEABER
BE - AR RFE AR - HEE
REREERIARTREBIEAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

i)

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group's business transactions were
conducted in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
("RMB") and United States dollars (“US$").
Exposures to foreign currency risk arise
from certain of the Group's trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and cash
and bank balances denominated in HK$, RMB
and US$. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign
currency exposures regularly and considers
there is no significant exposure on its foreign
currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relates primarily to its
interest-bearing financial instruments including
bank and other borrowings with variable
interest rates, bank balances and cash and
bank overdrafts.

The table below is a summary of quantitative
data about exposure to interest rates at the
end of the reporting period:

36. @M I B
@ EWMEREBEAERBX#®)

i) Ih BE & B

REBEBEIENBT AR
BOARBDREZT(ET)
TR S o FIEEINE R TS
REAEENET ARER
EUFHEZE S K H A UK
B BHREMENRIENL R
BeRR1TER - AEELE
EATE SR T A Y HEIME
R o 75 E A AT A0 E R
fARAL BB AINERR

i) ANEEEK

TEEGEERTABER
FBMERFE ZRITREAME
§ - SRITEB MRS U RRTT
BB FREGFEARE
By misERE -

TREIHBEHRN KR g2
B8R

2019 2018

—®-nE  —F-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Bank balances and cash WITHEB AR S 35,296 64,588

Bank and other borrowings with & ¥ 8) FI 51 8 ~ iR

variable interest rate ThEMEER (95,838) (176,477)

Net exposure [2 g 5B (60,542) (111,889)
REBMERERBERD R
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

216

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

i)

iiii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if interest
rates had been 100 basis points (2018: 100
basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's net
loss would increase/decrease by HK$605,000
(2018: the Group's net loss would increase/

decrease by HK$1,119,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for the
financial instruments in existence at that date.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual end of
the reporting period.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets on the
consolidated statement of financial position,
which is net of impairment losses, represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
on these financial assets.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. The Group limits its
exposure to credit risk from trade receivables
by selecting the counterparties with reference
to their past credit history and/or market
reputation.
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@) SRERESEEERBE@®)

i) MERERE)

R EER - WHEER T
FHI00ME £ 2 (ZZ—/)\F : 100
EEZ)  MATAEMtE s
N BIAEE L BERIFES
# 90,8 4 605,000 7T (- &
—N\F AREBZEEFEG
90,/ 401,119,000 7T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

iii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk

is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on an
extensive credit rating and individual credit
limit assessment which is mainly based on the

Group's own trading records.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had a concentration of credit risk as 26.3%
(2018: 10.1%) and 73.9% (2018: 27.5%) of the
trade receivables were due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The Group's customer base consists of a wide
range of clients and the trade receivables are
categorised by common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities
to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. The Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL for trade receivables
and recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has
established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment. The expected
loss rate used in the provision matrix is calculated
for each category based on actual credit loss
experience over the past years and adjusted for
current and forward looking factors to reflect
differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historical data has
been collected, current conditions and the
Group's estimate on future economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables. There
was no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the year.

36. €@ T B ()

@ sREREEEERBEME)

iii)

EERRE)
EZEWNNE(E)

AEBMAZEEERRIER
EEPZEREHTE - BF
REMETRERBARZEDHR
RAFEEERR  HEFER
BB/ AEBEEREZEE
R REREERBEFG(E
RERNAKELREG 2 X5 8)
HEPZEEERETHMGE -

RmEBHER AEBERKE
BAREMAEREFPESER
HREZEFEERRKRD B
26.3% (ZZF — )\F :10.1%) &
739% (ZZF—N\F : 27.5%) °

AEBEZEFEARBREZAE
F - BESRYFERRRER
SN RBEENGERER 2B
RIAZ BN 2 KRR B E D
B AEEGEEZ YK
RZEMEEBREEMAGL
% AREREEMIREHITE
HEEBRERBERE - X
SECRABRBRERE  UHEB
A EEBRRKEBRRELEL
& U8 B R I AR B BRBR 2 5 TE Al
WERRFELAE - BEREMR
AERERERBEBEFELZ
EREEBELRREMNG
B UHMBRKEAERZEN
AE e BRI EBEBUE
HEZEERTZR - BAIB
LR R ER B R WK R TR AT
HIRARREEMRR 2 fEET - F
A EEEET AL EABRR
EHERER -

EMENBEROERDT
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

iii)  Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as
at the reporting period, based on the invoice

date is as follows:

36.

€M IEA@®
@ EREBREEEERKE @)

iy EERKE)
ESENHEE)

REIBEH - B5RURIRR %
SRMZERESTMT

2019 2018

ZB-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Within 90 days 90H 95,727 393,207
91-180 days 912180H 151 2,412
181-365 days 181£2365H 1,503 23,069
More than 365 days 3658 M E 292 -
97,673 418,688
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €T E@m)
(a) Financial risk management objectives and @ 2REBEEEERBX &)

policies (Continued)

iii)  Credit risk (Continued) iy EERRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) B ZREWHTHE (&)
The Group allows a credit period up to 90 rEBETHESEBARS
days to its trade debtors. The information QRZEEN - FHEFREK
about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for REZEERBRIIEREES
trade receivables using a provision matrix is 850 P 9 8 7B P A & BHE st R
summarised below. e
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZZB-AF+=A=+—H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate Amount  allowance impaired

AHEEXR R A {E EERAE FERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FTERT FTERT

Non-credit impaired

BEERE
Not past due 0% 95,727 = No
1-90 days past due 0% 151 = No
#1 #1290 R i3
91-180 days past due 0% 1,503 = No
@ 19151808 i
181-365 days past due 0% - - No
8 #1181 365H &
Over 365 days past due 0% 292 = No
# HA3658 A b i3
97,673 =
Credit impaired
EERE
181-365 days past due 100% 9,050 (9,050) Yes
#1 HR1812365H =]
Over 365 days past due 100% 461 (461) Yes
BHI365H A L B
9,511 (9,511)
107,184 (9,511)
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

220

(a)

36. T B

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

iii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

Expected
loss rate

AHEER
%
Bt

Non-credit impaired

(@) THEAMREEEEREE#)
iy EERKE)
ESENHEE)

Gross
carrying
Amount

IR E A E
HK$’000
FExT

R-ZZE-N\F+=-A=+—H

Credit-
impaired

FERE

Loss
allowance
EiEEE
HK$'000
FE T

BEERE

Not past due 372,097 - No
1-90 days past due 21,673 - No
# H11ZE90H s
91-180 days past due 2,143 - No
# Hi912180H i
181-365 days past due 22,775 - No
8 #1812 365H =
Over 365 days past due - - No
#3658 A | i

418,688 -

Included in the Group's trade receivables
balance as at 31 December 2019 are debtors
with a carrying amount of HK$1,946,000
(2018:HK$46,591,000), which are past due as at
31 December 2019 but which the Group has not
impaired as there has not been any significant
changes in credit quality and the directors
believe that the amounts are fully receivable.

Receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no history of default.
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

iii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over
trade receivables as at 31 December 2019

(2018: Nil).

As at 31 December 2019,
recognised loss allowance of HK$9,511,000
(2018: HK$nil) on the trade receivables. The
movements in the loss allowance for trade
receivables during the year are summarised

below.

the Group

36. @M I B
@ EWMEREBEAERBX#®)

i) EERKGE)
ESENTHEE)

R-F-NF+-A=1+—H"
AEEE Y E B E S E KRR

FAETMEMRR (T -N\F:
') -

RZZE—hEF+=ZA=+—08"
AEERE S EWRIBRERE
8 # 189,511,000 T (=& —
NFE BB - RAFEZE
SEBFEREEBHEEEH B
m o

2019 2018

ZE-hF —ZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBR FiEn

At beginning of year NS = -
Increase in allowance B 1E 9,542 -
Exchange realignment ME 5 & (31) -
At end of the reporting period RS H R 9,511 -

The increase in the loss allowance during
the year was due to identification of
credit-impaired customers who businesses
were suspended and could not repay the

outstanding balances within the credit period.
Amounts due from connected companies

The Group considers that the amounts due
from connected companies have low credit
risk based on the borrowers’ strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and low risk of default.
Impairment on amounts due from connected
companies is measured on 12-month ECL and
reflects the short maturities of the exposures.

FRE R BEEILINT BN E 5
EEREZEP  EXBKES
R ENNEERRNEERE

JE W BF#E 22 7] 50 R

R fERAGREENNIDH
BEEAWRSREAERE
HWRBEIE  RAKERBE
WRERRREABREER
@ o RARE AR IR ZRE
BREARMEEBERAEL
= BR A R L B 20 AE HR R JE R

REBHNIERFERDERAE
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

222

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

Amounts due from connected companies
(Continued)

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken
into account the historical credit
loss experience and the financial position

actual

of the counterparties, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and general
economic conditions of the industry in which
the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets,
as well as the loss upon default in each case.
The management of the Group considers the
ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant
after considering the financial position and
credit quality of the counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made
during the year.

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims at maintaining
sufficient level of cash and cash equivalents
to finance the Group’s operations and
expected expansion. The Group's primary cash
requirements include payments for operating
expenses, additions or upgrades of property,
plant and equipment and repayment of
borrowings. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds
generated from operations, advances from
related parties and use of bank and other
borrowings.

The Group manages risk by
forecasting the amount of cash required and

liquidity

monitoring the working capital of the Group
to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met. Based
on the assessment of the management, the
overall liquidity risk encountered by the Group
is manageable.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

iv)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately
HK$788,508,000. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared by the
directors of the Company on a going concern
basis taking into account of the measures
mentioned in note 2 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The remaining undiscounted contracted
maturity profile of the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, based on the earliest date in which
the Group is required to settle, is summarised
below:

demand 3 months 12 months

RER
HK$'000
TRz

36. @M I B

(a)

PR
=@ A
HK$’000
TERT

cREAREEREERBE @
vy RBESERE)

Over 3
months
but not
On Less than more than

RZE-NF+-A=+—8H"
AEBZRDABEFEOR
788,508,000/ 7T ° & & & 4R
& B 75 R M R 2P L 4 B
ARREECRFELERE
REFEMBRE -

RBEMR  BAKREAXN
ZERFAREOAKEEITE
TRABZRBARMEBRAND
HIB A ZE T

Over 1
year but

Over 2
years but
not more

than 2

years

no more
than 5
years

]
=@ A
BFRER
+=@A
HK$'000
TR

figicl
—f
EREB
CE:3
HK$'000
TRz

B
mE
BFREB
£
HK$'000
FiHn

Mt
HK$'000
TET

At 31 December 2019 R-ZZ-h&F

+=ZB=+-H

Trade and other payables EC V&L )
I 59,122 62,480 412,306 = - 533,908

Amounts due to connected ENBEERARZ
companies FRIE 1,079,670 2,135 74,631 132,163 - 1,288,599
Bank loans SBITEXR - 1,289 98,222 - - 99,511
Unlisted secured bonds FETHERES - 14,682 14,682 406,202 - 435,566
Lease liabilities HEERE = 244 536 428 - 1,208

Loan from a connected REBERARZ
company B - 1,567 73,829 - - 75396
Loan from a third party REFE=ZFZEX = 6,071 6,071 = - 12,142
1,138,792 88,468 680,277 538,793 - 2,446,330

REBHNEREBRABERAE
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €M T A

(a) Financial risk management objectives and (@) THEAMREEEEREE#)
policies (Continued)

iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued) iv) REBELEMRE)

Over 3 Over 1 Over 2
months  year but years but

but not not more no more

On Less than more than than 2 than 5

demand 3 months 12 months years years

il HBE @

=f@A =% 7 F

SR BEAEB BTEBA EBTEBR
REX =@A +=@A k= R mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHT FET THT TAT TR TAR

At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-N\E
+=ZHA=+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A ER
I 341,568 37,685 326,517 - - 705,770
Amounts due to connected J,TEHEEEZ\ETZ
companies B 908,063 - 337,717 - - 1,245,780
Bank loans RITER - 36535 83584 101,697 - 221,816
Unlisted secured bonds FEMAERES - 14,642 14,883 29524 406,719 465,768
Bank overdrafts RITEX 5,672 - - - - 5,672
Loans from a connected REBEAFZ
company g% - 2,413 7,374 116,951 - 126,738
Loan from a third party REE=ZFZER - 6,203 18,609 12,406 - 37,218
1,255,303 97,478 788,684 260,578 406,719 2,808,762
(b) Capital management by BAXER
The objectives of the Group's capital management AEBMEREAZERRRERLR
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going BreER D M ARFREHE R
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders RAEHEMBOETRSER  WHER
and benefits for other stakeholders, to maintain an ROBEXRERBUAR D ERK AR
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital RHAEERTEERE -

and to support the Group's stability and growth.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of AEBCZEARAEBEERERTR
bank and other borrowings and equity attributable EMEEARERRABIERFEAR
to equity owners of the Company. R -
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares
or return capital to shareholders. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Categories and fair value of financial
instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

are set out as follows:

36. @M I B

(b)

(c)

EXRE®E (&)

AEEEGRTHBIREREANLE
B HKEINREBEEREBERRK
HEHK RAHEEAEEBEER
Bk o BERRAREARLERE A%
EOHREINTFTREZKRESEE
BB MAREEATRE - &
BT -NFRZZE-N\F+ZA=
+—HIEFE BE BEXIEF
WEgs) -

EMIREDERAFE

MTEEEREENEREBE KR
EEHIWT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FET
Financial assets at FVPL BEAFEFABEZZEH
EE 3,343 7,971
Financial assets at amortised REEBM K REEA
costs under HKFRS 9: O IRE R AR
ZERMEE:
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E AU GRIR 488,195 456,149
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITFER 395,612 307,449
Bank balances and cash RITEBMRE 35,296 64,588
919,103 828,186
922,446 836,157
REBNERERAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. &M I A

(c) Categories and fair value of financial c EMIESTERAFEME

instruments (Continued)

2019 2018
—g-hnE  —T)NF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TR

Financial liabilities at amortised 1R##EK LIRS H

costs: BE:
Trade and other payables B 5K H T FRIE 1,635,426 1,929,176
Current portion of bank and RITREMEEZ
other borrowings Bl HA = 55 178,059 140,633
Non-current portion of bank and ~ SRITRHMEEZ
other borrowings FERNER &R 397,769 611,492
Non-current portion of amount FETRAE T RIA 2
due to a connected party FEBNER &L 126,654 -
2,337,908 2,681,301
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not FFEsmITAREERAN_-ZT—
materially different from their fair values as at 31 NERZZT-N\F+ZA=+—RHZ
December 2019 and 2018. AFEITEERER -
37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 37. A EFE

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured NTE2INREEMBHRESLEINB3RIA

at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these FTEFAEIMATAFERR 2 =B A

financial statements on a recurring basis across the three SomRATHEFEXNEARETHELER

levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, ZEVBMERBEEATEZCEERSE

Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement B ARV EFEDBERBENYEMET

categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input EMEBEAZKERNEASE - &

that is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of ABEZRANATAT:

inputs are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in . FE—R(&ZER) RTEEHEEER
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that AREGEHEREENBERIERTIS
the Group can access at the measurement date; ZHEOCREHE);

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included . BB BE—RBEZIREN A
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or BERGHESARECEEXBERA
liability, either directly or indirectly; LI

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the ° F=H(HER) BEXEBEEZT
asset or liability. AR A BUE -
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37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 37. AFEFEM@®

a) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value a) BAVEFEZEERARE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—R F_R EFE=H 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FA T FA T FHAT
2019 —EB-hEF
Assets measured at fair value R QAFEE
ZEE
Unlisted investment fund FEEMKEESD
(note 21) (K 3E21) - = 3,343 3,343
2018 —E-N\F
Assets measured at fair value QA FEE
ZEE
Unlisted investment fund MK EES
(note 21) (B 52 21) - — 7971 7971

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2

HE-_T-NER-_Z—\E+_-A8
=+—HBLEFE F-HARE-R
REEFEZHATEEE  F=§
AREEFENETMNEAREL -

fair value measurements, and no transfers into and
out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

F=WOFEITEZED

Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements

2019 —E—hE

Financial assets at FVPL

BAVEFABEZEREE

Unlisted
Description investment fund Total
LT
it REES® et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At beginning of the year R F 9] 7971 7,971
Exchange realignment PE 5 58 & (88) (88)
Purchase e 206,475 206,475
Sales & (211,015) (211,015)
At the end of the reporting REREHR
period 3,343 3,343
REBNENRROBRDLA
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37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 37. AFEE@

a) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value a) BAVEFEZEERARS
(Continued) (#&)
Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements FE=ZRLFEFEZ2ESH (EF)
(Continued)
2018 AN

Financial assets at FVPL

BAVEFABGEZERMEE

Unlisted
Unlisted investment
Description shares fund Total
JEET FE LT
8 at i 15 REES HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT T TT FHE T
At beginning of the year RE 9,407 - 9,407
Purchase BE - 7971 7971
Sales & (9,407) - (9,407)

At the end of the reporting ~ RIREH R
period - 7971 7,971
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THE COMPANY

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AT B # Ak 0 &

2019
—g-n%&

HK$’000
TERT

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000
TAET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries LEKE AR 14 8 8
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TE T FIE 342 202
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEUHTE A T 1B 80,771 409,711
Cash at bank TR S 7,973 542
89,086 410,455
Assets held for sale BIELEEE = 4,150
Total current assets RBEEHLAE 89,086 414,605
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrual HAth & 55K IR e FE AT
=8¢ 1,500 5,029
Net current assets RBEEFHE 87,586 409,576
Total assets less current EEHAERABER
liabilities 87,594 409,584
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Unlisted secured bonds JEEMABEBES 397,361 392,657
NET (LIABILITIES) ASSETS (BE)EERHE (309,767) 16,927
Capital and reserves BEERARE®
Share capital J% AN 29 12,880 12,880
Reserves & & 38(a) (322,647) 4,047
TOTAL (DEFICITS) EQUITY (BA) EZEH (309,767) 16,927

WHBRARNR-_Z_EFAALAKE
EFEMERRETE  AHATALTAR

This statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 May

2020 and signed on its behalf by: B®E:
Tao Ying Miao Zhibin

b & B

Director Director

EF EF

REBNERBERBERD R
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. A& =] Bt # Ak n & (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(@) Movements of the reserves (@) fEHEEZH

Share-based
Share  Contributed payment Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
DARR 17 7% 2 1
B fn s B ERRY ZAREH B 2 gt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

THET AT FAET TEL  FThn
(Note 31(a))  (Note 31(f))  (Note 31(g))
(FaE31)  (BaE3d)  (FaE31(g)

At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\¥—-A—H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (91,663) 147,375
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 RMEBMBHREER

TR E - - - 601 601
At 1 January 2018 as restated RZZ-N\F—-A—-H

(5750 201,419 34,556 3,063 (91,062) 147976

Loss and total comprehensive loss ENBERZEBEAE

for the year - - - (143,929)  (143,929)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\#F
+=-A=+—~H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (234,991) 4,047
At 1 January 2019 R-E-hE-A—-H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (234,991) 4,047
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRNEERZESBELE
for the year = = = (326,694) (326,694)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-n%
+=ZA=+-H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (561,685) (322,647)
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39. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

The outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19)

has caused disruptions to many industries
worldwide. Despite the challenges, governments
and international organizations have implemented
a series of measures to contain the epidemic. The
Group will closely monitor the development of the

epidemic and assess its impact on its operations.

The Company will closely monitor the situation, and
assess its impacts on the Group's financial position
and operating results. At the date of authorisation
of these consolidated financial statements, such
assessment is still ongoing.

On 28 April 2020, Heshun Trading and Jiangsu
Dafeng entered a share transfer agreement to
transfer 60% equity interests in Jiangsu Hairong
to Jiangsu Dafeng at the consideration of
RMB226,980,000 (equivalent to HK$252,947,000).
Since Jiangsu Dafeng was a connected person to the
Group, the completion of the disposal will be subject
to the approval from the independent shareholders
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. The details
of the proposed disposal are summarised in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2020.

39. BEHREE

(a)

—ZE—hF B M%E S K (COVID-19)
MBEHLRERRLITEENT TE -
BENKHEE  SEBNKEKRA
BE 'R —RINEERIZEHEE -
AEBBERYEREBEERITE
HHELENTE o

ARBEENEEIFE W EEY
AEBEBBERARLEEENT
B -RREFAVBHRREENE
BE - R EIDEETS -

NRZZE_ZFFMA=—+NRH " B
E9HIHRKRETLT kb
iR AMTaf R 28 ET
BB R0%RMlRE  RERARE
226,980,0007T (#8& 74 252,947,000/%
JL) e ARNIERAE AARSEMEE
AL TREESHEEAEREGEM L
M A KB R RAL ER - AE
T BRHETHZHFBEREAAT
AfA-—ZE-_=FNOMA_F/\BZA
& gt o

EMENBEROERDT
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B E

RESULTS E3 ]

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—2-NE —FB-\f Bt —F-Rf —T-If

HK$'000 HK$'000* HK$'000* HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FHET FHET THET FTHET
Revenue 1§ 1,517,072 4,369,900 3,424,606 563,708 260,395
(Loss) Profit before taxation bR A (B 18) 4 7l (944,792) (173,315) 5,629 (32,522) (30,371)
Income tax expense PR TR X (199) (695) (4,236) (4,572) (902)
(Loss) Profit for the year FR(EE)RF (944,991) (174,010) 1,393 (37,094) (31,273)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“2-NE —B-\f B+t —F-R"f —T-If

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FBT FET FHT FHT
Total assets EE®E 1,411,619 2,769,734 1,268,618 598,548 160,317
Total liabilities BERE (2,362,526)  (2,752,807) (1,072,157) (434,934) (55,575)
Total (deficits) equity (B ERER (950,907) 16,927 196,461 163,614 104,742

* The above figures included both continuing operations and discontinued ~ * TR BTFERERECEEBRERIBEED -
operations.
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